AGENDA
ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL

Monday, March 5, 2018
7:00 PM
2"9 Floor Council Chambers
1095 Duane Street - Astoria OR 97103

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

REPORTS OF COUNCILORS
CHANGES TO AGENDA

CONSENT

The items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be adopted by one
motion unless a member of the City Council requests to have any item considered separately.
Members of the community may have an item removed if they contact the City Manager by
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.

a) City Council Minutes for February 5, 2018

b) Library Board Minutes for October 24 and November 28, 2017, Park Board Minutes for January 24,
2018

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

All agenda items are open for public comment following deliberation by the City Council.

Rather than asking for public comment after each agenda item, the Mayor asks thataudience

members raise their hands if they want to speak to the item and they will be recognized. In

order to respect everyone’s time, comments will bpe limited to 3minutes.

a) Public Hearing and Ordinance: Amendment A 17-02 by Garry Vallaster, Astor Venture, LLC,
represented by Jennifer Bunch, dba Wickiup Consulting, LLC, for a map amendment to the development
Code to change zoning from Attached Housing-Mill Pond (AH-MP) to Local Service (LS) on
approximately 1.04 acres (45,452 sq. it.) of land, and also a text amendment to remove certain uses
from the LS Zone between 23rd and 29th Streets north of Marine Drive. The intent is to construct a
retail grocery that will accommodate the expansion of the Astoria Co-op Grocery.

b) Addition of Job Title for Schedule F-1 Salary Resolution 18-01- Parks Special Projects Manager

¢) Addition of Job Title for Schedule E-1 Salary Resolution 18-01 - Support Engineer Position

d) Authorization to Bid Spur 18 Combo Harvest 2018

e) Downtown Parking and Visitor Information Agreement with ADHDA

NEW BUSINESS & MISCELLANEOUS, PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA)

THE MEETINGS ARE ACCESSIBLE TO THE DISABLED. AN INTERPRETER FOR THE
HEARING IMPAIRED MAY BE REQUESTED UNDER THE TERMS OF ORS 192.630 BY
CONTACTING THE CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE AT 503-325-5824.




CITY OF ASTORIA

Founded 1811 = Incorporated 1856

MEMORANDUM e« CITY MANAGER

DATE: FEBRUARY 28, 2018

TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

FROM: WRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER

SUBJECT:" ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF MARCH 5, 2018

CONSENT CALENDAR

Iltem 5(a): City Council Minutes for February 5, 2018

The minutes of the City Council Meeting of February 5, 2018 are enclosed for
review. Unless there are any corrections, it is recommended that Council approve
these minutes.

Item 5(b): Boards and Commissions Minutes

The minutes for the Library and Park Boards are enclosed for review. Unless
there are any questions or comments regarding the contents of these
minutes, they are presented for information only.

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

Iltem 6(a): Public Hearing and Ordinance: Amendment A 17-02 by Garry Vallaster,
Astor Venture, LLC, represented by Jennifer Bunch, dba Wickiup
Consulting, LLC, for amap amendment to the development Code to change
zoning from Attached Housing-Mill Pond (AH-MP) to Local Service (LS) on
approximately 1.04 acres (45,452 sq. ft.) of land, and also a text amendment
to remove certain uses from the LS Zone between 23rd and 29th Streets
north of Marine Drive. The intent is to construct a retail grocery that will
accommodate the expansion of the Astoria Co-op Grocery

On January 24, 2018 the Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of
a proposed map and development code text amendments for property located at
the northeast corner of 23 and Marine Drive. The applicant has requested the
amendment to permit the development of the Astoria Coop grocery. The
proposed map amendment would extend the Local Service (LS) zone east
across 23rd Street to incorporate approximately one acre of land for the

grocery. Text amendments would allow (east of 23rd) retail sales up to 14,000
square feet without providing housing, eliminate (also east of 23rd) single family
dwellings, business service establishments, gasoline service stations,
transportation service establishments, and allow building heights of up to 45 feet.



Item 6(b):

Iltem 6(c):

It is recommended that the City Council hold a public hearing and consider the
Planning Commission’s recommendation.

Addition of Job Title for Schedule F-1 Salary Resolution 18-01- Parks
Special Projects Manager

Parks and Recreation Department proposes the creation of a temporary, on-call,
position of Parks Special Projects Manager in order to implement
recommendations of the Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Master Plan.

This position would assist with but not be limited to the following tasks:

» Conducts research, analyzes, interprets, and packages data for
presentations, and develops written reports on assigned projects.

» Develops and refines Park Maintenance Plans.

e Assists in the preparation, implementation, updating of the
Comprehensive Parks and Recreation Master Plan.

» Coordinates with staff and stakeholders to enhance services offered by
the Parks Department.

It is recommended that City Council approve the addition of the Job/Title/Duties
and use of Schedule F-1, Range 3 as contained in Salary Resolution No. 18-01.

Addition of Job Title for Schedule E-1 Salary Resolution 18-01 - Support
Engineer Position

With the recent staff transitions in the Public Works Department as a result of
Ken Cook’s retirement, the part-time Support Engineer position in the
Engineering Division has been left vacant. The Support Engineer position has
been primarily responsible for special projects such as the CSO (Combined
Sewer Overflow Program), wastewater improvements and ODOT bridge projects.
This part-time position is limited to 1,500 hours per year.

After an evaluation of tasks, projects and workflow, Staff determined that creation
of a permanent full-time Engineering Designer position will best meet the current
and future needs of the Engineering Division. This position would take the place
of the Support Engineer and be primarily responsible for project management,
infrastructure design and development review (full job description attached). This
will allow Cindy Moore, previous Support Engineer, to continue to manage a
variety of special projects in her Assistant City Engineer role.

Before a position can be posted, the creation of a job description is required to
identify the essential duties, expectations, required experience and education as
well as to review the current marketplace establishing appropriate salary range to
fulfill the current requirements of the City. It is proposed that Schedule E-1,
Range 39, be utilized and step determined based on the experience and
education of the candidate. Funds currently budgeted for the Support Engineer
position can be utilized for the Engineering Designer in this fiscal year. Funds
are also included in the proposed budget for FY2018-19 to accommodate the
addition of this permanent position. Compared to the Support Engineer position,
the addition of a permanent Engineering Designer is anticipated to be cost



Iltem 6(d):

Iltem 6(e):

neutral at this point and converts a part-time position to full time.

The job recruitment would commence immediately upon City Council approval. It
is recommended that City Council approve the addition of the Engineering
Designer job title and duties, and use of Schedule E-1, Range 39 in Salary
Resolution 18-01.

Authorization to Bid Spur 18 Combo Harvest 2018

A commercial thinning and variable retention treatment is proposed on
approximately 50 acres of the Bear Creek Watershed property for the summer of
2018. The harvest is located near the north-eastern boundary of the property, on
a flat ridge between Cedar Creek and Fat Buck Creek. All treatments have been
designed for long-term water quality and forest health goals, increasing diversity,
structural complexity, and resilience of the forest on the Bear Creek Watershed.

The commercial thinning is proposed in a Spruce-dominated stand that has
stagnated due to very tight spacing. The goal of the thinning is to increase
species diversity in the stand and allow the remaining trees to optimally utilize the
available growing space.

An area of variable retention harvest is proposed adjacent to the thinning unit.
The Douglas Fir in these stands is impacted by Swiss Needle Cast, a fungus that
attacks the crowns of the trees and inhibits growth, stunting the trees and
decreasing canopy cover. By removing the Douglas Fir, the treatment leaves
large and wind-firm Hemlock and Spruce both dispersed throughout the stand
and in a few small clumps. The treatment has the operational benefits of a patch
cut while improving seed sources for natural regeneration and leaving large
legacy trees throughout the stand.

The harvest unit is bisected by the Spur 1 Road, which may require minor
repairs. In addition, two other small spurs will be restored, providing greater fire
access towards the edge of the property. Map showing the treatment area as
well as the location within the watershed are attached. Our City Forester will be
in attendance at the meeting to answer any questions.

The net proceeds to the Capital Improvement Fund from this forest treatment are
estimated to be $200,000 after harvest and reforestation costs.

It is recommended that City Council authorize staff to solicit bids for the Spur 18
Combo Harvest 2018.

Downtown Parking and Visitor Information Agreement with ADHDA

An initial agreement for parking and tourist information services with Astoria
Downtown Historic District Association (ADHDA) was approved by Council on
September 6, 2016 and ADHDA began recruitment for a parking enforcement
officer which has ADHDA has designated as the Community Outreach Officer
(COO0). At about the same time of the recruitment for the COO position was
culminating, the ADHDA Executive Director resigned and the COO position was
delayed until the new Executive Director, Sarah Lu Heath, was in place. In early



spring of 2017 the COO position was filled and training provided. City of Astoria
provided $ 8,500 to the ADHDA in compliance with their request and the
approved agreement. Due to unforeseen circumstances the new employee did
not complete the probationary period. Further recruitment efforts have been
underway since summer of 2017 with candidates being offered the position and
subsequently declining, necessitated renewing the search for candidates. The
ADHDA had $ 7,484.89 available at June 30, 2017 to recruit for and establish the
new employee in the current fiscal year.

Effective January, 2018 the ADHDA hired and the City Manager has appointed
(per City code) Ms. Ronni Harris as the Community Outreach Officer. An
agreement for fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 has been pending the successful
recruitment by the ADHDA for this position.

During the January 10, 2018 City Council work session ADHDA made a request
to Council to utilize a portion of Promote Astoria Funds allocated for a parking
officer to work with a contractor conducting a downtown parking study to better
utilize existing parking on private lots and improve pedestrian safety. Council
requested ADHDA determine the economic impact of parking spaces and to
consider how parking in downtown might impact other areas of town. In
response to Council direction from this work session ADHDA prepared a scope
of work for the downtown parking study which has been incorporated in the
scope of work for the attached agreement for Downtown Parking and Tourist
Information Services Agreement. The Parking Study is budgeted for $ 11,000. It
should be noted that work from the parking study will be presented to Council
along with some analysis of on-street parking configurations being prepared by
the Public Works Department. This will be done to address the City Council goal
on this topic.

It is recommended that Council approve the agreement with ADHDA.



CITY OF ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL JOURNAL OF PROCEEDINGS
City Council Chambers

February 5, 2018

A regular meeting of the Astoria Common Council was held at the above place at the hour of 7:00 pm.
Councilors Present; Nemlowill, Jones, Price, Brownson, and Mayor LaMear.

Councilors Excused: None

Staff Present: City Manager Estes, Parks and Recreation Director Cosby, Finance Director Brooks, Fire Chief
Ames, Police Chief Spalding, Public Works Director Harrington, Library Director Pearson, and City Attorney
Henningsgaard. The meeting is recorded and will be transcribed by ABC Transcription Services, Inc.

PRESENTATIONS

Item 3(a): Audited Financial Statement

Tonya Moffitt of Merina & Company will present the audited financial statements to City Council for fiscal
year-ending June 30, 2017 for the City of Astoria and Urban Renewal.

Director Brooks introduced Tonya Moffitt, the Certified Public Accountant (CPA) and partner in charge of the
City's audit with Merina & Company. Staff appreciated their working relationship with Merina because they
provide a lot of insight during the audit process.

Tonya Moffitt presented the June 30, 2017 audited financial statements for the City of Astoria and the City's
Urban Renewal Agency. The audit resulted in an unmodified opinion, which is the highest opinion that Merina
can give on financial statements. She noted highlights of the audit as follows:

e She listed the sections of the statements not considered in the opinion, but noted that Merina does read
through those sections to make sure they are appropriate. The company received the necessary
information from Staff very quickly because there were no restrictions placed on the audit. The City has
applied accounting standards appropriately and there were no transactions that lacked authoritative
guidance.

e Merina is required by State law to look at some items that are not financially related. For example, if the
City pursues any public purchasing contracts, Merina ensures the purchasing process was done in
compliance with ORS 279. The audit only found two minor issues with State regulation compliance: In
the General Fund, the City Manager's budget was over by a little more than $2,000 and the Parks and
Operations Fund for the aquatic facility was over by about $4,600. That is common because bills come
in after the year's end.

o Merinafound a significant deficiency in the financial statements, which resulted from lack of control over
some of the year-end accruals. These deficiencies required an adjustment to the year-end accrual
balances. Merina recommended that Astoria develop some internal control procedures over the year-
end accruals. Finance Staff recognized the continuing need for thorough review and procedural
improvements over the year-end accruals. Staff also requested alternative debt service schedules from
Merina because the current processes are unnecessarily complex and difficult to use.

e She explained that the audit contains three levels of findings. Non-reportable findings are so minor that they
do not get reported. Significant deficiencies are reportable, but are not an indication that something is wrong.
Material weaknesses are major problems that result in misstated financial statements. Unfortunately,
governments have three basis of accounting. The budget uses a cash basis, the balance sheet is kept on a
modified accrual, and the year-end statements are kept on a full accrual basis. Astoria's year-end accrual
deficiencies were on debt service payments and it is standard accounting practice to add these accruals to
the books at year-end instead of throughout the year.

Director Brooks noted that debt service was issued in a different year and the complexity of the City's template
added to the confusion. The City is working with Merina to get an easier template so that Staff can cross check
its numbers. The amounts in the financial statements were correct, but Merina noted the accruals were off a little
bit.

Page 1 of 9 City Council Journal of Proceedings
February 5, 2018



REPORTS OF COUNCILORS

Item 4(a): Councilor J ones congratulated Chief Spalding on his new position. He thanked the
Police Department for their continued investigative work on the Uppertown fires and their community outreach in
the neighborhood. There is now a $5,000 reward for information leading to the arrest of anyone involved. Anyone
with information should call 1-800-452-7888. He expressed sadness over the loss of Greg Newenhof, who co-
owned City Lumber with his brother. Mr. Newenhof volunteered his time, expertise, money, and products to help
rebuild and reopen the Armory. This was a tiny example of the amazing work Mr. Newenhof did in the
community over the years. Mr. Newenhof was a humble and modest person and a great American because he
knew how to make the community work through selfless service.

Item 4(b): Councilor Price reported that peaple in the community had been talking about the ebb
and flow of downtown businesses. However, she was confident that empty stores would soon be full again. She
did not want the community to worry about the empty stores downtown. People had also been talking about the
community outreach officer's work. She noted that the Astoria Downtown Historic District (ADHDA) and the City's
Engineering Department were working together to develop a parking master plan. She believed the plan would
allow the City to make better decisions about parking challenges. She encouraged everyone to respect the
process. She announced that she had been appointed to the Cultural Advocacy Coalition by Senator Johnson
and Kerry Tymchuk, Executive Director for the Oregon Historical Society. The coalition meets four times a year,
and once with the Governor, to advocate for cultural programs. The north coast had not been represented on the
coalition for a while, so she was happy to participate.

Item 4(c): Councilor Brownson welcomed Chief Spalding to a full-time position with the City,
adding he spoke with one of the police officers who was excited to have Chief Spalding on Staff. He was
surprised to hear about Mr. Newenhoff, whom he had known for about 25 years, and was saddened by the loss.

Item 4(d): Councilor Nemlowill had no reports.

Item 4(e): Mayor LaMear reported that Joan Herman had asked her on KMUN what the Mayor
does other than attend two meetings a month. She had to think about it, but wrote down some of the things she
had been doing recently and would be doing. The previous week, she met with the new director of the Harbor,
Molly Pringle. The Harbor now has a nice office in the Snow and Snow building. The City Council goal setting
session was on Friday, February 2" from 8:00 am to 3:30 pm to set goals for the coming year. On Saturday,
February 3, she introduced Senator Wyden at his town hall meeting. On Sunday, February 4%, she met with
Miss Oregon High School, who is working on an anti-bullying campaign. She also met with Robin Cusick at the
Armory to hear ideas about anti-bullying campaigns. Earlier that day, she spoke to a group from Portland State
University that is working on tsunami preparedness and resilience during a four-day conference in Astoria. On
Thursday, February 8™, she will meet with a delegate from China to tour the Garden of Surging Waves. On
February 16%, she will meet with Women for Agriculture. She would appreciate help with this meeting and
encouraged anyone with ideas to speak with her after the meeting.

CHANGES TO AGENDA
There were no changes.

CONSENT CALENDAR

The following items were presented on the Consent Calendar:
5(a) City Council Minutes of 9/19/16
5(b) Scriveners Error Correction: Aquatic Center Fee Resolution
5(c) Lifeguard Training Agreement with Ellis and Associates (Parks)
5(d) ODOT Cooperative Assistance Agreement (Public Works)
5(e) IGA for Field and Laboratory Services (Public Works)

City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Nemlowill, seconded by Councilor Brownson, to approve the
Consent Calendar. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Jones, Nemlowill, Brownson, and Mayor
LaMear; Nays: None.

Page 2 of 9 City Council Journal of Proceedings
February 5, 2018



REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

Item 6(a): Public Hearing: Ordinance Updating Section 8.045 — Transient Room Tax Distribution
(1%t Reading) (Finance)

At the August 7, 2017 City Council meeting, Council approved a 2 percent increase to the Transient Lodging
Tax rate from 9 percent to 11 percent, beginning January, 2018. At the time Ordinance 17-11 was adopted
Section 8.045.2 was amended to update the tax rate increase from 9 percent to 11 percent, but Section
8.045.18 was not updated to reflect the distribution of the additional 2 percent.

HB 2267 placed restriction on new or increased local lodging taxes so that 70 percent of new orincreased
taxes must be used for tourism promotion or tourism related facilities and 30 percent is unrestricted in use.
The earlier approved local lodging taxes must maintain the percentage of existing lodging tax used for
tourism promotion and tourism facilities.

In order to distribute and manage the Transient Lodging Tax receipts Section 8.045.18 requires adjustment to
account 70 percent portion of the increased tax (2 percent) to the Promote Astoria Fund and 30 percent
portion of the increased tax to the General Fund. The attached ordinance segregates the original distribution
of existing 9 percent tax and adds distribution for the increased 2 percent tax according to State Statutes. It is
recommended that the City Council hold a public hearing and if in agreement hold a first reading of the
ordinance.

Mayor LaMear opened the public hearing at 7:21 pm. She confirmed there were no comments from Councilors
or the public and closed the public hearing at 7:21 pm.

City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Nemlowill, seconded by Councilor Jones, to hold the first
reading of the ordinance updating Section 8.045 — Transient Room Tax Distribution. Mation carried unanimously.
Ayes: Councilors Price, Jones, Nemlowill, Brownson, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None.

Director Brooks conducted the first reading of the ordinance.

Item 6(b): Public Hearing: Ordinance Updating Section 7.100 — Criminal History Record Check
(15t Reading) (Police)

The City of Astoria currently conducts Background Checks on certain license holders, applicants and
volunteers. This is done in accordance with City of Astoria City Code Section 7.100. Staff would like to modify
the existing ordinance to include Astoria 9-1-1 Rural Fire Department Subscribers. These agencies are
required by Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR 259-009-0015) to conduct an employment and criminal
history check prior to employment or utilization as a fire service professional. Fire service professionals
include paid (career) or volunteer fire fighters, officers or members of a public or private fire protection
agency engaged primarily in fire investigation, fire prevention, fire safety, fire control or fire suppression or
providing emergency medical services, light and heavy rescue services, search and rescue services or
hazardous materials incident response.

To satisfy these requirements Astoria 9-1-1 would hold a letter requesting this service from each subscribing
Fire Chief, and modify the annual Subscriber Agreement to include performing record checks for the Agency.
The City Attorney has reviewed and approved the ordinance as to form. It is recommended that the City
Council hold a public hearing and if in agreement hold a first reading of the ordinance.

Mayor LaMear opened the public hearing at 7:23 pm and confirmed there were no comments from Councilors or
the public. She closed the public hearing at 7:23 pm.

City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Brownson, seconded by Councilor Nemlowill, to hold a first
reading of the ordinance updating Section 7.100 — Criminal History Record Check. Motion carried unanimously.
Ayes: Councilors Price, Jones, Nemlowill, Brownson, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None.

Page 3 of 9 City Council Journal of Proceedings
February 5, 2018



Director Pearson conducted the first reading of the ordinance.

Item 6(c): Friends of the Column Authorization to Enter into a Contract with Frite and Scoop to
Sell Ice Cream at the Astoria Column (Parks)

To enhance both locals and visitors experience while visiting Astor Park, the Friends of the Astoria Column
would like to partner with a local vendor to provide onsite ice cream and shack concessions and per the
Management Agreement between the City of Astoria and the Friends of the Astoria Column, the Friends of
the Astoria Column are required to have City Council authorization to provide such amenities. After
discussing their vision with the City Attorney, City Manager, and Parks and Recreation Director, the Friends
of the Astoria Column completed an informal solicitation for proposals. Six different local ice cream and/or
concession vendors were contracted and encouraged to submit a proposal. From the six local ice cream
and/or concessions vendors contracted, Frite and Scoop submitted a proposal, while all other business were
appreciative for the opportunity to participate but elected not to submit a proposal. The Friends of the Astoria
Column were satisfied with the attached proposal provided by Frite and Scoop and have negotiated the
attached Concession Agreement. It is recommended that City Council consider entering into an agreement
with the Friends of the Astoria Column and Frite and Scoop to provide concessions at the Astoria Column.

City Manager Estes said the Parks Advisory Board supported the proposal and provided notes, which were
included in the memorandum.

Councilor Nemlowill stated she supported the request and was pleased that a unique local business submitted a
proposal. Frite and Scoop uses raw materials to make great products and they have a great reputation.

City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Price, seconded by Councilor Nemlowill to approve the
agreement with the Friends of the Astoria Column and Frite and Scoop to provide concessions at the Astoria
Column. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Jones, Nemlowill, Brownson, and Mayor LaMear;
Nays: None.

NEW BUSINESS & MISCELLANEOUS, PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA)

Debbie Schmidt, 89919 Ocean Drive, Warrenton, stated she and her husband owned Phog Bounders Antique
Mall. She was in favor of employee parking outside of the downtown business area. However, her employees
must park on Astor Street where a large amount of transients hang out. She did not feel it was safe for her
employees to walk to their cars after 5:00 pm. Her store closes at 5:30 pm. She had gotten nowhere with the
parking people on how to solve this problem. She suggested the downtown businesses be allowed to have one
parking spot close the front of the business after 3:00 pm. Her store is not in the downtown core and there is a
lot of parking in the area. Parking is always available on 9" Street between Commercial and Marine. She was
concerned about the safety of her employees, and noted the park is always full of transients.

Councilor Price asked how Council could address Ms. Schmidt's recommendation.
Ms. Schmidt said the ADHDA denied her request for a parking spot close to her business after 3:00 pm.

City Manager Estes noted there were no ADHDA members present to respond. If City Council was interested in
adjusting the parking control ordinance for individuals, he recommended the ADHDA be allowed to provide input.

Ms. Schmidt stated the ADHDA had recommended that employees call the Police Department to ask if an officer
could escort them to their cars. She did not believe the Police Department had the time to provide this service,
nor was it their job.

City Manager Estes explained that the parking ordinance was intended to facilitate parking turnover for
merchants and businesses. If changes are made for one area, the Council might start to receive requests from
other areas as well.

Councilor Price asked if employees of other businesses were also required to park on Astor. Phog Bounders

was not in the downtown core, so Ms. Schmidt could park on Exchange.

Page 4 of 9 City Council Journal of Proceedings
February 5, 2018



Ms. Schmidt noted that parking on Exchange would require her employees to walk six to eight block in the dark
and rain.

City Manager Estes added the ordinance does not specify where employees of downtown businesses must park,
but provides areas for long-term parking.

Councilor Price was concerned about the City providing safety for residents and employees. She believed it
might be worth addressing the problem of providing safety in a particular area separately from the parking
master plan.

Councilor Nemlowill asked for more details about the specific behaviors that Phog Bounders employees
experienced. She also wanted to know if any illegal behaviors led to the police being called.

Ms. Schmidt stated her employees are harassed and intimidated. Customers have told her that they choose not
to shop at her store when there are too many transients on the sidewalk. She sees the same group of people is
at the park from noon to 5:30 pm. The police have been called many times by Cindy Merriman of Interior
Designs, who said she got tired of calling because the transients kept coming back. She knew someone who
wanted to make the park nice for the public, but none of the businesses in that area want to get involved with his
project as long as the transients are there.

Councilor Nemlowill thanked Ms. Schmidt for speaking up. Many small business owners and others were feeling
the effects of bad behavior right now. During the goal setting session, City Council talked about how this was the
public's main concern and how the City could respond by taking a more aggressive approach to policing if

funding could be found to hire additional officers. She understood this would not solve the problems immediately.

Ms. Schmidt stated her other concern was that parking enforcement was inconsistent. Someone will patrol
parking for a couple of years and then there is no enforcement for a couple of years. And this process repeats.
The parking patrol position should be permanent. She questioned how long it would be before the ADHDA got
tired of doing parking enforcement.

Councilor Price said the Engineering Department and the ADHDA were working on this issue diligently because
the City has heard this concern a lot. This was not an issue the City could solve tonight. She asked City Manager
Estes to help Ms. Schmidt get together with the ADHDA.

City Manager Estes said it was ultimately up to City Council to decide whether the parking district should be
modified. He recommended that Council discuss this with the ADHDA at a future Council meeting.

Ms. Schmidt said the issue would not exist if the transients were kept away from the area.

Councilor Brownson noted that Ms. Schmidt had previously expressed her concerns to him. This issue was so
serious that Councilors were aware of the community's concerns all the time. The homelessness task force
existed because it was such a challenge to find a solution. Enforcement was one piece of the solution, but there
are legal limits to what the City could do to create situations where behaviors do not create problems. He agreed
that Ms. Schmidt should continue to work with the ADHDA. There was a lot of serious and diligent work being
done to address the issues with homelessness and bad behavior. Having a long term parking enforcement
officer and trying to find a model that would work for Astoria were important parts of the situation.

City Manager Estes stated he would speak to Ms. Schmidt about scheduling a meeting with the ADHDA.

Councilor Jones believed the longer hours of daylight would be a benefit to employees who were currently
walking to their cars in the dark.

Ms. Schmidt disagreed, saying that more transients come to the area as the weather gets nicer.

Councilor Jones said he hoped the City would have made some progress with the task force by next winter.

Page 5 of 9 City Council Journal of Proceedings
February 5, 2018



Mayor LaMear stated she had heard the same concerns from other businesses in other areas. The City may
need to consider a more comprehensive plan for allowing parking near businesses. Making an allowance for one
business likely would lead to other businesses making the same request because those other businesses are
having the same problems. She hoped the City could have a robust discussion with the ADHDA.

Councilor Price said no one wanted to make policy based one business, but she had heard an increasing
number of reports on this issue. Previous parking concerns were about the lack of parking downtown. Now, the
concerns are that it is not safe to park in the areas where employees have to park. Public safety should be the
number one goal. When the City's parking restrictions create a personal danger to people, the City should
rethink what it is doing. She recommended the City stop enforcing the parking restrictions so that people could
park in safe places. The Public Works Director, Chief of Police, and ADHDA might have better ideas.

Councilor Nemlowill stated as a small business owner, a lack of parking enforcement had been hurting the
businesses in Astoria. The real problem is the transients. People breaking laws are making citizens feel unsafe,
jeopardizing the quality of life, and the City is letting them do it. The Chief of Police says he would like direction
from Council about how to deal with this situation and whether the Police Department should take a more
aggressive approach to the bad behavior. Homelessness and bad behaviors are two separate issues. The bad
behaviors should not be allowed regardless of whether a person has a house. She encouraged Councilors to
provide policy direction to the Police Department, which would require more resources.

Councilor Brownson noted that two new officers would begin working over the summer. Currently, the City is
budgeted to have three officers. He believed the Council strongly supported finding the resources to add even
more officers. However, that takes time. He supported allowing the Police Department to be more aggressive.
However, people get cycled through the legal system very quickly and are then back out. There are no strong
penalties that can be imposed. The task force is made up of people who deal with homeless issues and they are
working to figure out this problem, which is statewide. He believed the community would find solutions, but would
love to find a way to have an immediate impact on bad behavior.

Councilor Jones said that last Wednesday, Chief Spalding had asked Council for direction on more aggressive
policing. He had responded that he was in favor of allowing the Police Department to do what it could with
existing resources and enforcing laws more aggressively. He would continue to support the Police Department
even when members of the community expressed opposition to being more aggressive.

Councilor Nemlowill asked how Council should go about providing direction to Chief Spalding. City Manager
Estes explained that the Mayor could call for a motion to determine a consensus among the City Council and
provide direction to Staff.

Mayor LaMear called for a motion.

Councilor Nemlowill asked for clarification about providing direction to department heads. City Manager Estes
explained that the Council is able to provide policy direction about how the City wants Staff to address this issue.
The Police Chief wants assurance that he and his officers would be supported by City Council if the issue
becomes enhanced by the way they address it.

Councilor Nemlowill asked if there was any specific language that would help the Police Department. Chief
Spalding said he would prefer a resolution or a declaration of support for the Police Department's enforcement
dealing with the behavior of homeless individuals that also recognizes homelessness is not a crime. He
understood City Council was looking for answers while the task force worked towards long-term solutions. It
would be helpful for the Police Department to know they were supported by the Council as they enforced the
existing laws. He anticipated some push back by some members of the community.

City Council Action: Motion by Councilor Nemlowill that the Astoria City Council declare support for the Astoria
Police Department in dealing with the bad behavior of certain individuals on the street, recognizing that
homelessness is not a crime. [No second]

Councilor Jones offered the following friendly amendment to the motion: that Astoria City Council resolve that in
as much as the City is actively engaged in a homelessness solutions task force with community partners to
arrive at a holistic solution to the problems with homelessness and transients in Astoria, and in as much as this
Page 6 of 9 City Council Journal of Proceedings
February 5, 2018



effort is a long-term effort which would not reap recommendations for some time, and that in the interim City
Council has been approached by numerous citizens with concerns about public safety, that therefore the City
Council urge the Police Department to actively and continuously enforce all existing laws within the resources
available to him.

Councilor Price believed making policy for the Police Department to change its direction of enforcement was a
big consideration. She was not sure the Council should be making that policy at the last minute. She expected
that the Police Department was already enforcing the City's laws all the time anyway, so, to go further was
unnerving to her. She was not sure it was proper to identify certain populations. She could support a motion to
support enforcement of laws against bad behavior. Much of the behavior people are concerned about is not
illegal. It is legal to stand on the street and be a bad person to people, yell, smoke, be mean, make cat calls, be
verbally abusive, or panhandle. The Council is not willing to change one parking space but wants to change the
way the Police Department operates. She urged the Council to proceed with caution and to consider this at the
next meeting.

Mayor LaMear reminded that the Police Chief had requested a statement indicating whether City Council would
like the Police Department to be more assertive. City Manager Estes confirmed the Police Chief had not
requested that City Council take action tonight.

Mayor LaMear said she was worried about the people who are dealing with the bad behaviors now.

Chief Spalding believed the conversation began as a request for philosophical support of the laws that are
already on the books. In 2015, the State Legislature added homelessness as a criterion for racial profiling. The
Police Department already enforces the laws, so they did not plan to do anything new or different. However, he
did want an indication as to the level of enforcement that the Council supported, noting that there was only so
much the Department could do with the limited resources available. For some of the crimes that affect quality of
life, the Police Departments has options to give a warning or a citation.

Mayor LaMear said she wanted the ADHDA to meet with Ms. Schmidt.

Councilor Brownson suggested Council formally recognize that there are well-voiced concerns in the community
about bad behavior by transient individuals and that they support law enforcement.

Chief Spalding clarified that the Police Department would enforce laws upon all individuals without calling out any
particular group of individuals.

Councilor Price asked if Council should direct Staff to bring back a resolution in support of law enforcement.

Councilor Nemlowill reminded that her motion was a declaration of support for the Police Department to take a
more assertive approach dealing with bad behavior of people on the streets, recognizing that homelessness was
not a crime. She believed there was support among the Council, but sensed hesitation due to fears of a
backlash.

Councilor Brownson disagreed.

Councilor Nemlowill said she wanted to get something done now. She did not want to wait a year for the task
force to meet.

City Council Action: Motion by Councilor Nemlowill, seconded by Councilor Jones, that the Astoria City Council
make a declaration of support for the Astoria Police Department to take a more assertive approach in dealing
with bad behavior of individuals on the streets, recognizing that homelessness was not a crime.

Councilor Price asked if anyone else was interested in hearing from Chief Spalding. She supported the Police
Department and their enforcement against bad behavior. She was willing to recognize that bad behavior was
increasing and needed more attention. Astoria's resources are limited and a lot of other bad behavior is going on
besides just what goes on in the streets. City Council does not need to wait a year, but they could wait a couple
of weeks so that everyone has a chance to think this through and understand the implications.

Page 7 of 9 City Council Journal of Proceedings
February 5, 2018



Motion passed 3 to 2 Ayes: Mayor LaMear, Councilors Nemlowill and Jones. Nays: Councilors Price and
Brownson.

Councilor Brownson explained he voted in opposition because he supported waiting two weeks and wording the
motion in a way that avoided negative consequences.

David Oser, 254 Irving, Astoria, applauded City Council, particularly Councilor Nemlowill who represented the
ward he lived in, for taking a strong stance on this issue. There are many criminal problems in Astoria that are
worse than this, like domestic violence and drug abuse. However, no problem is more visible and is more on the
minds of the public than this public sentiment turning strongly against individuals who are transients and make
people feel threatened, especially women who are alone. There is a huge difference between people who are
homeless due to bad circumstances and people who are homeless by choice and do not want a permanent
residence. Astoria has been invaded by those who want a transient lifestyle. Taking a hard line is a very
important stance to take because the citizens feel frightened, intimidated, and are very unhappy about what has
happened over the last couple of years.

John Longquist, 567 Commercial, Astoria, said the previous Police Chief had mentioned he wanted malt liquor
eliminated, which seems to be a favorite of the homeless. He believed this would be a great idea, but he
understood there was trouble with the Oregon Liquor Control Commission (OLCC) rules about cities being able
to govern their own alcohol laws. He asked if the City could simply ask nicely to refrain from selling malt liquor.
He understood profits were as high as $1.00 per can. Maybe there was a way to make selling alcohol less
lucrative. He believed the bad behavior was due to alcohol because he was not finding the large numbers of
methamphetamine needles that used to be in the parks. He believed there was a small heroine problem, but the
largest issue was alcohol. He asked if water fluoridation would be brought up again.

Councilor Nemlowill stated City Council did not support referring the matter to voters. In order to put water
fluoridation on the ballot, there would need to be support from City Council or a citizen referendum. A
referendum would not take much work and she was surprised no one had done it considering the number of
people who have indicated an opposition to drinking fluoride.

Mr. Longquist said maybe he would work on a referendum.

Tom Schmidt, 89919 Ocean Drive, Warrenton, said the community was not a group of people without
compassion, but the people behaving badly do not care about Astoria. He invested hundreds of thousands of
dollars in the Phog Bounders building and business. The business has been in that building for almost 12 years.
At least once a week, his local customers say they would have come to the store, but there were too many
drunken people on the side of the building. His customers are scared to get out of their cars. The people who are
violating the law are criminals. He confirmed with Chief Spalding that it was legal to be drunk on the streets in
Astoria and suggested the City make it illegal, adding alcohol is the root of the problem.

City Manager Estes reviewed the draft goals set by City Council for 2018. The draft will be published on the
City's website for about a month while Council continues to discuss the goals. The draft goals are:
e Support the work and recommendations of the Homelessness Task Force.
¢ Implement the provisions contained in the City of Astoria Affordable Housing Study to increase the
number of housing units within the city for permanent residents. Special attention should be given to
vacant and/or derelict properties.
e Explore a variety of options to enhance long-term financial stability of the Parks Department including
but not limited to a cemetery facilities master plan and feasibility of a joint aquatic and recreation center.
e Pursue a public/private partnership for the redevelopment of Heritage Square to include the possibility of
housing.
e Increase disaster resilience among the community, City Staff, and facilities.
e Complete Comprehensive Plan and Development Code amendments for the Urban Core of the
Riverfront Vision Plan.
e Support the Library Foundation's work to fund raise for the library remodeling project.
¢  Work with community partners to implement the five-year Economic Development Strategy.
e He noted he would be working with the Library Foundation on the wording of the goal to support fundraising
efforts for the library renovation.

Page 8 of 9 City Council Journal of Proceedings
February 5, 2018



ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:13 pm.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Finance Director City Manager

Page 9 of 9 City Council Journal of Proceedings
February 5, 2018



Astoria Library Board Meeting
Astoria Public Library
October 24, 2017

5:30 pm.
Present: Library Board members Kate Deeks, David Oser, Susan Stein, Kimberley Chaput, and Chris
Womack. Youth Services Senior Library Assistant Suzanne Harold represented Director
Pearson.
Excused: None.

Call to Order: Chair Kate Deeks called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm.

Approval of Agenda: The agenda was approved as presented.

Approval of Minutes: The minutes of September 26, 2017 were approved.

Board Reports: David Oser stated the 501" Anniversary was “spectacular.” He said the library model was
phenomenal with $630 received in donations. He was happily surprised by the turnout and support and noted
many City Councilors attended.

Kate Deeks stated approximately 50 people attended the Write Astoria showcase, including many new faces.
She spoke about fundraising for the renovation. Bruce Jones read some great short stories he has written.

Library Director’'s Report:

Director Pearson was absent for personal reasons. Suzanne Harold spoke about Youth Services mentioning
the upcoming Teen Advisory Group Halloween party.

Update on ALFA Activities: There was none.

Update on Foundation:

David Oser stated Foundation has “shifted up to second gear” and has almost $100,000 in the bank. Pennies
for Piggies started in the school on Tuesday and will last for 3 weeks. The goal is high participation, not large
giving. Sara Lou Heath is writing a fundraising plan for the Foundation, and will have a draft version available
next week. A few donations have arrived by mail and via website. Ami is working on making the website
easier to navigate.

New Business:

Library Card Policy Discussion: Director Pearson requested input from the Board regarding lowering the age
for children to receive cards without a parent/guardian present. The Board supports the staff decision and if
staff wishes to lower the age they would support as well.

Internet Use Policy: Item moved forward to November 2017 meeting.

Old Business: There was none.

Public Comments: There were none.

Items for Next Meeting’s Agenda: Internet Use Policy.

Adjournment: There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:04 pm.
Respectfully submitted,

Jimmy Pearson, Library Director



Astoria Library Board Meeting
Astoria Public Library
November 28, 2017
5:30 pm.

Present: Library Board members Kate Deeks, David Oser, Susan Stein, Kimberley Chaput, and

Chris Womack. Staff Library Director Jimmy Pearson.

Call to Order: Chair Kate Deeks called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm.

Approval of Agenda: The agenda was approved as presented.

Approval of Minutes: Minutes for October 2017 will be presented during the next scheduled meeting for

approval.

Board Reports: There were none.

Library Director’s Report:

e Library Facilities: Director Pearson is gathering bids to refurbish main floor chairs to clean and new
upholstery.

e The Request for Proposal (RFP) for Architectural/Engineering Services is posted. Proposals are due
December 6, 2017.

e IT Update: The library has received a donation of a flatbed scanner.

e Collection Development: PlayAway’s, new audiobook format, have been a success thus far. Staff
will review in 2018 considering continuation of the trial.

e Director’s Activities:

Mayor LaMear, Councilor Price, City Manager Estes, and Director Pearson travelled to Salem
Oregon on November 7, 2017. The group presented to the Chief Justice of the Supreme Court
the Territorial Court Journals representing Clatsop County dated from 1849.

Director Pearson attended the Public Library Division Board Meeting in Irrigon Oregon on the
17t

Libraries Change Lives:

A young reader was reading to our therapy dog Maise and became frustrated. Maise decided he
needed a kiss and it worked to alleviate his frustration allowing him to continue to read.

A couple who lives outside city limits were using the library on the 25" informed staff they do not
like paying for a library card, however, they had heard so much was going on at the library it is
worth paying for.

When asked for a heartwarming story...Meghann replied we warm hearts all day long so it's
difficult to pick just one.

Update on ALFA Activities: There was none.

Update on Foundation:

New Business: There was none.



Old Business: Director Pearson clarified the Library Card/Internet Use Policy discussion from the
October meeting. Staff will issue library cards to patrons 16 years and older which aligns with our Internet
Use Policy as well.

Public Comments: There were none.

Items for Next Meeting’s Agenda: N/A

Adjournment: There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:03 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Jimmy Pearson, Library Director



Parks Advisory Board Meeting Minutes
January 24, 2018

Chairperson Norma Hernandez called meeting to Order at 6:50 am.

Present- Norma Hernandez, Jessica Schleif, Andrew Fick, Jim Holen, Eric Halverson, Aaron
Crockett, Howard Rub, and Michele Tompkins.

Staff- Angela Cosby and Brianna Bowker.

Public comments

1. Ron Zilli, 1444 16™ Street, Astoria, stated he was a professional forester with the Oregon
Department of Forestry who had lived in Astoria for more than 20 years. He was concerned
that the tree removal project was being done without management guidelines or goals.
Assessments used to complete the tree inventory, particularly in Shively Park, were not done
correctly. He recently took the State's forest pathologist to Shively and she came to a different
conclusion on one of the fir trees. Removing this tree would have an adverse impact on the
park and unnecessarily cost the City several thousand dollars. He also believed the project
costs were excessive in many cases. While the one-to-one replanting philosophy is a good
stewardship value, it is not needed in some cases because consideration was not given to
where the trees came from or the long-term vision of the area. At a recent City Council
meeting, he volunteered to replant all of the trees at Shively Park at his own expense. City
Council did not accept his offer because doing so would have required the City to renegotiate
their contract for this project. In the process of accepting bids, the Parks Department
renegotiated the contract prior to its approval by City Council, changing the statement of work
to exclude trees of the diameter that he planned to plant. The City does not need an arborist to
do all of the work. He recommended the City evaluate more input on the large fir tree in
Shively Park. Parks with playgrounds need to be considered differently from forested parks. He
appreciated Staff's willingness to meet with him and consider his recommendations. However,
Staff can do more to reduce costs.

2. Valerie Elder, 1069 Summit Avenue, Gearhart, said she was a forestry natural resources
extension agent for Oregon State University who advises on the management of forested
areas up to 500 acres. She offered educational and goal setting services that could help inform
the City's decisions.

Approval of Minutes
A. December’s Parks Board minutes were unanimously approved.

President Hernandez
A. What do you hear- Michele Tompkins asked if there were any projects the United Way could

take on for their Annual Day of Caring on April 215t. Director Cosby confirmed Staff was
already working on it. President Hernandez said she loved the changes that were made at the
Column. She also heard people were happy about the Valentine's dance. Eric Halverson said
the Friends of the Column were working with the high school to create parking passes for prom
so the students can have photos taken at the Column. Andrew Fick and Jessica Schleif heard
that people were appreciative of efforts to make the ball more inclusive. Director Cosby noted it
was too early to tell if there would be much attendance. Sunset Empire has put more
resources into their father/daughter dance, so Staff is trying to market the dance, which will be
closer and cost less. Jessica Schleif noted she was excited to see the work done on the




Doughboy monument. Jim Holen said he read an article in the paper about the Co-op's
proposal to put in housing above their new building. The article included comments indicating
the Parks Master Plan did not involve the selling of park property. Director Cosby explained
that the master plan did not specifically recommend that park properties be sold, but referred
to removing excess and unneeded park lands. Most of the community is opposed to selling
park properties.

Employee and Volunteer Recognition
A. Brianna Bowker recognized Desiree Denakis as the January employee of the month.

Old Business
A. Jim Holen gave an update on the Parks Foundation Board’s annual retreat, the Run on the

River, Parks After Dark, administrative procedures, board member recruitment, and the
Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats (SWOT) analysis. He distributed fliers for
Run on the River and asked that they be posted around town. The Foundation would like to
expand so it can provide scholarships to families in Warrenton. Director Cosby confirmed they
plan to give out about $38,000 in scholarships in 2018. The Board and Staff briefly discussed
some of the Run on the River sponsors.

B. Director Cosby updated the Board on Staff's efforts to implement the Parks and Recreation
Master Plan, noting that in May or June, Staff would give the Board a presentation on park
development and maintenance plans.

New Business

A. Director Cosby introduced the new Recreation Manager, Brianna Bowker.

B. Director Cosby updated the Board on the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with the Astoria
Scandinavian Heritage Association. Rosemary Johnson has been hired as the project
manager.

C. Director Cosby provided an update on the agreement with the Clatsop County Master
Gardner's Association. Designs are complete and building will begin in the next couple of
months.

D. Director Cosby presented a brief update on the MOA with David and Pam Armstrong, adding
Post Office Park looks much better already.

E. Director Cosby updated the Board on the MOA with Jessica Schleif.

F. Director Cosby provided updates on the removal of Priority 1 Hazard trees. City Council
approved a contract with Arbor Care for the project. The contract was only slightly amended
from the original proposal to leave some tree stumps in place instead of having them all
ground away. Mr. Zilli's concerns were educational for Staff and helped inform decisions. Upon
receiving his comments, Staff postponed the contract proposal so they could double check
their methods. Staff considered input from foresters, certified arborists, and risk managers. The
City sought bids from five companies who indicated the scope of work would be difficult to
complete in the one-year time frame. So, in the future, Staff will request longer term proposals,
which they hope will lower costs. She answered questions from the Board about the details of
the contract.

G. Director Cosby presented a request by the Friends of the Astoria Column to allow a vendor to
sell ice cream at the Astoria Column on weekends during the summer. The Board discussed
the benefits this would provide to the community and the City, and shared concerns that
allowing a vendor would set a precedent. They also discussed placing new facilities in
locations that would not obstruct the view from the Column. Director Cosby answered the
Board's questions about the details of the proposal, noting that the Historic Landmarks
Commission would be involved in the approval process. She confirmed she would forward the




Board's feedback to the Friends. The Board, Staff, and members of the public discussed the
pros and cons of vending in parks and the City's lack of a vending policy.

H. Director Cosby announced that updates on the feasibility of selling four park properties would
be presented to City Council during a work session on Wednesday, February 14" at 9:00 am
in City Hall Council Chambers. The properties include Birch Field, Customs House, Post Office
Park, and Tide Rock Park. Parks Board members would receive a copy of the agenda packet
for that meeting. She confirmed that selling excess park properties was a City Council goal and
that the Parks Master Plan did not recommend specific parks. The Board and Staff shared
details about the four park properties, noting their significance in the community. Post Office
Park and Tide Rock Park have now been adopted, so are no longer underutilized. This would
be a difficult discussion for the community, but considering park sales was part of the larger
effort and need to decrease expenses and increase revenue.

Staff Reports and Upcoming Events
The following reports were presented to the Board as part of the agenda packet:
A. Maintenance
B. Aquatic Center
C. Recreation
D. Lil Sprouts/Port of Play

Future Meetings
. February 28, 2018 at 6:45 am in City Hall, Council Chambers
« March 28, 2018 at 6:45 am in City Hall, Council Chambers

Non-Agenda/Miscellaneous Business

1. Director Cosby gave an explanation of the Facebook analytics, noting the differences between
impressions, likes, hits and other data.

2. President Hernandez shared words of encouragement and appreciation for the Board and
Staff.

Next meeting will be held Wednesday, February 28, 2018 at 6:45 am at City Hall in City
Council Chambers.



 CITY OF ASTORIA

Fourled 1811 » inooporohsd 1686

MEMORANDUM  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

DATE: FEBRUARY 13, 2018
TO: AYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
FROM: \; BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER

SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING AND ORDINANCE: AMENDMENT A 17-02 BY
GARRY VALLASTER, ASTOR VENTURE, LLC, REPRESENTED BY
JENNIFER BUNCH, DOA WICKIUP CONSULTING, LLC, FOR A MAP
AMENDMENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT CODE TO CHANGE ZONING
FROM ATTACHED HOUSING-MILL POND (AH-MP) TO LOCAL
SERVICE (LS) ON APPROXIMATELY 1.04 ACRES (45,452 SQ. FT.)
OF LAND, AND ALSO A TEXT AMENDMENT TO REMOVE CERTAIN
USES FROM THE LS ZONE BETWEEN 23RD AND 29TH STREETS
NORTH OF MARINE DRIVE. THE INTENT IS TO CONSTRUCT A
RETAIL GROCERY THAT WILL ACCOMMODATE THE EXPANSION
OF THE ASTORIA CO-OP GROCERY

BACKGROUND

On January 24, 2018, the Planning Commission voted to recommend the approval of the
proposed map and text amendment for the Astoria Coop. Mr. Vallaster is the owner of the
property at 2350 Marine Drive, the previously proposed site of the Wauna Credit Union and the
Clatsop Care medical facility. The map and text amendment would enable the construction of
the new Astoria Coop.

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS

A comprehensive discussion of the proposal is included in the staff report and findings provided
by the applicant. These findings include the summary of the Traffic Impact Study prepared by
the engineering firm DKS. The findings also include an analysis of the impact of the proposal
on the buildable lands inventory.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the City Council review the record of the Planning Commission hearing,
take testimony at the March 5" public hearing, and consider the Planning Commission’s

recommendation. j’?
BTM A W,
7 7 A A &

Mike Morgan, Interim Planner

Attachment: Staff Report and Ordinance



TABLE OF CONTENTS

AMENDMENT REQUEST A17-02
BY
GARRY VALLASTER, ASTOR VENTURE, LLC REPRESENTED BY
JENNIFER BUNCH, DBA WICKIUP CONSULTING, LLC, FOR A MAP
AMENDMENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT CODE TO CHANGE ZONING
FROM ATTACHED HOUSING-MILL POND (AH-MP) TO LOCAL
SERVICE (LS) ON APPROXIMATELY 1.04 ACRES (45,452 SQ. FT.) OF
LAND, AND ALSO A TEXT AMENDMENT TO REMOVE CERTAIN
USES FROM THE LS ZONE BETWEEN 23RD AND 29TH STREETS
NORTH OF MARINE DRIVE. THE INTENT IS TO CONSTRUCT A
RETAIL GROCERY THAT WILL ACCOMMODATE THE EXPANSION
OF THE ASTORIA CO-OP GROCERY

SECTION

PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT
STAFF REPORT AND ORDER

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

CORRESPONDENCE & MISCELLANEOUS DOCUMENTS
PUBLIC NOTICES

APPLICATION FORM

PROPOSED ORDINANCE

POWERPOINT PRESENTATION



2-9-18

PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT

Staff Report and Findings of Fact for approval of an Amendment Request
(A17-02) by Garry Don Vallaster, Astor Venture LLC, Garry Vallaster,
Astor Venture, LLC, represented by Jennifer Bunch, dba Wickiup Consulting,
LLC, for a map amendment to the Development Code to change zoning from
Attached Housing-Mill Pond (AH-MP) to Local Service (LS) on approximately
1.04 acres (45,452 sq. ft.) of land, and also a text amendment to remove certain
uses from the LS Zone between 23" and 29" Streets north of Marine Drive,
Astoria, Oregon 97103.



STAFF REPORT AND FINDINGS OF FACT

February 9, 2018

TO: ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL

FROM: MIKE MORGAN, INTERIM PLANNER

SUBJECT: AMENDMENT REQUEST (A17-02) BY GARRY DON VALLASTER, ASTOR
VENTURE LLC, FOR A MAP AND TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE

DEVELOPMENT CODE TO FACILITATE THE CONSTRUCTION OF A RETAIL
GROCERY STORE IN THE LOCAL SERVICE (LS) ZONE.

L. BACKGROUND SUMMARY

A. Applicant: Jennifer Bunch, Wickiup Consulting, on behalf of Garry Don
Vallaster, Astor Venture, LLC, property owner.

B. Request: To amend the zoning map and development code to allow the
construction by the Astoria Coop. The amendment changes the
zoning on 1.04 acres from Attached Housing — Mill Pond (AH-MP)
to Local Service (LS). In addition, a text amendment is proposed
to remove certain uses from the LS zone between 23 and 29t
streets north of Marine Drive.

C: Owner: Astor Venture, LLC Garry Don Vallaster
C. Location: Northeast corner of 23 and Marine Drive
D. Zone: AH-MP/LS West half of tax lot 899CB 6803
E. Previous Applications: The site was planned for the Wauna Credit Union
(1999-2000) and the Clatsop Care facility (2010-2012), neither of which began
construction.
I BACKGROUND

The property was part of the Mill Pond redevelopment project, initiated by the City of
Astoria and Venerable Properties beginning in 1997/1998. The larger area is
designated Attached Housing-Mill Pond (AH-MP) around the Mill Pond from 23" to
29t streets, and extending from the river south to Marine Drive. Development within
the zone has been exclusively residential to date, with single family dwellings
surrounding the mill pond and affordable multifamily apartments situated along Marine
Drive. There have been several attempts in the past to develop this lot for non-
residential uses, including a credit union and a medical facility. The AH-MP zone

1

T:\General CommDev\CC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



permits retail uses as a conditional use, but not in excess of 6000 s.f. In discussions
with the applicant, staff determined that it would be more appropriate to extend the
Local Service (LS) zone to the east, where retail sales are permitted outright, and to
add some restrictions regulating the size.

A summary table of the code revisions can be found on Attachment 1. In addition, the
property lies within the Gateway Overlay Zone and Civic Greenway Overlay Zone.

Proposed
LS Zone
45452 SQ. FT.

2
T:\General CommDev\CC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS _AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes _post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



HEL

PUBLIC REVIEW AND COMMENT

Planning Commission

A public notice was mailed to surrounding property owners and interested
parties on December 29, 2017. In accordance with Section 9.020, a notice of
public hearing was published in the Daily Astorian on January 17, 2018. The
Planning Commission held a public hearing on January 24, 2018, and voted to
recommend the map and text amendment to the City Council with conditions.
The public notice for the March 5, 2018 City Council meeting was published on
February 26, 2018. The proposed amendments are quasi-judicial since they
apply to a specific and discreet area. Comments received will be included in the
Council packet and made available at the March 5 meeting. The Department of
Land Conservation and Development received the required 35 day notice on
December 21, 2017.

FINDINGS OF FACT

A. Development Code Section 10.020(A) states that “an amendment to the text of
the Development Code or the Comprehensive Plan may be initiated by the City
Council, Planning Commission, the Community Development Director, a person
owning property in the City, or a City resident.”

Finding: The proposed amendment to the Development Code is being initiated
by the applicant, Jennifer Bunch on behalf of Astor Venture LLC.

B. Quasi-judicial Amendments.

The following amendment actions are considered quasi-judicial under this Code:

1. A zone change that affects a limited area or a limited number of property
owners.

Finding: Forty-six surrounding properties were noticed for this amendment.

10.060. PROCEDURES.

Public notice and procedures of zoning amendments shall be in accordance with
Article 9.

10.070. AMENDMENT CRITERIA.

A. Text Amendment.

Before an amendment to the text of the Code is approved, findings will be made that
the following criteria are satisfied:

3

T:\General CommDeWCC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02 _LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



1. The amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

2. The amendment will not adversely affect the ability of the City to satisfy land
and water use needs.

B. Map Amendment.

Before an amendment to a zone boundary is approved, findings will be made that the
following criteria are satisfied:

1. The amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
2. The amendment will:
a. Satisfy land and water use needs; or

b. Meet transportation demands. The amendment shall be reviewed to
determine whether it significantly affects a transportation facility pursuant
to Section -0060 of Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 660-012, the
Transportation Planning Rule (TPR). When the City, in consultation with
the applicable roadway authority, finds that a proposed amendment
would have a significant effect on a transportation facility, the City shall
work with the roadway authority and applicant to modify the request or
mitigate the impacts in accordance with the TPR and applicable law; or

C. Provide community facilities and services.

3. The land is physically suitable for the uses to be allowed, in terms of slope,
geologic stability, flood hazard and other relevant considerations.

4. Resource lands, such as wetlands are protected.

5. The amendment is compatible with the land use development pattern in the
vicinity of the request.

Finding: The proposed amendment is to amend the map and text of the Astoria
Development Code to facilitate the construction of the Astoria Coop grocery.
Processing as a quasi-judicial action is necessary because the area to be
rezoned is relatively small. Forty-six properties were included in the public
notice. The request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan in that it will not
adversely affect the ability of the City to satisfy land and water use needs. A
grocery provides a fundamental community service in a residential area, and it
will utilize an acre of land in a prominent location that is accessible by foot,
bicycle or car. The proposal meets transportation demands as described in the

4
T:AGeneral CommDev\CC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoQOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



Traffic Impact Study dated October 13, 2017 as detailed in findings submitted
by the applicant, which is Attachment 1. The land is physically suitable and
contains no wetlands or resource lands. The amendment is compatible with the
tand use development pattern in the vicinity. The proposed site is bordered on
the west by a gas station and mini-mart, on the south by the Columbia Memorial
Hospital complex, and on the west by a multifamily housing complex. A vacant
site will remain to the east of the proposed zone change for future development.
Single family housing is located on the north side of Steam Whistle Way, where
the houses’ garages border the street.

1. CP.005(5) concerning General Plan Philosophy and Policy Statement
states that local comprehensive plans “Shall be regularly reviewed, and,
if necessary, revised fo keep them consistent with the changing needs
and desires of the public they are designed to serve.”

Finding: The Comprehensive Plan and Development Code establish
specific uses allowed in each zone.

2. CP.015(1) concerning General Land and Water Use Goals states that “/t
is the primary goal of the Comprehensive Plan fo maintain Astoria's
existing character by encouraging a compact urban form, by
strengthening the downtown core and waterfront areas, and by
protecting the residential and historic character of the City's
neighborhoods. If is the intent of the plan to promote Astoria as the
commercial, industrial, fourist, and culfural center of the area.”

CP. 015(2) concerning General Land and Water Use Goals states that “/f
is a goal of the plan to encourage the development of public and private
lands within the city limits, particularly areas that are presently serviced
with sewer and water, prior to the extension of public facilities fo areas
outside the City.”

Finding: The City, State and private interests have invested heavily in
the Mill Pond development. This area is one of the last opportunities for
a retail use in the Mill Pond that provides goods and services for the
surrounding community in the heart of town. The site is fully serviced by
sewer, water, storm drainage and other utilities. Development of the site
with a significant new retail use will contribute to the compact urban form.
The use will serve Mill Pond residents as well as tourists and medical
workers in the hospital campus. Additionally, it will be part of the
gateway to the downtown area.

D. Statewide Planning Goal 12 concerning Transportation requires that cities
review transportation related issues when considering land use amendments.
Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) Section 660-012-0060(1) concerning
Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) - Plan and Land Use Regulation

5
T:AGeneral CommDeWCC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



V.

Amendments stated that “Where an amendment fo a functional plan, an
acknowledged comprehensive plan, or a land use regulation would significantly
affect an existing or planned transportation facility, the local government shall
put in place measures as provided in Section (2) of this rule to assure that
allowed land uses are consistent with the identified function, capacity, and
performance standards (e.g. level of service, volume to capacity ratio, etc.) of
the facility. . .”

Finding: A traffic impact study was prepared by the engineering firm DKS and
concluded that there is no negative impact on the transportation facility (the
streets or highway) as a result of the development. ODOT and the City
Engineering Department have reviewed the DKS Traffic Impact Study and have
determined that the proposal is consistent with the City’s Transportation
Systems Plan and ODOT standards. A detailed summary of the DKS report has
been supplied by the applicant. (Attachment 1)

Section 10.070(A)(2) requires that “The amendment will not adversely affect the
ability of the City to safisfy land and water use needs.”

Finding: The City conducted a Buildable Lands Inventory (BLI) which was
adopted in 2011. The report concluded,

“A comparison of need and supply of industrial and other employment lands
indicates an overall surplus of approximately 6.7 acres of employment land.
While there is sufficient land for industrial uses, there is a deficit of land zoned
for commercial and particularly retail use. However, a portion of the land
identified as “Other” can accommodate specific commercial, industrial, and
high-density residential development and help meet the need for additional
commercial land.” *

The proposed map amendment would remove approximately 1.04 acres
(45,452 sq. ft.) from the AH-MP residential zone and transfer it to the LS
commercial zone. The change would not significantly impact the supply of either
commercial or residential land. The demonstrated needs according to the BLI
are listed below. Although the use will eliminate this area from the inventory
available for multifamily housing, there are still 52 acres in the R-3 zone and 23
acres in the R-2 zone that are available for multifamily housing.

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

The request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Development Code. The
attached findings of fact supplied by the applicant are included in this report.

1 Goal 9 Analysis ~ City of Astoria Buildable Lands Inventory (2011), Page 1

6

T:AGeneral CommDeW\CC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02 LS AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed map and text
amendments after the public hearing, review, and adoption of ordinance ,
including the following conditions:

1. If the proposed project by the Astoria Co-op has not begun substantial construction
within two years of the enactment of the amendment, the City shall initiate a rezoning
process to rezone the property or site to its original AH-MP (Attached Housing-Mill
Pond) Zone designation or other appropriate zone.

2. The applicant shall submit a Lot Line Adjustment, survey, and legal description of
the property prior to obtaining building permits.

7
T:\General CommDe\CC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



FINDINGS OF FACT SUBMITTED BY THE APPLICANT

Attachment 1:

INTRODUCTION

The property that is the subject of this application is located at the northeast corner of Marine Drive
(US 30) and 23" Street in Astoria and is part of a larger development known as the Mill Pond Village.
The area once was home to a 16-acre lumber mill site from 1870 to 1989. During operation of the mill
the site had been contaminated with various pollutants and by 1994 was declared a brownfield site.
After cleanup the site was developed for mixed use and a village-like atmosphere.

The Astoria Co-op Grocery (Co-op) opened its first storefront in Astoria in 1974, founded by a small
group dedicated to organic and natural foods. Since opening the store has relocated twice, most
recently in 2008 to a 3,100-square foot space at 14" and Exchange with off-street parking. In less than
five years after relocating sales had doubled and it was clear that the Co-op was outgrowing its space.
In 2013, the Co-op began exploring the idea of relocation and expansion which would be necessary to
stay competitive with corporate grocery store offerings.

The Co-op has teamed with property owner, Astor Venture LLC, to pursue the construction of a new
building at the 23™ and Marine location. The current AH-MP (Attached Housing-Mill Pond) zone of
the property limits retail structures to 6,000 square feet. The application proposes to rezone 45,452
square feet of the parcel from the Attached Housing- Mill Pond (AH-MP) zone to the Local Service
(LS) zone. This would allow development of an almost 11,600 square foot retail grocery. The
remainder of the parcel, approximately 31,508 square feet will remain in the AH-MP zone.

The application also proposes to amend the text of the LS zone to remove uses that would be
considered incompatible with the Mill Pond development. The Applicant has worked closely with
City of Astoria staff to develop language that will prohibit the gas station, business services
establishment, and transportation services establishment uses from being developed between 23 and
29t Streets, north of Marine Drive.

PROPOSED MAP AMENDMENT

L@

7
v

T\Ger=s Ciady s { _ 1S Zone
02 LSuE ot s ; L0 45,452 SQ. FT.



Figure 2: Current Zoning (City of Astoria GIS)

Figure 3: Proposed Zoning

) 9 B
T:\General CommDev\CC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENT

LS ZONE

2.976. USES PERMITTED OUTRIGHT.

The following uses and their accessory uses are permitted in an LS Zone if the Community
Development Director determines that the uses will not violate standards referred to in Sections 2.978
through 2.981, additional Development Code provisions, the Comprehensive Plan, and other City laws:

1.

A

|98}

9.

Bed and breakfast or inn.
Home occupation, which satisfies requirements in Section 3.095.
Personal service establishment.

Residential facility, located above or below the first floor, with permitted commercial facilities
on the first floor of the structure.

Residential home, located above or below the first floor, with permitted commercial facilities
on the first floor of the structure.

Retail sales establishment. (East of 23™ Street. retail sales establishment greater than 14,000
gross square feet shall include a minimum of 50% of gross floor area devoted to multi-family
dwellings located above the first floor.)

Repair service establishment not exceeding 3,000 square feet gross floor area.

Single-family, two-family and multi-family dwelling, located above or below the first floor,
with permitted commercial facilities on the first floor of the structure.

Transportation facilities.

2.977. CONDITIONAL USES PERMITTED.

The following uses and their accessory uses are permitted in a LS Zone if the Planning Commission,
after a public hearing, determines that the location and development plans comply with applicable
standards referred to in Sections 2.978 through 2.981, additional Development Code provisions, the
Comprehensive Plan, and other City laws:

1.

Business service establishment. (Not allowed on properties between 23rd and 29th Street north
of Marine Drive.)

Day care center.

Eating and drinking establishment without drive-through facility.

10

T:\General CommDev\CC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post_ APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



4. Family day care center.

5. Gasoline service station. (Not allowed on properties between 23rd and 29th Street north of
Marine Drive.)

6.  Public or semi-public use.
7. Restaurant as an accessory use to an Inn. See Section 3.230.
8.  Temporary use meeting the requirements of Section 3.240.

9. Transportation service establishment. (Not allowed on properties between 23rd and 29th Street
north of Marine Drive.)

2.980. HEIGHT OF STRUCTURES.

No structure will exceed a height of 35 feet above grade.

11
T:\General CommDeWCC\Amendments\A17-02 Asforia Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoQOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



A. ZONING MAP AMENDMENT FINDINGS

Section 10.070.B Amendment Criteria — Map Amendment

1. The amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

CP.030 — CP.105 Area Descriptions and Policies

CP.057 Gateway Overlay Area
CP.058 Gateway Overlay Area Policies
1. The City will utilize the general vision of the Gateway Master Plan to direct future development in the
Gateway Overlay Area. The overall Comprehensive Plan objectives are to:

¢. promote new land uses complementary to the riverfront and existing development, particularly
visitor oriented uses and high-density housing;

Applicant Finding: The proposed amendment will allow development of a grocery which will serve not only
those living nearby in high-density housing but also those throughout Astoria, living in nearby communities
and traveling through the area.

4. The former Astoria Plywood Mill Site will be developed as a mixed-use development which will
complement the Gateway Overlay Area and the Downtown Area, and provide new housing
opportunities. The Gateway Master Plan will serve as a guideline for the development of the Mill Site.
Variations from the Gateway Master Plan may be appropriate provided the overall development
proposal substantially carries out the Gateway Master Plan objectives.

Applicant Finding: The proposed map amendment is consistent with the policy of mixed-use development at
the Mill Pond site. The amendment is proposed to allow a specific development that will co-exist and
complement the existing uses surrounding the mill pond by providing a transition zone from the surrounding
commercial and industrial uses. As demonstrated in Table 1, the LS Zone provides a logical transition from the
adjacent C3 commercial zone across Marine Drive which permits more intense commercial and light industrial
uses, to the AH-MP Zone of the mill pond area, that is primarily focused on high-density housing with a lower
impact commercial component.

12
T:\General CommDevV\CC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02 _LS AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx




Table 1: Allowed Uses

Zoning Comparison ~ Current Zone Proposed Zone Adjacent Zone
Uses . AHMP | LS (Amended) c3
Arts/Crafts Studio Outright , .
Family Day Care Center Outright Conditional Outright
Home Occupation Outright Outright Outright
SFD Outright Outright w/ commercial use
Two Family Dwelling Outright Outright w/ commercial use Outright w/ commercial use
Multi Family Dwelling Outright Outright w/ commercial use Outright
Personal Services Outright Outright Outright
Professional Services Outright . Outright
Residential Home Outright Outright . '
Residential Facility Outright Outright Outright
Transportation Facilities Outright Outright Outright
Bed and Breakfast or Inn Conditional Outright . .
Day Care Center Conditional Conditional Conditional
Eating/Drinking Establishment Conditional Conditional '
Pubic or Semi-Public Use Conditional Conditional
Restaurant associated w/ Inn Conditional Conditional
Retail Sales <6000 sq ft Conditional Outright Outright
Retail Sales >6000 sq ft . Outright Outright
Repair Services <3000 sq ft Outright Outright
Business Services Establishment - Outright
Gasoline Service Station Conditional
Transportation Service Estab. Outright
Commercial Laundry/Dry Clean Outright
Off street Parking Outright
Communcation Services Estab Outright
Construction Services Estab Outright
Educational Services Estab Outright
Hotel, Motel, Tourist Lodging Outright
Conference Center Outright
Indoor Family Entertainment Outright
Animal Hospital/kennel Conditional
Auto sales/service Conditional
Hospital Conditional
Light Manufacturing Conditional
Recycling Estab Conditional
Wholesale Warehouse Conditional

CP.068 Astoria Riverfront Vision Overlay Area Policies

2. Encourage a mix of uses that supports Astoria's "'working waterfront" and the City's economy. The
overall Comprehensive Plan objectives are to:
a. Allow for development that supports downtown and other commercial areas.

13
T:\General CommDev\CC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



Applicant Findings: As the Co-op becomes a full-line grocer it is anticipated that additional customers will be
drawn from outside the current service area. As a result, visits to Astoria and its downtown core and other
commercial areas should increase.

b. Limit development in areas with most significant impacts on open space, view or other
resources.

Applicant Findings: The proposal seeks to amend the base zone but not to remove the existing overlay zones
that protect open space and view corridors. Application of the overlay and LS development standards during
design review will ensure consistency with this policy.

c. Promote uses that provide jobs and support the local economy.

Applicant Findings: Currently the Co-op employs 25 local workers. At the new location, it is anticipated that
an additional 35-40 local jobs will be added. Having seen an increase of sales by almost 20% in 2016, the
expansion will allow additional access, parking and visibility which will only serve to increase and support the
local economy. In a 2012 study? by the National Co-op Grocers, it was found that $0.38 of every dollar spent at
a food co-op is reinvested in the local economy as compared to $0.24 from conventional grocers.

CP.110—-CP.125 Urban Growth

Applicant Findings: This element does not contain applicable policies.

CP.130—CP.186 Aguatic and Shoreland

CP.170 Downtown Astoria Sub-Area Plan

Applicant Findings: The subject property is located within the Downtown Sub-Area; however, this section does
not contain applicable policies.

CP.190 - CP.210 Economic Element

CP.200 Economic Development Goal 1 and Goal 1 Policies
Goal: The City of Astoria will strengthen improve, and diversify the area's economy to increase local
employment opportunities.

Policies:
1. Encourage, support, and assist existing businesses.
4. Encourage private development such as retail, restaurants, commercial services, transient lodging.

Applicant Findings: The Co-op estimates an increase of 35-40 additional jobs with the expansion. Approval of
the zoning map amendment would be consistent with Policies 1 and 4.

CP.207. Economic Development Goal 8 and Goal 8 Policies.
Goal: Be prepared for business growth with ready properties.

2 Health Foods Healthy Communities: The Social and Economic Impacts of Food Co-ops (2012)

14
T:\General CommDeWCC\Amendments\A17-02 Asforia Coop Rezoning\A17-
02 LS AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx




Policies:

1) Support the development and maintenance of property inventory.

2) Maintain an adequate supply of vacant commercial, industrial and waterfront development property to
provide for the economic growth of the community.

3) Ensure an adequate supply of employment lands with areas large enough to meet the objectives needed
for commercial uses, but not so large as to affect adjacent residential neighborhoods.

Applicant Findings: The City conducted a Buildable Lands Inventory (BLI) which was adopted in 2011. The
report concluded,

“A comparison of need and supply of industrial and other employment lands indicates an overall surplus of
approximately 6.7 acres of employment land. While there is sufficient land for industrial uses, there is a deficit
of land zoned for commercial and particularly retail use. However, a portion of the land identified as “Other”
can accommodate specific commercial, industrial, and high-density residential development and help meet the
need for additional commercial land.” 3

The proposed map amendment would remove approximately 1.04 acres (45,452 sq. ft.) from the AH-MP
residential zone and transfer it to the LS commercial zone. The change would not significantly impact the
supply of either commercial or residential land. The demonstrated needs according to the BLI are listed below.

Estimated Net Land Surplus/(Deficit) by Zoning Designation, Astoria UGB, 2027

Table 2
Type of Use R1 R2 R3 AH-MP Total
Land Need 1154 51.2 67.0 2 236.4
Land Supply 25.20 74.99 119.18 1.49 220.86
Surplus/(Deficit) (90.20) 23.79 52.18 (1.21) (15.54)
Source: Wingard Planning & Development Services
Table 3
Growth Type of Use Commercial | Industrial/Other Total
Scenario (Office/Retail)
Medium Land Need 38.2 11.5 49.7
Land Supply 17.1 39.3 56.4
Surplus/(Deficit) | Surplus/(Deficit) (21.1) 27.8 6.7
Source: Cogan Owens Cogan
CP.215. Housing Element
CP.220. Housing Policies.

2. Provide residential areas with services and facilities necessary for safe, healthful, and convenient urban
living.

3 Goal 9 Analysis — City of Astoria Buildable Lands Inventory (2011), Page 1

18
T:\General CommDev\CC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx




Applicant Findings: The map amendment will support the relocating and expansion of a retail grocery, which

includes increase parking and visibility, will allow additional service and convenience to the citizens of Astoria.

6. Protect neighborhoods from incompatible uses, including large scale commercial, industrial, and public
uses or activities.

Applicant Findings: As demonstrated earlier in Table 1, the uses of the LS zone are not markedly different from

the uses in the AH-MP zone. The proposed amendment would facilitate a retail use that exceeds the square
foot limitation for retail uses in the AH-MP zone. This retail use, Astoria Co-op Grocery, will be developed in a
way not to detract from the neighborhood atmosphere of the Mill Pond. Refer to Figure 4 below for a visual
example of the Co-op project. Prior to construction the development will be subject to City of Astoria Design
Review and applicable development standards. This process will ensure compatibility of the use with the
adjacent Mill Pond area.

‘i BUILDING AXCNOMETRIC

Historic Preservation

CP.260 Parks, Recreation and Open Space Element
CP.290. Public Facilities Element

CP.345. Transportation

CP.375. Air, Water, and Land Quality

CP.390. Geologic and Flood Hazards

CP.405. Energy Conservation

CP.425. Forest Resources

CP.445. Natural Resource Considerations

Figure 1:
Exterior
View

CP.240

Applicant Findings: These elements do not contain applicable policies.

T:\General CommDev\CC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx

16




CP.465. Procedural and Participation Policies

Applicant Findings: This section does not contain applicable policies for the applicant to address. j

CRITERIA #1 - CONCLUSION: Based on these findings the zoning map amendment is consistent
with the applicable comprehensive plan polices. Therefore, Criteria #1 is satisfied.

2. The amendment will:

a. Satisfy land and water use needs; or

b. Meet transportation demands; or

c. Provide community facilities and services.

Applicant Findings: The proposed amendment will provide needed land for a retail use that is similar to what is
currently allowed in the AH-MP zone yet not as intense as adjacent commercial and light industrial uses. The
expansion of the Astoria Co-op Grocery will satisfy land and water use needs.

CRITERIA #2 - CONCLUSION: Based on these findings the amendment will satisfy land and
water use needs. Therefore, Criteria #2 is satisfied.

3. The land is physically suitable for the uses to be allowed, in terms of slope,
geologic stability, flood hazard and other relevant considerations.

Applicant Findings: The site is relatively flat and contains no known geological hazards. The site is within
FEMA Flood Zone X?, outside the annual 0.2% chance of flood and is therefore suitable based on physical
conditions. The criterion is met.

CRITERIA #3 - CONCLUSION: Based on these findings the land is physically suitable for the uses
to be allowed. Therefore, Criteria #3 is satisfied.

4. Resource lands, such as wetlands are protected.

Iipplicant Findings: There are no known wetlands or resource lands on the site. This criterion does not apply.

CRITERIA #4 - CONCLUSION: There are no known wetland or resource lands on the site.
Therefore, Criteria #4 does not apply.

5. The amendment is compatible with the land use development pattern in the
vicinity of the request.

4 NFIP FIRM Panel 41007C0299E (adopted 9/17/2010)
17

T:\General CommDev\CC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post_ APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



Applicant Findings: The site is situated in a transition area between the residentially and commercially
developed areas and could be a cohesive part of either development area. Due to its proximity to dwellings
and adjacent commercial district along Marine Drive, the Local Service zone would be more consistent with a
desired transition zone yet compatible with the adjacent development patterns. Refer to Figure 5.

Subject
Propert

Figure 2: Aerial Photo ©Google 2017

CRITERIA #4 - CONCLUSION: Based on these findings the proposed amendment is compatible
with the land use development pattern in the vicinity of the request. Therefore, Criteria #5 is satisfied.

18
T:\General CommDev\CC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx




The following findings are from the Traffic Impact Analysis and Transportation Planning Rule Assessment for
Proposed Astoria Co-op Grocery Store. Prepared by DKS Associates, October 2017, Table 9, Pages 24-28. The
report is attached as Exhibit 1.

Statewide Planning Goal 12: Transportation
Transportation Planning Rule - OAR 660-012-0060

1. If anamendment to a functional plan, an acknowledged comprehensive plan, or a land use regulation
{including a zoning map) would significantly affect an existing or planned transportation facility, then the
local government must put in place measures as provided in section (2} of this rule, unless the amendment
is allowed under section {3), (9) or {10) of this rule. A plan or land use regulation amendment significantly
affects a transportation facility if it would:

TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: No transportation facilities are significantly affected under these or other
subsections. See below.

a. Change the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation facility {exclusive of
correction of map errors in an adopted plan);

TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: No changes to the functional classification of transportation facilities were required
with the proposed project.

b. Change standards implementing a functional classification system; or

l TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: No facility standards were impacted with the proposed project.

c. Result in any of the effects listed in paragraphs (A) through (C) of this subsection based on projected
conditions measured at the end of the planning period identified in the adopted TSP. As part of
evaluating projected conditions, the amount of traffic projected to be generated within the area of the
amendment may be reduced if the amendment includes an enforceable, ongoing requirement that
would demonstrably limit traffic generation, including, but not limited to, transportation demand
management. This reduction may diminish or completely eliminate the significant effect of the
amendment.

TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: Table 8 documents projected conditions measured at the end of the planning
period identified in the adopted TSP, The amendment does not include any enforceable, ongoing requirements
that would demonstrably limit traffic generation.

(A) Types or levels of travel or access that are inconsistent with the functional classification of an
existing or planned transportation facility;

TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: Types and levels of travel and access expected on existing and planned
transportation facilities are consistent with their functional classifications.

19
T:\General CommDeWCC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS _AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



{B) Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility such that it would not
meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan; or

TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: The proposed plan amendments do not degrade the performance of an existing or
planned transportation facility such that it would not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or
comprehensive plan. The transportation analysis in Table 8 demonstrates that the intersection that would not
be expected to meet mobility targets under the Code Amendment Scenario was also identified in the TSP
Baseline Scenario. This intersection will be improved with a project included in the TSP; the performance will
be unchanged or improved rather than degraded.

(C)} Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility that is otherwise
projected to not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan.

TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: The proposed plan amendment does not degrade the performance of an existing or
planned transportation facility that is otherwise projected to not meet the performance standards identified in
the TSP or comprehensive plan. The transportation analysis in Table 8 demonstrates that the intersection that
would not be expected to meet mobility targets under the Code Amendment Scenario was also identified in
the TSP Baseline Scenario, with unchanged performance at the intersection with the proposed project.

2. If alocal government determines that there would be a significant effect, then the local government must
ensure that allowed land uses are consistent with the identified function, capacity, and performance
standards of the facility measured at the end of the planning period identified in the adopted TSP through
one or a combination of the remedies listed in (a) through (e) below, unless the amendment meets the
balancing test in subsection (2){e) of this section or qualifies for partial mitigation in section (11) of this
rule. A local government using subsection (2){e), section (3), section (10) or section (11) to approve an
amendment recognizes that additional motor vehicle traffic congestion may result and that other facility
providers would not be expected to provide additional capacity for motor vehicles in response to this
congestion.

ﬁA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A; there will not be a significant effect.

a. Adopting measures that demonstrate allowed land uses are consistent with the planned function,
capacity, and performance standards of the transportation facility.

HA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

b. Amending the TSP or comprehensive plan to provide transportation facilities, improvements or
services adequate to support the proposed land uses consistent with the requirements of this division;
such amendments shall include a funding plan or mechanism consistent with section (4) or include an
amendment to the transportation finance plan so that the facility, improvement, or service will be
provided by the end of the planning period.

ﬁA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

20
T:\General CommDeV\CC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS _AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes _post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



¢.  Amending the TSP to modify the planned function, capacity or performance standards of the
transportation facility.

| TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

d. Providing other measures as a condition of development or through a development agreement or
similar funding method, including, but not limited to, transportation system management measures or
minor transportation improvements. Local governments shall, as part of the amendment, specify when
measures or improvements provided pursuant to this subsection will be provided.

| TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

e. Providing improvements that would benefit modes other than the significantly affected mode,
improvements to facilities other than the significantly affected facility, or improvements at other
locations, if the provider of the significantly affected facility provides a written statement that the
system-wide benefits are sufficient to balance the significant effect, even though the improvements
would not result in consistency for all performance standards.

[ TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

3. Notwithstanding sections (1) and {2) of this rule, a local government may approve an amendment that
would significantly affect an existing transportation facility without assuring that the allowed land uses are
consistent with the function, capacity and performance standards of the facility where:

l TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A; there will not be a significant effect.

a. Inthe absence of the amendment, planned transportation facilities, improvements and services as set
forth in section (4) of this rule would not be adequate to achieve consistency with the identified
function, capacity or performance standard for that facility by the end of the planning period identified
in the adopted TSP.

| TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

b. b. Development resulting from the amendment will, at a minimum, mitigate the impacts of the
amendment in a manner that avoids further degradation to the performance of the facility by the time
of the development through one or a combination of transportation improvements or measures.

| TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

¢. The amendment does not involve property located in an interchange area as defined in paragraph

(4)(d)(C).

| TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

d. For affected state highways, ODOT provides a written statement that the proposed funding and timing
for the identified mitigation improvements or measures are, at a minimum, sufficient to avoid further
21

T:\General CommDeWCC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02 LS _AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



degradation to the performance of the affected state highway. However, if a local government
provides the appropriate ODOT regional office with written notice of a proposed amendment in a
manner that provides ODOT reasonable opportunity to submit a written statement into the record of
the local government proceeding, and ODOT does not provide a written statement, then the local
government may proceed with applying subsections (a) through (¢} of this section.

) TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

4. Determinations under sections (1)—(3) of this rule shall be coordinated with affected transportation facility
and service providers and other affected local governments.

l TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: The transportation analysis was coordinated with the City of Astoria and ODOT.

a. Indetermining whether an amendment has a significant effect on an existing or planned
transportation facility under subsection {1){c) of this rule, local governments shall rely on existing
transportation facilities and services and on the planned transportation facilities, improvements and
services set forth in subsections (b} and {c) below.

TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: As described further below, the analysis relies on existing transportation facilities
and services that meet the criteria in subsections (b} and (c). No planned transportation facilities were
assumed.

b. Outside of interstate interchange areas, the following are considered planned facilities, improvements
and services:

(A) Transportation facilities, improvements or services that are funded for construction or
implementation in the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program or a locally or
regionally adopted transportation improvement program or capital improvement plan or
program of a transportation service provider.

(B) Transportation facilities, improvements or services that are authorized in a local
transportation system plan and for which a funding plan or mechanism is in place or
approved. These include, but are not limited to, transportation facilities, improvements or
services for which: transportation systems development charge revenues are being
collected; a local improvement district or reimbursement district has been established or
will be established prior to development; a development agreement has been adopted; or
conditions of approval to fund the improvement have been adopted.

(C) Transportation facilities, improvements or services in a metropolitan planning
organization (MPO) area that are part of the area's federally-approved, financially
constrained regional transportation system plan.

(D) Improvements to state highways that are included as planned improvements in a
regional or local transportation system plan or comprehensive plan when ODOT
provides a written statement that the improvements are reasonably likely to be provided
by the end of the planning period.

(E) Improvements to regional and local roads, streets or other transportation facilities or
services that are included as planned improvements in a regional or local transportation
system plan or comprehensive plan when the local government(s) or transportation
service provider(s) responsible for the facility, improvement or service provides a written

22
T:\General CommDeV\CC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



statement that the facility, improvement or service is reasonably likely to be provided by
the end of the planning period.

| TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: No planned transportation projects were assumed.

& Within interstate interchange areas, the improvements included in (b)(A)—(C) are
considered planned facilities, improvements and services, except where:

(A) ODOT provides a written statement that the proposed funding and timing of mitigation
measures are sufficient to avoid a significant adverse impact on the Interstate Highway
system, then local governments may also rely on the improvements identified in
paragraphs (b)(D) and (E) of this section; or

(B). There is an adopted interchange area management plan, then local governments may
also rely on the improvements identified in that plan and which are also identified in
paragraphs (b)(D) and (E) of this section.

l TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A. The project site is outside of interstate interchange areas.

5. The presence of a transportation facility or improvement shall not be a basis for an exception to
allow residential, commercial, institutional or industrial development on rural lands under this division
or OAR 660-004-0022 and 660-004-0028.

TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: The proposed amendment does not include an exceptlon to allow development on
rural lands; therefore, this section is not applicable.

TPR - CONCLUSION: Based on the results of the Traffic Impact Analysis and these findings the
proposed zoning map amendment will not significantly affect the existing transportation facilities.

CONCLUSION - ZONING MAP AMENDMENT

Based on the findings of this application the proposed zoning map amendment is consistent with the
applicable requirements of the City of Astoria Comprehensive Plan and Development Code as well as
the State of Oregon Goal 12 Transportation Planning Rule.

23
T:\General CommDev\CC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post_ APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



B. TEXT AMENDMENT FINDINGS

Section 10.070.A Amendment Criteria —Text Amendment

1. The amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

£P.010 - CP.028 General Development Policies

Applicant Findings: This section does not contain applicable policies.

CP.030 - CP.105 Area Descriptions & Policies

CP.057. Gateway Overlay Area.
CP.058. Gateway Overlay Area Policies.

1. The City will utilize the general vision of the Gateway Master Plan to direct future development in the
Gateway Overlay Area. The overall Comprehensive Plan objectives are to:

c. promote new land uses complementary to the riverfront and existing development, particularly
visitor oriented uses and high-density housing;

Applicant Findings: The text amendment will allow for uses to complement the high-density housing
as well as visitor oriented uses in the Mill Pond area.

2. The City will maintain the Gateway Overlay Area plan element of the Comprehensive Plan through its
Development Code, including new planning zones and development standards, and through a design
review process.

Applicant Findings: The proposed amendment is consistent with this policy by allowing an existing
zone in the Gateway Overlay area yet taking into consideration the unique characteristics of the Mill
Pond development.

CP.110-CP.105 Urban Growth
CP130 - CP.186 Agquatic and Shoreland

Applicant Findings: These elements do not contain applicable policies.

CP.180 ~ CP.210 Economic Element

CP.200. Economic Development Goal 1 and Goal 1 Policies.

Goal: The City of Astoria will strengthen improve, and diversify the area's economy to increase local
employment opportunities.

24
T:\General CommDevWCC\Amendmenis\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS _AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



1. Encourage, support, and assist existing businesses.

Applicant Findings: Amending the text of the LS zone will allow development of the Co-op yet ensure
uses that may not be desirable near high density house will be not be developed on the site.

CP.215 Housing

CP.240 _ Historic Preservation

CP.260 _ Parks, Recreation and Open Space Element
CP.290. Public Facilities Element

CP.345. Transportation

CP.375. Air, Water, and Land Quality

CP.390. Geologic and Flood Hazards

CP.405. Energy Conservation

CP.425. Forest Resources

CP.445. Natural Resource Considerations

Applicant Findings: These elements do not contain applicable policies.

CRITERIA #1 - CONCLUSION: Based on these findings the text amendment is consistent with the
applicable comprehensive plan polices. Therefore, Criteria #1 is satisfied.

2. The amendment will not adversely affect the ability of the City to satisfy land and water use
needs.

Applicant Findings: This amendment will not adversely affect the ability of the City to satisfy land and water
use needs but will assist in meeting those needs by permitting the Co-op development in the Mill Pond area
that will enhance the atmosphere and provide services for those residing in the area and within the city.

CRITERIA #2 - CONCLUSION: Based on these findings the text amendment will not adversely
affect the ability of the City to satisfy land and water use needs. Therefore, Criteria #2 is satisfied.

CONCLUSION - TEXT AMENDMENT

Based on the findings of this application the proposed text amendment is consistent with the applicable
requirements of the City of Astoria Comprehensive Plan and Development Code.

OVERALL CONCLUSION

The applicant has demonstrated, through the finding contained in the application, that the proposed
zoning map amendment and text amendment are consistent with the applicable requirements.

20
T:\General CommDev\CC\Amendments\A17-02 Astoria Coop Rezoning\A17-
02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN_2-9-18.docx



ORDER

1-24-18 Order A17-02 recommending approval of Amendment (A17-02) by Garry
Vallaster, Astor Venture, LLC, represented by Jennifer Bunch, dba
Wickiup Consulting, LLC, for a map amendment to the Development
Code to change zoning from Attached Housing-Mill Pond (AH-MP) to
Local Service (LS) on approximately 1.04 acres (45,452 sq. ft.) of land,
and also a text amendment to remove certain uses from the LS Zone
between 23" and 29'" Streets north of Marine Drive.

1-25-18 Staff Report and Findings of Fact for approval of Amendment Request
(A17-02).



BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION
OF THE CITY OF ASTORIA

IN THE MATTER OF AN AMENDMENT

FOR THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY: MAP T8N-R9W
SECTION 23RD STREET TO 29TH STREET,;

MARINE DRIVE, ASTORIA OR 97103
ORDER NO. A17-02

LS, LOCAL SERVICE

APPLICANT: GARRY VALLASTER, ASTOR VENTURE, LLC,
REPRESENTED BY JENNIFER BUNCH, DBA WICKIUP

)
)
)
)
%
ZONING: AH-MP, ATTACHED HOUSING-MILL POND )
)
)
)
CONSULTING, LLC, PO BOX 1455, ASTORIA, OR 97103 )

The above named applicant applied to the City for Amendment 17-02 to amend the Land Use
and Zoning Map to rezone an area from AH-MP (Attached Housing-Mill Pond) to LS (Local
Service) on approximately 1.04 acres (45,452 sq. ft.) of land, and also a text amendment to
remove certain uses from the LS Zone between 23 and 29 Streets north of Marine Drive in

Astoria, OR 97103.

A pﬂblic hearing on the above entitled matter was held before the Planning Commission on
-~ lanuary 24, 2018 and the Planning Commission closed the public hearing and rendered a

( ~_.ecision at the January 24, 2018 meeting.

The Planning Commission found the proposed amendment to be necessary and recommends to
the Astoria City Council that the proposed amendment be approved. A copy of the application,
all documents and evidence relied upon by the applicant, the staff report, and applicable criteria
are available for inspection at no cost and will be provided at reasonable cost.

DATE SIGNED: JANUARY 24, 2018 DATE MAILED: '/Z&; / / g /ﬁ{j/S

CITY STORW!NG COMMISSION

T, IR

resident Commissioner

"%—m H%

ommlssmner

Commissioner

Commissioner

9/%%&(}

issioner

T:\General CommDevV\APC\Orders\2018\1-24-1 Sapproval.docx



STAFF REPORT AND FINDINGS OF FACT

January 25, 2018

TO: ASTORIA PLANNING COMMISSION

FROM: MIKE MORGAN, INTERIM PLANNER

SUBJECT: AMENDMENT REQUEST (A17-02) BY GARRY (DON) VALLASTER, ASTOR
VENTURE LLC, FOR A MAP AND TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE

DEVELOPMENT CODE TO FACILITATE THE CONSTRUCTION OF ARETAIL
GROCERY STORE IN THE LOCAL SERVICE (LS) ZONE.

L. BACKGROUND SUMMARY

A. Applicant: Jennifer Bunch, Wickiup Consulting, on behalf of Garry Vallaster,
Astor Venture, LLC, property owner.

B. Request: To amend the zoning map and development code to allow the
construction by the Astoria Coop. The amendment changes the
zoning on 1.04 acres from Attached Housing — Mill Pond (AH-MP)
to Local Service (LS). In addition, a text amendment is proposed
to remove certain uses from the LS zone between 23 and 29t
streets north of Marine Drive.

C: Owner: Astor Venture, LLC Garry (Don) Vallaster
C. Location: Northeast corner of 23 and Marine Drive
D. Zone: AH-MP/LS West half of tax lot 899CB 6803
E. Previous Applications: The site was planned for the Wauna Credit Union
(1999-2000) and the Clatsop Care facility (2010-2012), neither of which began
construction. '
. BACKGROUND

The property was part of the Mill Pond redevelopment project, initiated by the City of
Astoria and Venerable Properties beginning in 1997/1998. The larger area is
designated Attached Housing-Mill Pond (AH-MP) around the Mill Pond from 23" to
29" streets, and extending from the river south to Marine Drive. Development within
the zone has been exclusively residential to date, with single family dwellings
surrounding the mill pond and affordable multifamily apartments situated along Marine
Drive. There have been several attempts in the past to develop this lot for non-
residential uses, including a credit union and a medical facility. The AH-MP zone

1

T:\General CommDeWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN.docx



permits retail uses as a conditional use, but not in excess of 6000 s.f. In discussions
with the applicant, staff determined that it would be more appropriate to extend the
Local Service (LS) zone to the east, where retail sales are permitted outright, and to
add some restrictions regulating the size.

A summary table of the code revisions can be found on Attachment 1. In addition, the
property lies within the Gateway Overlay Zone and Civic Greenway Overlay Zone.

Proposed
LS Zone
45,452 SQ. FT.

2
T:\General CommDeV\APC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
0p.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post_ APC_CLEAN.docx



PUBLIC REVIEW AND COMMENT

Planning Commission

A public notice was mailed to surrounding property owners and interested
parties on December 29, 2017. In accordance with Section 9.020, a notice of
public hearing was published in the Daily Astorian on January 17, 2018. The
proposed amendments are quasi-judicial since they apply to a specific and
discreet area. Any comments received will be made available at the Planning
Commission meeting. The Department of Land Conservation and Development
received the required 35 day notice on December 21, 2017.

FINDINGS OF FACT

A. Development Code Section 10.020(A) states that “an amendment to the text of
the Development Code or the Comprehensive Plan may be initiated by the City
Council, Planning Commission, the Community Development Director, a person
owning property in the City, or a City resident.”

Finding: The proposed amendment to the Development Code is being initiated
by the applicant, Jennifer Bunch on behalf of Astor Venture LLC.

B. Quasi-judicial Amendments.

The following amendment actions are considered quasi-judicial under this Code:

1. A zone change that affects a limited area or a limited number of property
owners.

Finding: Forty-six surrounding properties were noticed for this amendment.

10.060. PROCEDURES.

Public notice and procedures of zoning amendments shall be in accordance with
Article 9.

10.070. AMENDMENT CRITERIA.

A. Text Amendment.

Before an amendment to the text of the Code is approved, findings will be made that
the following criteria are satisfied:

1. The amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

3

T\General CommDeNAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op. 2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_frack_changes_post_APC_CLEAN.docx



B.

2.

The amendment will not adversely affect the ability of the City to satisfy land
and water use needs.

Map Amendment.

Before an amendment to a zone boundary is approved, findings will be made that the
following criteria are satisfied:

1.

2.

The amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
The amendment will:
a. Satisfy land and water use needs; or

b. Meet transportation demands. The amendment shall be reviewed to
determine whether it significantly affects a transportation facility pursuant
to Section -0080 of Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 660-012, the
Transportation Planning Rule (TPR). When the City, in consultation with
the applicable roadway authority, finds that a proposed amendment
would have a significant effect on a transportation facility, the City shall
work with the roadway authority and applicant to modify the request or
mitigate the impacits in accordance with the TPR and applicable law; or

C. Provide community facilities and services.

The land is physically suitable for the uses to be allowed, in terms of slope,
geologic stability, flood hazard and other relevant considerations.

Resource lands, such as wetlands are protected.

The amendment is compatible with the land use development pattern in the
vicinity of the request.

Finding: The proposed amendment is to amend the map and text of the Astoria
Development Code to facilitate the construction of the Astoria Coop grocery.
Processing as a quasi-judicial action is necessary because the area to be
rezoned is relatively small. Forty-six properties were included in the public
notice. The request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan in that it will not
adversely affect the ability of the City to satisfy land and water use needs. A
grocery provides a fundamental community service in a residential area, and it
will utilize an acre of land in a prominent location that is accessible by foot,
bicycle or car. The proposal meets transportation demands as described in the
Traffic Impact Study dated October 13, 2017 as detailed in Attachment 1. The
land is physically suitable and contains no wetlands or resource lands. The
amendment is compatible with the land use development pattern in the vicinity.

4

T:\General CommDeWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN.docx



The proposed site is bordered on the west by a gas station and mini-mart, on
the south by the Columbia Memorial Hospital complex, and on the west by a
multifamily housing complex. A vacant site will remain to the east of the
proposed zone change for future development. Single family housing is located
on the north side of Steam Whistle Way, where the houses’ garages border the
street.

1. CP.005(5) concerning General Plan Philosophy and Policy Statement
states that local comprehensive plans “Shall be regularly reviewed, and,
if necessary, revised to keep them consistent with the changing needs
and desires of the public they are designed to serve.”

Finding: The Comprehensive Plan and Development Code establish
specific uses allowed in each zone.

2. CP.015(1) concerning General Land and Water Use Goals states that “/f
is the primary goal of the Comprehensive Plan to maintain Astoria's
existing character by encouraging a compact urban form, by
strengthening the downtown core and waterfront areas, and by
protecting the residential and historic character of the City's
neighborhoods. It is the intent of the plan fo promote Astoria as the
commercial, industrial, tourist, and cultural center of the area.”

CP. 015(2) concerning General Land and Water Use Goals states that “/f
is a goal of the plan to encourage the development of public and private
lands within the city limits, particularly areas that are presently serviced
with sewer and water, prior to the extension of public facilities to areas
outside the City.”

Finding: The City, State and private interests have invested heavily in
the Mill Pond development. This area is one of the last opportunities for
a retail use in the Mill Pond that provides goods and services for the
surrounding community in the heart of town. The site is fully serviced by
sewer, water, storm drainage and other utilities. Development of the site
with a significant new retail use will contribute to the compact urban form.
The use will serve Mill Pond residents as well as tourists and medical
workers in the hospital campus. Additionally, it will be part of the
gateway to the downtown area.

D. Statewide Planning Goal 12 concerning Transportation requires that cities
review transportation related issues when considering land use amendments.
Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) Section 660-012-0060(1) concerning
Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) - Plan and Land Use Regulation
Amendments stated that “Where an amendment to a functional plan, an
acknowledged comprehensive plan, or a land use regulation would significantly
affect an existing or planned fransportation facility, the local government shall

5
T:\General CommDeWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN.docx



put in place measures as provided in Section (2) of this rule to assure that
allowed land uses are consistent with the identified function, capacity, and
performance standards (e.g. level of service, volume to capacity ratio, etc.) of
the facility. . .”

Finding: A traffic impact study was prepared by the engineering firm DKS and
concluded that there is no negative impact on the transportation facility (the
streets or highway) as a result of the development. ODOT and the City
Engineering Department are currently reviewing the DKS Traffic Impact Study
and may provide additional input at the planning commission hearing. Refer to
the attached summary of the report supplied by the applicant. (Attachment 1)

E. Section 10.070(A)(2) requires that “The amendment will not adversely affect the
ability of the City to satisfy land and water use needs.”

Finding: The City conducted a Buildable Lands Inventory (BLI) which was
adopted in 2011. The report concluded,

“A comparison of need and supply of industrial and other employment lands
indicates an overall surplus of approximately 6.7 acres of employment land.
While there is sufficient land for industrial uses, there is a deficit of land zoned
for commercial and particularly retail use. However, a portion of the land
identified as “Other” can accommodate specific commercial, industrial, and
high-density residential development and help meet the need for additional
commercial land.”

The proposed map amendment would remove approximately 1.04 acres
(45,452 sq. ft.) from the AH-MP residential zone and transfer it to the LS
commercial zone. The change would not significantly impact the supply of either
commercial or residential land. The demonstrated needs according to the BLI
are listed below. Although the use will eliminate this area from the inventory
available for multifamily housing, there are still 52 acres in the R-3 zone and 23
acres in the R-2 zone that are available for multifamily housing.

V. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

The request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Development Code. The
attached findings of fact supplied by the applicant are included in this report. Any
additional comments by ODOT regarding the Traffic Impact Study should be
considered by the Planning Commission.

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the
proposed amendment to the City Council for a public hearing, review, and adoption.

! Goal 9 Analysis — City of Astoria Buildable Lands Inventory (2011), Page 1

6
T:\General CommDeWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoQp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN.docx



Planning Commission recommends the following conditions:

1. If the proposed project by the Astoria Co-op has not begun substantial construction
within two years of the enactment of the amendment, the City shall initiate a rezoning
process to rezone the property or site to its original AH-MP (Attached Housing-Mill
Pond) Zone designation or other appropriate zone.

2. The applicant shall submit a Lot Line Adjustment, survey, and legal description of
the property prior to obtaining building permits.

Aftachment 1:

INTRODUCTION

The property that is the subject of this application is located at the northeast corner of Marine Drive
(US 30) and 23" Street in Astoria and is part of a larger development known as the Mill Pond Village.
The area once was home to a 16-acre lumber mill site from 1870 to 1989. During operation of the mill
the site had been contaminated with various pollutants and by 1994 was declared a brownfield site.
After cleanup the site was developed for mixed use and a village-like atmosphere.

The Astoria Co-op Grocery (Co-op) opened its first storefront in Astoria in 1974, founded by a small
group dedicated to organic and natural foods. Since opening the store has relocated twice, most
recently in 2008 to a 3,100-square foot space at 14" and Exchange with off-street parking. In less than
five years after relocating sales had doubled and it was clear that the Co-op was outgrowing its space.
In 2013, the Co-op began exploring the idea of relocation and expansion which would be necessary to
stay competitive with corporate grocery store offerings.

The Co-op has teamed with property owner, Astor Venture LLC, to pursue the construction of a new
building at the 23" and Marine location. The current AH-MP (Attached Housing-Mill Pond) zone of
the property limits retail structures to 6,000 square feet. The application proposes to rezone 45,452
square feet of the parcel from the Attached Housing- Mill Pond (AH-MP) zone to the Local Service
(LS) zone. This would allow development of an almost 11,600 square foot retail grocery. The
remainder of the parcel, approximately 31,508 square feet will remain in the AH-MP zone.

The application also proposes to amend the text of the LS zone to remove uses that would be
considered incompatible with the Mill Pond development. The Applicant has worked closely with
City of Astoria staff to develop language that will prohibit the gas station, business services
establishment, and transportation services establishment uses from being developed between 23™ and
29" Streets, north of Marine Drive.

PROPOSED MAP AMENDMENT

7
T:\General CommDeWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoQOp_track_changes_post_ APC_CLEAN.docx



Proposed
LS Zone
45,452 SQ. FT.

8
T:\General CommDeWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN.docx



Figure 2: Current Zoning (City of Astoria GIS)

Figure 3: Proposed Zoning

9
T:\General CommDeVWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN.docx



PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENT

LS ZONE

2.976. USES PERMITTED OUTRIGHT.

The following uses and their accessory uses are permitted in an LS Zone if the Community
Development Director determines that the uses will not violate standards referred to in Sections 2.978
through 2.981, additional Development Cade provisions, the Comprehensive Plan, and other City laws:

1.

2.

9.

Bed and breakfast or inn.

Home occupation, which satisfies requirements in Section 3.095.

Personal service establishment.

Residential facility, located above or below the first floor, with permitted commercial facilities
on the first floor of the structure.

Residential home, located above or below the first floor, with permitted commercial facilities
on the first floor of the structure.

Retail sales establishment. (East of 23" Street, retail sales establishment greater than 14,000
gross square feet shall include a minimum of 50% of gross floor area devoted to multi-family
dwellings located above the first floor.)

Repair service establishment not exceeding 3,000 square feet gross floor area.

Single-family, two-family and multi-family dwelling, located above or below the first floor,
with permitted commercial facilities on the first floor of the structure.

Transportation facilities.

2.977. CONDITIONAL USES PERMITTED.

The following uses and their accessory uses are permitted in a LS Zone if the Planning Commission,
after a public hearing, determines that the location and development plans comply with applicable
standards referred to in Sections 2.978 through 2.981, additional Development Code provisions, the
Comprehensive Plan, and other City laws:

L.

Business service establishment. (Not allowed on properties between 23rd and 29th Street north
of Marine Drive.)

Day care center. :

Eating and drinking establishment without drive-through facility.

10

T:\General CommDewWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post_APC_CLEAN.docx



4, Family day care center.

5. Gasoline service station. (Not allowed on properties between 23rd and 29th Street north of
Marine Drive.)

6.  Public or semi-public use.
7. Restaurant as an accessory use to an Inn. See Section 3.230.
8.  Temporary use meeting the requirements of Section 3.240.

9. Transportation service establishment. (Not allowed on properties between 23rd and 29th Street
north of Marine Drive.)

2.980. HEIGHT OF STRUCTURES.

No structure will exceed a height of 35 feet above grade.

A. ZONING MAP AMENDMENT FINDINGS

11
T:\General CommDeWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN.docx



Section 10.070.B Amendment Criteria — Map Amendment

1. The amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

CP.030 — CP.105 Area Descriptions and Policies

CP.057 Gateway Overlay Area
CP.058 Gateway Overlay Area Policies
1. The City will utilize the general vision of the Gateway Master Plan to direct future development in the
Gateway Overlay Area. The overall Comprehensive Plan objectives are to:

c. promote new land uses complementary to the riverfront and existing development, particularly
visitor oriented uses and high-density housing;

Applicant Finding: The proposed amendment will allow development of a grocery which will serve not only
those living nearby in high-density housing but also those throughout Astoria, living in nearby communities
and traveling through the area.

4. The former Astoria Plywood Mill Site will be developed as a mixed-use development which will
complement the Gateway Overlay Area and the Downtown Area, and provide new housing
opportunities. The Gateway Master Plan will serve as a guideline for the development of the Mill Site.
Variations from the Gateway Master Plan may be appropriate provided the overall development
proposal substantially carries out the Gateway Master Plan objectives.

Applicant Finding: The proposed map amendment is consistent with the policy of mixed-use development at
the Mill Pond site. The amendment is proposed to allow a specific development that will co-exist and
complement the existing uses surrounding the mill pond by providing a transition zone from the surrounding
commercial and industrial uses. As demonstrated in Table 1, the LS Zone provides a logical transition from the
adjacent C3 commercial zone across Marine Drive which permits more intense commercial and light industrial
uses, to the AH-MP Zone of the mill pond area, that is primarily focused on high-density housing with a lower
impact commercial component.

12
T:\General CommDeWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_ CoOp_track_changes_post_APC_CLEAN.docx




Table 1: Allowed Uses

Zoning Comparison Current Zone Proposed Zone AdjacentZone
Uses . AHMP LS (Amended) Cc3

Arts/Crafts Studio Outright . . ﬁ

Family Day Care Center Outright Conditional Outright

Home Occupation Outright Outright Outright

SFD Outright ' ' Outright w/ commercial use

Two Family Dwelling Outright Outright w/ commercial use Outright w/ commercial use

Multi Family Dwelling Outright Outright w/ commercial use Outright

Personal Services Outright Outright Outright

Professional Services Outright . Outright

Residential Home Outright Outright , ,

Residential Facility Outright Outright Outright

Transportation Facilities Outright Outright Outright

Bed and Breakfast or Inn Conditional Outright .

Day Care Center Conditional Conditional Conditional

Eating/Drinking Establishment Conditional Conditional .

Pubic or Semi-Public Use Conditional Conditional

Restaurant associated w/ Inn | Conditional Conditional , ,

Retail Sales <6000 sq ft Conditional Outright Outright

Retail Sales >6000 sq ft Outright Outright

Repair Services <3000 sq ft Outright Outright
Business Services Establishment = . Outright
Gasoline Service Station Conditional
Transportation Service Estab. Outright
Commercial Laundry/Dry Clean Outright
Off street Parking Outright
Communcation Services Estab Outright
Construction Services Estab Outright
Educational Services Estab Outright
Hotel, Motel, Tourist Lodging Outright
Conference Center Outright
Indoor Family Entertainment Outright
Animal Hospital/kennel Conditional
Auto sales/service Conditional
Hospital Conditional
Light Manufacturing Conditional
Recycling Estab Conditional
Wholesale Warehouse Conditional

CP.068 Astoria Riverfront Vision Overlay Area Policies

2. Encourage a mix of uses that supports Astoria's "'working waterfront" and the City's economy. The
overall Comprehensive Plan objectives are to:
a. Allow for development that supports downtown and other commercial areas.

13
T:\General CommDeWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post_ APC_CLEAN.docx



Applicant Findings: As the Co-op becomes a full-line grocer it is anticipated that additional customers will be
drawn from outside the current service area. As a result, visits to Astoria and its downtown core and other
commercial areas should increase.

b. Limit development in areas with most significant impacts on open space, view or other
resources.

Applicant Findings: The proposal seeks to amend the base zone but not to remove the existing overlay zones
that protect open space and view corridors. Application of the overlay and LS development standards during
design review will ensure consistency with this policy.

¢. Promote uses that provide jobs and support the local economy.

Applicant Findings: Currently the Co-op employs 25 local workers. At the new location, it is anticipated that
an additional 35-40 local jobs will be added. Having seen an increase of sales by almost 20% in 2016, the
expansion will allow additional access, parking and visibility which will only serve to increase and support the
local economy. In a 2012 study? by the National Co-op Grocers, it was found that $0.38 of every dollar spent at
a food co-op is reinvested in the local economy as compared to $0.24 from conventional grocers.

CP.110-CP.125 Urban Growth

Applicant Findings: This element does not contain applicable policies.

CP.130-CP.186 Aguatic and Shoreland

CP.170 Downtown Astoria Sub-Area Plan

Applicant Findings: The subject property is located within the Downtown Sub-Area; however, this section does
not contain applicable policies.

CP.190 - CP.210 Economic Element

CP.200 Economic Development Goal 1 and Goal 1 Policies
Goal: The City of Astoria will strengthen improve, and diversify the area's economy to increase local
employment opportunities.

Policies:
1. Encourage, support, and assist existing businesses.
4. Encourage private development such as retail, restaurants, commercial services, transient lodging.

Applicant Findings: The Co-op estimates an increase of 35-40 additional jobs with the expansion. Approval of
the zoning map amendment would be consistent with Policies 1 and 4.

CP.207. Economic Development Goal 8 and Goal 8 Policies.
Goal: Be prepared for business growth with ready properties.

2 Health Foods Healthy Communities: The Social and Economic Impacts of Food Co-ops (2012)

14
T:\General CommDeWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
0p.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN.docx




Policies:

1) Support the development and maintenance of property inventory.

2) Maintain an adequate supply of vacant commercial, industrial and waterfront development property to
provide for the economic growth of the community.

3) Ensure an adequate supply of employment lands with areas large enough to meet the objectives needed
for commercial uses, but not so large as to affect adjacent residential neighborhoods.

Applicant Findings: The City conducted a Buildable Lands Inventory (BLI) which was adopted in 2011. The
report concluded,

“A comparison of need and supply of industrial and other employment lands indicates an overall surplus of
approximately 6.7 acres of employment land. While there is sufficient land for industrial uses, there is a deficit
of land zoned for commercial and particularly retail use. However, a portion of the land identified as “Other”
can accommodate specific commercial, industrial, and high-density residential development and help meet the
need for additional commercial land.” 3

The proposed map amendment would remove approximately 1.04 acres (45,452 sq. ft.) from the AH-MP
residential zone and transfer it to the LS commercial zone. The change would not significantly impact the
supply of either commercial or residential land. The demonstrated needs according to the BLI are listed below.

Estimated Net Land Surplus/(Deficit) by Zoning Designation, Astoria UGB, 2027

Table 2
Type of Use R1 R2 R3 AH-MP Total
Land Need 115.4 51.2 67.0 2.7 236.4
Land Supply 25.20 74.99 119.18 1.49 220.86
Surplus/(Deficit) (90.20) 23.79 52.18 (1=21) (15.54)
Source: Wingard Planning & Development Services
Table 3
Growth Type of Use Commercial | Industrial/Other Total
Scenario (Office/Retail)
Medium Land Need 38.2 11.5 49.7
Land Supply 1621 39.3 56.4
Surplus/(Deficit) | Surplus/(Deficit) (21.1) 27.8 6.7

Source: Cogan Owens Cogan

CP.215. Housing Element
CP.220. Housing Policies.

2. Provide residential areas with services and facilities necessary for safe, healthful, and convenient urban
living.

3 Goal 9 Analysis — City of Astoria Buildable Lands Inventory (2011), Page 1

18
T:\General CommDeVWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN.docx




Applicant Findings: The map amendment will support the relocating and expansion of a retail grocery, which
includes increase parking and visibility, will allow additional service and convenience to the citizens of Astoria.

6. Protect neighborhoods from incompatible uses, including large scale commercial, industrial, and public
uses or activities.

Applicant Findings: As demonstrated earlier in Table 1, the uses of the LS zone are not markedly different from
the uses in the AH-MP zone. The proposed amendment would facilitate a retail use that exceeds the square
foot limitation for retail uses in the AH-MP zone. This retail use, Astoria Co-op Grocery, will be developed in a
way not to detract from the neighborhood atmosphere of the Mill Pond. Refer to Figure 4 below for a visual
example of the Co-op project. Prior to construction the development will be subject to City of Astoria Design
Review and applicable development standards. This process will ensure compatibility of the use with the
adjacent Mill Pond area.

Figure 1:
Exterior
View

CP.240

‘? BUILDING AXCNOMETRIC

Historic Preservation

CP.260 Parks, Recreation and Open Space Element
CP.290. Public Facilities Element
CP.345. Transportation

CP.375. Air, Water, and Land Quality
CP.390. Geologic and Flood Hazards

CP.405. Energy Conservation
CP.425. Forest Resources
CP.445. Natural Resource Considerations

Applicant Findings: These elements do not contain applicable policies.

16
T:\General CommDeWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
0p.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN.docx




CP.465. Procedural and Participation Policies

LApplicant Findings: This section does not contain applicable policies for the applicant to address.

CRITERIA #1 - CONCLUSION: Based on these findings the zoning map amendment is consistent
with the applicable comprehensive plan polices. Therefore, Criteria #1 is satisfied.

2. The amendment will:

a. Satisfy land and water use needs; or

b. Meet transportation demands; or

c. Provide community facilities and services.

Applicant Findings: The proposed amendment will provide needed land for a retail use that is similar to what is
currently allowed in the AH-MP zone yet not as intense as adjacent commercial and light industrial uses. The
expansion of the Astoria Co-op Grocery will satisfy land and water use needs.

CRITERIA #2 - CONCLUSION: Based on these findings the amendment will satisfy land and
water use needs. Therefore, Criteria #2 is satisfied.

3. The land is physically suitable for the uses to be allowed, in terms of slope,
geologic stability, flood hazard and other relevant considerations. ’

Applicant Findings: The site is relatively flat and contains no known geological hazards. The site is within
FEMA Flood Zone X?, outside the annual 0.2% chance of flood and is therefore suitable based on physical
conditions. The criterion is met.

CRITERIA #3 - CONCLUSION: Based on these findings the land is physically suitable for the uses
to be allowed. Therefore, Criteria #3 is satisfied.

4. Resource lands, such as wetlands are protected.

Applicant Findings: There are no known wetlands or resource lands on the site. This criterion does not apply.

CRITERIA #4 - CONCLUSION: There are no known wetland or resource lands on the site.
Therefore, Criteria #4 does not apply.

5. The amendment is compatible with the land use development pattern in the
vicinity of the request. '

4 NFIP FIRM Panel 41007C0299E (adopted 9/17/2010)

17
T:\General CommDeWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post_ APC_CLEAN.docx




Applicant Findings: The site is situated in a transition area between the residentially and commercially
developed areas and could be a cohesive part of either development area. Due to its proximity to dwellings
and adjacent commercial district along Marine Drive, the Local Service zone would be more consistent with a
desired transition zone yet compatible with the adjacent development patterns. Refer to Figure 5.

Subject
Propert

Figure 2: Aerial Photo ©Google 2017

CRITERIA #4 - CONCLUSION: Based on these findings the proposed amendment is compatible
with the land use development pattern in the vicinity of the request. Therefore, Criteria #5 is satisfied.

18
T:\General CommDeWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN.docx




The following findings are from the Traffic Impact Analysis and Transportation Planning Rule Assessment for
Proposed Astoria Co-op Grocery Store. Prepared by DKS Associates, October 2017, Table 9, Pages 24-28. The
report is attached as Exhibit 1.

Statewide Planning Goal 12: Transportation
Transportation Planning Rule - OAR 660-012-0060

1. If an amendment to a functional plan, an acknowledged comprehensive plan, or a land use regulation
{(including a zoning map) would significantly affect an existing or planned transportation facility, then the
local government must put in place measures as provided in section (2) of this rule, unless the amendment
is allowed under section (3), (9) or (10) of this rule. A plan or land use regulation amendment significantly
affects a transportation facility if it would:

TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: No transportation facilities are significantly affected under these or other
subsections. See below.

a. Change the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation facility (exclusive of
correction of map errors in an adopted plan);

TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: No changes to the functional classification of transportation facilities were required
with the proposed project.

b. Change standards implementing a functional classification system; or

’ TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: No facility standards were impacted with the proposed project.

¢. Result in any of the effects listed in paragraphs (A} through (C) of this subsection based on projected
conditions measured at the end of the planning period identified in the adopted TSP. As part of
evaluating projected conditions, the amount of traffic projected to be generated within the area of the
amendment may be reduced if the amendment includes an enforceable, ongoing requirement that
would demonstrably limit traffic generation, including, but not limited to, transportation demand
management. This reduction may diminish or completely eliminate the significant effect of the
amendment.

TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: Table 8 documents projected conditions measured at the end of the planning
period identified in the adopted TSP. The amendment does not include any enforceable, ongoing requirements
that would demonstrably limit traffic generation.

(A} Types or levels of travel or access that are inconsistent with the functional classification of an
existing or planned transportation facility;

TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: Types and levels of travel and access expected on existing and planned
transportation facilities are consistent with their functional classifications.

19
T:\General CommDeVWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
0p.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post_APC_CLEAN.docx



{B) Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility such that it would not
meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan; or

TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: The proposed plan amendments do not degrade the performance of an existing or
planned transportation facility such that it would not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or
comprehensive plan. The transportation analysis in Table 8 demonstrates that the intersection that would not
be expected to meet mobility targets under the Code Amendment Scenario was also identified in the TSP
Baseline Scenario. This intersection will be improved with a project included in the TSP; the performance will
be unchanged or improved rather than degraded.

{C} Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility that is otherwise
projected to not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan.

TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: The proposed plan amendment does not degrade the performance of an existing or
planned transportation facility that is otherwise projected to not meet the performance standards identified in
the TSP or comprehensive plan. The transportation analysis in Table 8 demonstrates that the intersection that
would not be expected to meet mobility targets under the Code Amendment Scenario was also identified in
the TSP Baseline Scenario, with unchanged performance at the intersection with the proposed project.

2. If alocal government determines that there would be a significant effect, then the local government must
ensure that allowed land uses are consistent with the identified function, capacity, and performance
standards of the facility measured at the end of the planning period identified in the adopted TSP through
one or a combination of the remedies listed in {a) through (e) below, unless the amendment meets the
balancing test in subsection (2){e) of this section or qualifies for partial mitigation in section {11) of this
rule. A local government using subsection (2)(e}, section (3}, section (10) or section {11) to approve an
amendment recognizes that additional motor vehicle traffic congestion may result and that other facility
providers would not be expected to provide additional capacity for motor vehicles in response to this
congestion.

’ TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A; there will not be a significant effect.

a. Adopting measures that demonstrate allowed land uses are consistent with the planned function,
capacity, and performance standards of the transportation facility.

| TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

b. Amending the TSP or comprehensive plan to provide transportation facilities, improvements or
services adequate to support the proposed land uses consistent with the requirements of this division;
such amendments shall include a funding plan or mechanism consistent with section (4} or include an
amendment to the transportation finance plan so that the facility, improvement, or service will be
provided by the end of the planning period.

| TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

20
T:\General CommDeVW\APC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP _Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post_APC_CLEAN.docx



c.  Amending the TSP to modify the planned function, capacity or performance standards of the
transportation facility.

| TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

d. Providing other measures as a condition of development or through a development agreement or
similar funding method, including, but not limited to, transportation system management measures or
minor transportation improvements. Local governments shall, as part of the amendment, specify when
measures or improvements provided pursuant to this subsection will be provided.

| TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

e. Providing improvements that would benefit modes other than the significantly affected mode,
improvements to facilities other than the significantly affected facility, or improvements at other
locations, if the provider of the significantly affected facility provides a written statement that the
system-wide benefits are sufficient to balance the significant effect, even though the improvements
would not result in consistency for all performance standards.

| TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

3. Notwithstanding sections (1) and (2) of this rule, a local government may approve an amendment that
would significantly affect an existing transportation facility without assuring that the allowed land uses are
consistent with the function, capacity and performance standards of the facility where:

1 TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A; there will not be a significant effect.

a. Inthe absence of the amendment, planned transportation facilities, improvements and services as set
forth in section (4) of this rule would not be adequate to achieve consistency with the identified
function, capacity or performance standard for that facility by the end of the planning period identified
in the adopted TSP.

I TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

b. b. Development resulting from the amendment will, at a minimum, mitigate the impacts of the
amendment in a manner that avoids further degradation to the performance of the facility by the time
of the development through one or a combination of transportation improvements or measures.

| TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

¢. The amendment does not involve property located in an interchange area as defined in paragraph
(4)(d)(c).

[ TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

d. For affected state highways, ODOT provides a written statement that the proposed funding and timing
for the identified mitigation improvements or measures are, at a minimum, sufficient to avoid further
21

T:\General CommDeVAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post_APC_CLEAN.docx



degradation to the performance of the affected state highway. However, if a local government
provides the appropriate ODOT regional office with written notice of a proposed amendment in a
manner that provides ODOT reasonable opportunity to submit a written statement into the record of
the local government proceeding, and ODOT does not provide a written statement, then the local
government may proceed with applying subsections (a) through (c} of this section.

| TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A

4. Determinations under sections (1)~(3) of this rule shall be coordinated with affected transportation facility
and service providers and other affected local governments.

[ TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: The transportation analysis was coordinated with the City of Astoria and ODOT.

a. Indetermining whether an amendment has a significant effect on an existing or planned
transportation facility under subsection {1){(c) of this rule, local governments shall rely on existing
transportation facilities and services and on the planned transportation facilities, improvements and
services set forth in subsections (b} and (c) below.

TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: As described further below, the analysis relies on existing transportation facilities
and services that meet the criteria in subsections (b} and {c). No planned transportation facilities were
assumed.

b. Outside of interstate interchange areas, the following are considered planned facilities, improvements
and services:

(A) Transportation facilities, improvements or services that are funded for construction or
implementation in the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program or a locally or
regionally adopted transportation improvement program or capital improvement plan or
program of a transportation service provider.

(B) Transportation facilities, improvements or services that are authorized in a local
transportation system plan and for which a funding plan or mechanism is in place or
approved. These include, but are not limited to, transportation facilities, improvements or
services for which: transportation systems development charge revenues are being
collected; a local improvement district or reimbursement district has been established or
will be established prior to development; a development agreement has been adopted; or
conditions of approval to fund the improvement have been adopted.

(C) Transportation facilities, improvements or services in a metropolitan planning
organization (MPQ) area that are part of the area's federally-approved, financially
constrained regional transportation system plan.

(D) Improvements to state highways that are included as planned improvements in a
regional or local transportation system plan or comprehensive plan when ODOT
provides a written statement that the improvements are reasonably likely to be provided
by the end of the planning period.

(E) Improvements to regional and local roads, streets or other transportation facilities or
services that are included as planned improvements in a regional or local transportation
system plan or comprehensive plan when the local government(s) or transportation
service provider(s) responsible for the facility, improvement or service provides a written

22
TA\General CommbDeVWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post_APC_CLEAN.docx



statement that the facility, improvement or service is reasonably likely to be provided by
the end of the planning period.

| TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: No planned transportation projects were assumed. j

3 Within interstate interchange areas, the improvements included in (b)(A)—(C) are
considered planned facilities, improvements and services, except where:

(A) ODOT provides a written statement that the proposed funding and timing of mitigation
measures are sufficient to avoid a significant adverse impact on the Interstate Highway
system, then local governments may also rely on the improvements identified in
paragraphs (b)(D) and (E) of this section; or

(B). There is an adopted interchange area management plan, then local governments may
also rely on the improvements identified in that plan and which are also identified in
paragraphs (b)(D) and (E) of this section.

l TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: N/A. The project site is outside of interstate interchange areas. —|

5. The presence of a transportation facility or improvement shall not be a basis for an exception to
allow residential, commercial, institutional or industrial development on rural lands under this division
or OAR 660-004-0022 and 660-004-0028.

TIA/TPR Analysis Findings: The proposed amendment does not include an exception to allow development on
rural lands; therefore, this section is not applicable.

TPR - CONCLUSION: Based on the results of the Traffic Impact Analysis and these findings the
proposed zoning map amendment will not significantly affect the existing transportation facilities.

CONCLUSION - ZONING MAP AMENDMENT

Based on the findings of this application the proposed zoning map amendment is consistent with the
applicable requirements of the City of Astoria Comprehensive Plan and Development Code as well as
the State of Oregon Goal 12 Transportation Planning Rule.

23
T:\General CommDeV\APC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post_APC_CLEAN.docx



B. TEXT AMENDMENT FINDINGS

Section 10.070.A Amendment Criteria —Text Amendment

1. The amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

CP.010 - CP.028 General Development Policies

Applicant Findings: This section does not contain applicable policies.

CP.030 - CP.105 Area Descriptions & Policies

CP.057. Gateway Overlay Area.
CP.058. Gateway Overlay Area Policies.

1. The City will utilize the general vision of the Gateway Master Plan to direct future development in the
Gateway Overlay Area. The overall Comprehensive Plan objectives are to:

c. promote new land uses complementary to the riverfront and existing development, particularly
visitor oriented uses and high-density housing;

Applicant Findings: The text amendment will allow for uses to complement the high-density housing
as well as visitor oriented uses in the Mill Pond area.

2. The City will maintain the Gateway Overlay Area plan element of the Comprehensive Plan through its
Development Code, including new planning zones and development standards, and through a design
review process.

Applicant Findings: The proposed amendment is consistent with this policy by allowing an existing
zone in the Gateway Overlay area yet taking into consideration the unique characteristics of the Mill
Pond development.

CP.110 - CP.105 Urban Growth
CP130 - CP.186 Aguatic and Shoreland

Applicant Findings: These elements do not contain applicable policies.

CP.190 - CP.210 Economic Element

CP.200. Economic Development Goal 1 and Goal 1 Policies.

Goal: The City of Astoria will strengthen improve, and diversify the area's economy to increase local
employment opportunities.

24
T:AGeneral CommDeWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
0Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN.docx



1. Encourage, support, and assist existing businesses.

Applicant Findings: Amending the text of the LS zone will allow development of the Co-op yet ensure
uses that may not be desirable near high density house will be not be developed on the site.

CP.215 Housing

CP.240 _ Historic Preservation

CP.260  Parks, Recreation and Open Space Element
CP.290. Public Facilities Element

CP.345. Transportation

CP.375. Air, Water, and Land Quality

CP.390. Geologic and Flood Hazards

CP.405. Energy Conservation

CP.425. Forest Resources

CP.445. Natural Resource Considerations

Applicant Findings: These elements do not contain applicable policies.

CRITERIA #1 - CONCLUSION: Based on these findings the text amendment is consistent with the
applicable comprehensive plan polices. Therefore, Criteria #1 is satisfied.

2. The amendment will not adversely affect the ability of the City to satisfy land and water use
needs.

Applicant Findings: This amendment will not adversely affect the ability of the City to satisfy land and water
use needs but will assist in meeting those needs by permitting the Co-op development in the Mill Pond area
that will enhance the atmosphere and provide services for those residing in the area and within the city.

CRITERIA #2 - CONCLUSION: Based on these findings the text amendment will not adversely
affect the ability of the City to satisfy land and water use needs. Therefore, Criteria #2 is satisfied.

CONCLUSION - TEXT AMENDMENT

Based on the findings of this application the proposed text amendment is consistent with the applicable
requirements of the City of Astoria Comprehensive Plan and Development Code.

OVERALL CONCLUSION

The applicant has demonstrated, through the finding contained in the application, that the proposed
zoning map amendment and text amendment are consistent with the applicable requirements.

25
T:\General CommDeWAPC\Permits\Amendments\2017\A 17-02 Map and Text Amendment - Astoria Co-
Op.2350 Marine\A17-02_LS_AHMP_Don_Vallester_CoOp_track_changes_post APC_CLEAN.docx



MINUTES

1-24-18 Minutes of Astoria Planning Commission meeting of 1-24-18 on
Amendment Request (A17-02)



ASTORIA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
Astoria City Hall
January 24, 2018

CALL TO ORDER:

Vice President Easom called the meeting to order at 6:35 pm.
ROLL CALL:

Commissioners Present: President Sean Fitzpatrick, Vice President Kent Easom, Jennifer Cameron—
Lattek, Daryl Moore, Jan Mitchell, Joan Herman, and Brookley H

ng Commission to he
lanning Commission

e, he remamed at the dals

Commissioner Mitchell declared she was a member of the Astoria Co-op Grocery. She had been careful to fimit
her ex parte comments and refrain from talking to people about this application. She believed she was capable
of making a decision based on the information provided during the hearing. She did not believe her membership

would influence her decision.

..Commissioner Henri-declared she was a member of the Co-op.and attended their information session in the fall

regarding this application. However, she did not believe that would influence her decision.

Commissioner Cameron-Lattek declared she was also a member of the Co-op. She has had a few
conversations and had been following this topic in their newsletter. However, she would remain impartial.

Commissioner Herman declared she was a member of the Co-op and attended the informational meeting, but
- she did not believed that would inhibit her ability to be impartial.

Astoria Planning Commission
Minutes 01-24-2018
Page 1 of 12



Commissioner Moore declared he was a member of the Co-op, but believed he could make an evaluation based
solely on the criteria presented during the hearing.

Vice President Easom declared he was also a member of the Co-op, but had not had any ex parte contacts
regarding this matter. He believed he could make an impartial decision.

Vice President Easom asked Staff to present the Staff report.

Planner Morgan stated he was a member of the Co-op, but had never served as a Board member and was not
an investor. He reviewed the written Staff report and said Staff recommended approval of the request.

Commissioner Moore clarified that the request was to rezone part of the parcel shown on the ma not a lot hne
adjustment. ¢

conﬂrmed
noted the

: > fains three main sections. They
nalyzed existing condmons to determme the transportation infrastructure, who owned the roads, and
what types of roads existed. DKS looked at traffic volumes by going out into the field to do traffic counts.
They also examined safety issues and the safety history of the roadways in the area. The second part of the
study is the impact analysis, which includes access to the proposed site, trip generation, the distribution of
that traffic, and potential future build-out. The third section of the study is the Transportation Planning Rule
Assessment, which is a 20-year projection of future transportation conditions. Those projections allow DKS
.. fo determine whether this. development would have.a significant impact.on local transportation facilities now . . ..
or in the future. The study analyzed four intersections, Marine Drive/Commercial/21 Street;
Marine/Exchange, Marine /23", and Marine/28%, Traffic counts were taken during peak hours at these
intersections in September. DKS determined the highest hour was between 4:15 pm and 5:15 pm. The
intersections were monitored through mobility targets intended to maintain a certain level of efficiency from
motor vehicle travel in the area. DKS used volume to capacity ratios to gauge intersection operations in the
area. They also considered site access.
¢ She displayed the proposed layout of the store, noting the two locations for ingress and egress into the
parking lot on Steam Whistle Way, and the loading dock area on 23" Street. The route down Steam

Astoria Planning Commission
Minutes 01-24-2018
Page 2 of 12



Whistle Way is not expected to be active for drivers entering and exiting the site as most of the site
traffic is expected to utilize 23 Street or Commercial. A total of 114 trips is expected to be generated by
the store during the peak hour between 4:15 pm and 5:15 pm. Of those 114 trips, 41 trips would be by
people already passing by on Marine Drive who did not make that trip specifically to go to the Co-op,
leaving a net of 73 new trips generated during the peak hour, which results in 36 new trips into and out of
the parking lot.

s  She displayed trip distributions, showing the inbound and outbound fraffic at the site. Thirty-two
percent of the traffic would access the site from Marine Drive at 23 and Commercial, 38 percent
would come from the west on Marine Drive, 25 percent would come from the east on Marine Drive,
and only five percent from Exchange Street at Marine Drive. The traffic analysis determined that the
added traffic associated with the proposed zone change was expected fo have little impact on
operations when compared to the 2039 baseline operations. Most of the intersections studied were
expected to operate wrth a volume-to- capac;ty ratio of 0.88;0r.better:and:meetimobjl

ould result in a larger
s two-acre site could

Marine Drive.

Ms. Bunch answered yes, the study showed that during the peak hour in September, there were five turns by
drivers heading south on 23 Street and turning left on to Marine Drive heading east.

Commrssxoner Mxtchell asked how many addmonal tnps would make that same furn.

Ms Bunch showed the tnp dxstnbut(on shde that mdmated 75 percent of the trafﬂc would come from the West
The 25 percent coming from the east would most likely return to the east.

Vice President Easom calculated this to be nine new trips making the left turn from 23 to Marine during the
peak hour.

Commissioner Mitchell asked if the report discussed potentially requiring a traffic signal at 23 and Marine.

Astoria Planning Commission
Minutes 01-24-2018
Page 3 of 12



Mr. Bunch said no, the only note about a traffic signal was the one recommended in the TSP.

Commissioner Moore asked for an explanation as to why a rezone has been proposed instead of a variance
from the conditional uses allowed in the current zone or a change to the allowed uses in the current zone.

Ms. Bunch said Mr. Vallaster originally spoke with her about changing the text of the Mill Pond zone to allow for a
larger retail use. She worked with the former Community Development Director and current Staff to extend the
local service zone. They all seemed to agree it was a logical progression. One consideration was that the uses in
the LS zone are very closely aligned to what is allowed in the Mill Pond zone, so there were no huge increases in
conflicts due to the limits on uses between 23 and 29% Streets.

Commissioner Mitchell recalled when the site was a brownfield, adding the cleanup was an interesting and
exceptronal project. She a!ways had the sense that the property was expected, , a
. th hS

iready %
corporated

d for this prorect becaust i
findings demonstratr hardship

, the Criy would want
as not developed an

op:Board: : D
"W&s beginning to feel cramped and limited therr abmty fo serve the community and offer the additional services
being requested. So, they began a thorough engagement process. Almost 800 people participated in their
shopper survey, which was lengthy. More than 95 percent of respondents supported the Co-op doing something
like this in town. They held focus group sessions, meet and greets with the Co-op Board, and met with key
stakeholders in the community. The resounding answer was that people wanted the Co-op to go to the next
level, emulate some of the other fine Co-ops on the West Coast, and be a full line grocery store for the
. community, " )
e The Co-op’s next step was to create a strategrc plan whrch focused on growmg the local economy, havmg a
welcoming community store, spreading health and nutrition throughout the community, and having a thriving

Co-op culture. The base of the strategic plan was the idea that they would expand the business so that they

could be a full line grocery and operate as a professional grocer, as the current facility does not allow them

to do that in many ways.

e« The Board created site selection criteria and conducted two market studies in the last five years,
commissioned by independent, third-party companies. The site needed to be highly visible, which meant
it had to be on Marine Drive. If the Co-op expanded at its current location, sales would plateau at a level

Astoria Planning Commission
Minutes 01-24-2018
Page 4 of 12



far below what could be achieve at the proposed location. People expect grocery stores to be convenient
and have lots of parking, so a pretty big parcel was needed. The search was exhaustive, and at first, the
number of appropriate sites looked very limiting. The Board even held meetings at some of the sites
being considered. The subject site is one of the finest pieces of land that could be used for the desired
type of retail use, based on market research and working with Co-op peers throughout the country who
have done similar expansions. The Co-op also has a developer partner who will invest significantly to
make this project happen. The Co-op could not buy land, build a shell, and spend the money to turn it
into a grocery store on its own. As a business that was not heavily capitalized, the Co-op did not have
the means.
e A building size was chosen that was just big enough to turn the Co-op into what most people would
consider a full line grocer. Services and products the community has asked for would be added,
mcludmg a full service deli with hot food; indoor and outdoor seating areas, each with seating for 25; a
full service meat department; local seafood; in-house meat processing:. ( 1 A
produce depay; s,an amazing amount ef sales, but it is"g
en

S p
produce from some small farms. And there is no space to tell the
stories about those farmers, which is necessary to educate people about the value of buying local
products. Almost 20 percent of the Co-op’s sales are from various local producers, which is a big
number that circulates a lot of money in the local economy.
e The proposal is not unchecked development. The project is very intentional and connected to the
community, and coming from the more than 4,000 community members who co-own the business.
.e . He noted that Paul Benoit, the Community Development Director when Mill Pond was being envisioned, ... .
-~ ~worked with-Art Demuro on this project. Mr: Benoit's letter not only confirmed that prime-commercial -
property like this is really hard fo find, but he affirmed also the property was always supposed to be
something commercial, but the City wanted it to be something special. Thirty years ago, the City picked a
number that would stop big box retailers; it was an experiment to try to create something special in Mill
Pond. It is neat to hear that even Art Demuro, in Mr. Benoit's opinion, would have thought this could not be
a better fit for what was envisioned there.
= e This new, full-service Co-op will reflect and serve the Astoria community in a big way and it will improve
quality of life in Astoria. He hoped the Planning Commission would approve making the Co-op a special part
of the gateway into their awesome city.
. } L Astoria Planning Commission
Minutes 01-24-2018
Page 5 of 12



Vice President Easom called for any testimony in favor of the application.

Stuart Bell, 240 Lincoln, Astoria, said he came to show his support for this project. He has been a member of the
Co-op and its predecessor organization for more than 43 years. This community has shown its support and need
for a natural foods store all during that time. The need is beyond the capabilities of the non-profit volunteer group
that previously ran the Co-op for a long time. When the store became a true Co-op, a wonderful general
manager was hired and the growth has been phenomenal. The need and interest in what this store would do has
been abundantly demonstrated. He had read the letter by Mr. Benoit and was so pleased to see his support. The
new Co-op will be such an asset for the entire community from an economic development aspect. Also, as
people drive into Astoria from the east, they will say, 'Oh wow, | didn't know that was here.’ The Commlssxon has
a quasi-judicial job to do, and he hoped they would facmtate the development of this store in e

ks were installed. Th
ed, but they did not k
to water and sewer.:

storia Co-op, said he
d at the Co-op, he did

y work very hard to develop
eir emiployee's skills by sen mg them to conferences 50 they can bring home ideas about what a good local
food economy looks like. They have an amagzing staff, but it is difficult to develop them in their current space.
Their lives would be a lot easier with a full line grocery store where they could eliminate the daily quirks that
come with the current site. He believed the greatest foods were the fruits and vegetables that come from local
farms. The Co-op only has a couple hundred square feet of retail space in their produce department, so every
day, especially in the summer, he has to make decisions about which local farm he can carry each day. Last

..year, the Co-op spent abotit $40,000 on local produce from farmers within 30 miles of Astoria, Thatnumber .~~~ _

could grow if they had a larger, dedicated space for produce. The farmers rely on the Co-op for their livelihoods
and the Co-op relies on the farmers to make the store special. The Co-op can grow the local farm scene if
farmers are given a larger space fo sell their goods.

Michael Cameron-Lattek, 1820 SE 31 Street, Astoria, said he was a member of the Co-op and a local business
owner. His cafe works with a lot of the same farmers, growers, and producers as the Co-op. He would not have
discovered some of those growers without the Co-op. The Co-op provides a year-round marketplace for some of
the growers. Astoria has a seasonal farmer's market, but the market does not have a way to connect growers

Astoria Planning Commission
Minutes 01-24-2018
Page 6 of 12



with customers in the winter. This area, from Puget Island to Nehalem, is an incredibly vibrant and growing
community of growers. A lot of things can be grown on the north coast. As the Staff report stated, almost 40
cents of every dollar is reinvested in the local economy. So, this Co-op is more than a thriving business wanting
to expand and provide more jobs. It is also a marketplace for local growers, which are small businesses run by
local families. Providing space for a larger Co-op creates a larger marketplace for local farmers. This is a very
important stimulant to the increasing number of growers who want to do business with local restaurants. The Co-
op serves as a hub where people can connect. There is also a market for people to buy local produce and meat,
If the Co-op could not provide a larger framework to showcase these incredibly hardworking farmers, the growth
of both the Co-op and some local farmers would be stifled.

Allie Evans, 388 Exchange, Astoria, President, Astoria Co-op Board, stated the Board has been working on this
plan for the past five years as a vision to do what they do better, more efficiently, and to have a greater impact.
Each step of the way, the Board has asked people for he(p and msxght \ Wask

ke h k=

viously, fhey; want to
embers agreed the Ci
what to eét, what the

zamazing. Many:pgople choséitorlivedine sforia becaltise ey 5Fiot Want to live in the suburbs.
People want a place to gather, sit, and meet people. She encouraged the Commission to approve the request.

Angela Sidlo, 516 Summit, Gearhart, said she has been an Astoria Co-op Board member for the last couple of
years, but her Co-op culture goes back 40 years. Every place she has lived, she has been part of a co-op
community. She connected with communities by fooking for co-ops along the way and exposing her Kids to the
co-op culture as well. She has been through the strategic planning part of this project. The Board really came

- coach. It is important to have a co-op so she can help people achieve health. Her tag line is 'healthy individuals
create healthy communities.’ This is an opportunity to expand on that by providing good food and good jobs so
that people can find their roots in Astoria. She knew the Commission would review all of the information and
make the right decision. She appreciated the Commission's service to the community.

Todd Holm, 1237 Alameda, Astoria, said he had been an Astoria Co-op Board member for the past few years.
He could not think of a better jewel for this community at the gateway. This will provide great jobs, support
farmers, and bring greatness to the community. He thanked the Planning Commissioners for their consideration.

Astoria Planning Commission
Minutes 01-24-2018
Page 7 of 12

_together. to work hard with.the help of their governing body that helped build other co-ops. Sheis also a health |~ _



Vice President Easom called for any testimony impartial to the application.

Don Patterson, 1635 SW 14" Warrenton, said he owned a gas station property in Astoria. He did not have a
problem with the Co-op, but was not a member. The transportation studies are not correct. The reason only five
cars go out of the properiy between 4:15 pm and 5:15 pm is because it is so difficult to get out of there. He was
able to make a left hand turn out of his store today, but eight months out of the year, itis a problem. During those
eight months, he drives through Mill Pond and did not take the route the study cited. Just because the traffic
study, the State, DKS, and the City say one thing, he sees the traffic problems on a daily basis. He has been in
the grocery business for 40 years and knows that the busiest time of the day at a grocery store is between 3:30
pm and 5:30 pm. Taking a left from Marine Drive to 23 Street was not mentioned. That intersection is just past
the entrance to the hospxtal and also needs to be consxdered He has seen the pohce do stings on the crosswalk

fout the Co)op, ftisn
moved, it should al

area s just horrendo
nd was familiar with §

ity needs o take alo
operty. There was nothifig
er, he theughtWauna Bar

! 2 g-
will'have to put apartments on top of the bulldmg Apar’(ments are not like retail. People hve in apartments but
everyone in town would go to a retail use. The two uses are completely different. Mill Pond is impacted by all of
the other lands in the area. The museum is doing the auto shop. The freight line and Napa are moving out. What
will happen to that area? The community needs the zoning and the Commission to look at the total picture
regarding what will happen to Mill Pond. The neighborhood is locked in by the highway, which is impossible
because the traffic backs up to downtown sometimes at 5:00 pm when drivers are trying to get out of town. The

. whole area will be so, impacted by whatever happens to that pxece of property. He needed the Commission to _

take his concerns into mind when making a decision. The Co-op is asking for this zone change, but thisis a
larger issue than just the Co-op. The Co-op is not on the property yet. The Co-op is a great organization and they
have given all the reasons why this should happen, but moving in there is always a big maybe. Mill Pond needs
to be considered as a unique community in Astoria and should be protected by the City.

Ron Sweet, 2879 Mill Pond Lane, Astoria, said he was against the application, not the Co-op. He serves on the
Mill Pond Homeowner's Association Design Review Committee, which reviewed and rejected an application for
this project. The traffic impact on the Mill Pond residences adjacent to the Co-op property would be severe. All of

Astoria Planning Commission
Minutes 01-24-2018
Page 8 of 12



the vehicular traffic will be routed down 23" and on to a small street 16 feet wide and into the parking lot. This is
the only way in and out of the residences. He asked the Commission to take this into consideration. He
recommended the traffic be routed off 23 Street, but has been told the City has reasons this would not be
possible. However, the City can change its rules just as it can change the zoning. If traffic can be rerouted off
23rd Street, the Mill Pond Design Review Committee would support the request.

Tricia Long, 280 Maritime Lane, Astoria, said she lived in Columbia Landing, which is a development locked by
the in and out traffic between the Police and Fire Departments and the Pepsi plant. There is another way in fo
her neighborhood through Mill Pond, which she uses quite a bit. She understood the concerns about how to get
into the proposed Co-op. She is a Co-op member and was not against the Co-op; however, she could not
understand how she would be able to get info the Co-op through the proposed routes. Without having the
information mentioned in the document, she could not understand the impact of the trafﬂc to the overalla

Pond, Columbia Landing, and the senior hvmg apartments would all be i

the Association, dis
n review process,

ravery fiice grocery store that wxll have better pricing than it does now. The store will have healthy options for deli
foods, hot soups, and sandwiches made with local and organic ingredients. The new Co-op will ultimately
increase property values. Traffic is a realily that everyone deals with. He currently walks to work, but the new
store is an extra half mile from his house. However, people who are getting a large load of groceries will probably
have to drive to the Co-op. The services and co-op community will make that drive worth it.

. Ms. Bunch-added that in"early discussions about the text amendments and zone changes, she and consultant
Rosemary Johnson had talked about recommending a condition of approval that if the Co-op had not met the
definition of substantial construction within two years, the City would initiate a rezone to change the zoning back
to AH-MP. The Applicants would also welcome a condition of approval requiring the property line adjustment.

Mr. Stanley noted that the Co-op's lease contains excluded uses on the adjacent property. The lease is more
detailed than the zoning requirements. The Co-op wants to be a good neighbor and will continue to work with the
homeowner's association to work out the details of their concerns.

Astoria Planning Commission
© Minutes 01-24-2018
Page 9 of 12



Vice President Easom called for closing comments from Staff.

Planner Morgan recommended including the conditions of approval requiring the lot line adjustment and
substantial construction within two years.

Vice President Easom closed the public hearing and called for Commission discussion and deliberation.
Commissioner Miichell said she wanted the Co-op in that location, but was concerned about the traffic issues.
About a year ago, the Traffic Safety Committee discussed the use of the street with the neighborhood. The street
is public, but it was not built to standards that would accommodate two-way traffic with parking on both sides.

Planner Morgan stated the street was 20 feet wide from curb to curb. Without parkmg on either side, the W(dth is
acceptable to the Fire and Engmeermg Departments. &

studies were very ne
tudy, does not mean

require a
line and

' 1 around. However the property
commercial spot. She could not think of a better business to be on that property. The
Co-op is a serious business and had not raised $1.6 million just to back out of this pro;ect The City can reverse
the zone change if the Co-op does back out and substant&al construction has not begun in two years. She
supported the request.

Commissioner Moore clarified that the AH-MP zone is not a commercial zone, but a mixed-use zone. Limited
.- commercial uses are allowed, but so are residential and professional uses. The parcel is complicated. The zone
has its own restrictions, but the property is also within the Gateway Overlay Zone and Civic Greenway Zone.
Both overlay zones impose significant construction hurdles for any development, like building massing
requirements that make a single-story building very difficult to build without a significant variance. The Civic
Greenway imposes height restrictions that limit multi-story options. Those hurdles will remain regardless of the
zoning. His biggest concern was for the neighborhood. Conditionat uses for the AH-MP zone are designed to
control impacts to the neighborhood. The amended LS zone would allow this commercial use outright and the
neighborhood would lose that control. He agreed the City should refrain from rezoning half of a parcel, so he
would require a lot line adjustment. Approving an amended LS zone that only applies to one property

Astoria Planning Commission
Minutes 01-24-2018
Page 10 of 12



unnecessarily complicates the Development Code. He recommended the Commission deny the requést, Any
commercial use in the Mill Pond neighborhood needs to be a conditional use.

Commissioner Cameron-Lattek believed the Commission recognized the contribution of a business like the Co-
op. This request feels drastic and complicated, and she would need a significant reason to approve a request
like this one. The economic benefits provided by the Co-op include good family wage jobs and benefits to the
food community, which is growing in this area. That makes her feel more comfortable about being flexible with
the zoning for this project. The Advance Astoria Project supports economic development policies that allow more

flexibility in zoning when there are good economic reasons to do so.

Vice President Easoni stated he was concerned with rezoning a piece of a parcel for one business. He was also
concerned about the traffic, but said traffic issues would exist regardiess of what is developed on that property
ithi

Three 6,000 square foot burld'ngs could generate even; .more traffic than.the.G

ost visible psece of vaca
difeceive other requests

indicated that a light is not warranted. It was a long and difficult battle to get the traffic light at

Safeway and the City ended up paying for a large portion of that project.

Commissioner Mitchell added the Safeway light is part of the reason traffic backs up. Traffic lights are not always
a helpful solution and they are very expensive. Cities need to charge adjacent uses for part of a traffic light's
expense. She did not believe a traffic light would help in this situation. ODOT wanted to put a traffic hght by the

. bridge, but Astoria fought for the round-a-bout.

Commissioner Henri said slowing down traffic could help facilitate entering and exiting the property. The main
concern is for the residences on Steam Whistle Way. Three of the parcels directly across from the proposed site

are currently empty.

Vice President Easom called for a straw poll. Commissioners Henri, Cameron-Lattek, Mitchell, Herman and Vice
President Easom supported the request. Commissioner Moore was opposed. Vice President Easom also

. Astoria Planning Commission
Minutes 01-24-2018
Page 11 of 12



supported additional conditions of approval allowing the zoning to revert back if construction had not begun in
two years and requiring a lot line adjustment.

Commissioner Moore said allowing the zoning to revert back is an indication that the rezone should not be
approved. This decision is about a property, not a business. The request is overly complicating and unnecessary.
The decision is not a reflection of the Co-op.

Commissioner Cameron-Lattek stated this was also a decision about the development of the community. The
two-year rule does feel awkward, but it accomplishes what the Commission wants.

Commissioner Mitchell added development of the community was complicated by the fact that a State highway
went through town.

~Lommissioner Henri;gg

ce President Easom,
Ssioner Moore

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:09 pm.

APPROVED:

City Planner

. Astoria P!ahning Commission
Minutes 01-24-2018
Page 120f 12



CORRESPONDENCE & MISCELLANEOUS DOCUMENTS

2-23-18 Letter from Dick Darby, Sandy Darby and other Mill Pond residents
(signatures not legible), dated 2-12-18, concerning Amendment Request
(A17-02).

2-9-18 Letter from John Ryan, dated 1-9-18, concerning Amendment Request
(A17-02).

1-31-18 Letter from Dick Darby, dated 1-26-18 concerning Amendment Request
(A17-02).

1-24-18 Letter from H. Peters, dated 1-24-18 concerning Amendment Request
(A17-02).

1-24-18 Email from Paul Benoit, dated 1-24-18 concerning Amendment Request
(A17-02).

1-24-18 Letter from Doris Larremore, dated 1-24-2018, concerning Amendment

Request (A17-02).

1-23-18 Letter from John Ryan, dated 1-24-18, concerning Amendment Request
(A17-02).
1-23-18 Email from Jay Rasmussen, dated 1-22-18 concerning Amendment

Request (A17-02).

1-23-18 Email from Ned Heavenrich, dated 1-22-18 concerning Amendment
Request (A17-02).

1-22-18 Email from McLaren Innes, dated 1-22-18 concerning Amendment
Request (A17-02).

1-19-18 Email from George Hague, dated 1-19-18 concerning Amendment Request
(A17-02).
1-9-18 Letter from Ken Shonkwiler, ODOT Senior Transportation Planner on

Amendment Request (A17-02).

1-9-18 Letter from Keith P. Blair, ODOT Region 2 Senior Transportation Analyst
on Amendment Request (A17-02).



s =
/cef.i FE: Covpp vis pAriey L= 11~ 18
o . CITY OF ASTORIA
o Asvenss Cory ﬂwﬁfg Ce v N C by g
BUILDING CODES

/PE%W /L/M/A/,«!:‘/Z AL JJEFoRE | T 574750
THAT Qg peele 7hHE Coly) gGrpL /5
ZHhe& 1555—5/ 59/0//.574/ py/.g\r/;g//&%é{??yd

ffwf/gz,ezf LERY &ﬁyﬁéﬂﬂéﬁ 17 T
77;Lwﬁ< L AL L S TESY ofhs T TEE
7Y & EA/“Z'Q/%/&/E’/EX;T,ﬁ T4/s5. /)5 A&
GAD PEA3L FoRp Tfe Folow a7€
./sz./é}-ﬁ oL 8 . .
@3?&4;@ Q,,ézj'?ég?:/m AR RO LS, ‘U/a

( DL LS, Wéay;fﬂJ POOWHN T L2 -
INEONLE APT;S P2 ThE EHET — PHESE :
Fol ks ALK RIE 0 fozs- aa‘?ﬁ/ﬂj’, W fp e Je RS |
QTL, DLy @720/9/// WWHrS7es=, AJ\/A/K) I OE 2R LS
D BES 7, wrE Feel, 12 KIE 0&5”415? A4S

f”/&()”f 40"7’4»
—

WEE  WERE ZELf TAHT “Tho Ikl
PES EAEL SFcZ? PLEAY &/67.4/4/497 &
RE-YErsey @ FHis ;5 TETags /55 e
AS D whHS, foR  TO ¢ wgeass, p Fros,
Con g rrm ) PEE ELsrZ 740 S, OL0GHN s
| T OBas mawy Homs pLers 8 pY
wel Awpre Fhad THAET pay y7RA
CAN AE Reyopssr Just BY The

R




®,

P oF A compuzee ey

) E AiLSe [HFCARD TTYAT —% e /ﬂyygizrkf
ﬁ&u,ﬂf/e LUAYTE T Te FA CE W ARLS

Jrs v /is AP TS LEAST of 40«-070
oI 7 Hr 5 /TS /Z/,fy‘?‘“ Csr Ul T [l

REAIZALS o T2pifrs 75 SZL *7/;:@ AARL) <,

oF Ve Co- 0/0 V.

UeRy (M poRTANT . 75 WA SE  STETY

L hiTTLE  PNE oY WEST, Tr Jelp

Qo VTR .. TTRA FFIL.
WE, ThHe UNSlerR SICs8, AFK. FoZ

,ZZ'RA’ . /:C’/.:l Vo Ny s 5;123[‘;57*? IV Bk s

o T of OO GARAESS 2H Thio AlLeV
wlo ecrTTiw e TV |
There (s HOLREAPY & DAEwATY Lo

@ Lev ou A3 Bo Tree.

LEASK BE CoMSIpERATLE OF THE
n[/”/aqﬂa/zf oo

5‘/&;{/{/77

2555 Me// peey 44/
LEBS ZVL(/Q/Q [OWOL L s _



CITY OF ASTORIA

FEB -q 2018

~ To: Mike Morgan 9 January 2018
Astoria City Council BUILDING CODES

Re: Order No. A17-02 Zoning change to LS, Local Services

With this letter, I am not in support of the recommendations for the approval of the proposed
amendment by the Planning Commission on Jan 24, 2018. The the City Council should not approve
this amendment based on the following: which is consistent with my letter to the Planning Commission

of January 24 ,2018,

1. The zoning change requested was for a portion of the lot known as the Wanna lot 144.
The lot line adjustment to split the property was not legally defined and therefore

without public comment.

2. The Traffic Impact Analysis prepared by DKS did not reflect the true traffic impact of
the change in zoning. The report and testimony did not include the specific dates and
time of the traffic survey and was obviously not representative of the high volumes of
traffic in this area during the high traffic times of the year.

3. Any zoning change in this area must include traffic mitigation measures for the benefit
of the city and the residences. No such mitigation measures were include in the
proposal nor the recommendations. The mitigation measures should include at
minimum;

The use of Steam Whistle Way is prohibited from use by, the property, original

or split. (see Paul Benoit memo to Planning Commission of 24 Jan, 2018, pg 1, last

paragraph)
Funds must be set-aside for traffic light installation at Marine Drive and 23

Street. ‘

Lots from any split in lot 144 must use 23™ Street for access and egress.

Any zoning change should not be conditioned on a specific start of
construction of a permitted building.

4. The present zoning for the property, lot 144 is AH-Mill Pond. With this amendment the
property, lot 144, now has zoning LS for % and Ah for %. The recommendation for
change did not consider the total impact of this change now that there are 2 lots with a
distinct impact on the community.

5. This zoning change and lot split is in response to a single users advantage with a 2 year
midnight clause on construction per the planning meeting. I question this procedure.

The amendment is a direct response to a single users request to double the size of zoned retail, hence I
have attached a story “Walk to the Park™ , originally for the Design Review Committee if approved, to
familiarize the Council of the impacts of the present design and a possible alternate design. Iam not
elaborating on how to solve the lot problems just emphasizing the 1mpacts if approved

I respectfully submit that this Amendment not be approved. -

Respectfully,

Lo N
503-717-2883 attachment:; Walk in the Park
2 pages

ond Lane Astoria, Or. ryanscroft@earthlink.net




A Walk to the Park

Downtown doing some shopping, I decide on such a nice day to go to a park I have heard about
and never had a chance to visit, Pergola Park at De Muro Mill Pond Village. Driving east on Marine .
Drive, about 22™ street and the CMH building the traffic starts to slow and I wonder what is happening.
Anyway it gives me a chance to get my bearings and see that 23 sireet, just past the Shell station, is
just ahead. Iknow the park is on 23" street and one block to the north. I notice that there is not a left
turn arrow or left turn lane on Marine drive and the traffic turning off and on 23rd is a real mess. I
wander if it is caused from the metal building along 23® Street. I do see a small outdoor dining area
close to the road and figure this must be part of the Astoria Co-op building. Guess all this traffic and
street parking, wherever there is room, is from the Co-op. What about their parking lot and enfrance,
must be down 23 where there is a truck, large semi, trying to back up for a delivery. 23" Streetisa
mess of traffic, so I decide to park in the CMH lot south of Marine Drive and the Co-op. Wow, glad to

get out of that mess and on foot.

When I get to the “cross walk™ at Marine and 23 the traffic is going both ways on Marine, cars
entering from 23™ are trying to turn left (across traffic) and turning right and at the Shell station cars
exiting the station are turning right and left.?? I get the traffic to stop and hurry across Marine as not to
interfere with this competitive sport of intersection derby by vehicles from 5 positions. Where is the
traffic light to make sense of this, at least the developer should be required to set funds aside to finance
this light at a later date (this has happen before). Need to see what is next.

As I start down 23" on the east side, I pass the sidewalk to the outdoor seating area of the Co-op
and notice that the parking area is beyond and in front of the building which I cannot see from my
vantage point on the sidewalk OR, could I be approaching the entrance drive to the parking area with
a sidewalk along side to access the eating area in front of the Co-op that is now located on the east side
of the property. Traffic seems to do better when off the street with a parking lot they can see from 23%
Street. I seem to remember a memo from the last city manager, Benoit. stating the entrance to this
commercial property would be off 23" Street, what happened to that.

I keep walking along the metal building with a small landscape area between the sidewalk and
building, What happened to the set back requirement for commercial/residential buildings along
streets, the building is long, big like a WALL, and not very inviting as I'walk along. OR, walking
along a nicely landscaped area with a dominate redwood tree nicely fitting into the park like landscape.
I stop to admire the age and grandeur of this tree, imagining what this tree has endured during the uses
of this property (saw mill, plywood mill and remediation program). I am amazed when I look across
the street and notice the trees twin although not as big and how the developers of the gas station
property was able to save this beautiful tree. Might call them the twin towers of 23" street. Enjoying
the trees and landscape and to the east a very nicely designed parking lot with easy access to the Co-op

. building: It-is-a-warm-and inviting-design-and is accessible to everyone-on Marine and 23", The entry -~ - - - -

to the Co-op is now visible and the customers eating and having coffee would be in sight.

As I walk along, I am amazed at this truck coming out of a loading area directly into the sidewalk and
street. A big semi would or could block the sidewalk and street. OR, this could be exit/entrance to the
parking Iot. Vehicles would be back away from the sidewalk with plenty of clear view of pedestrians
and traffic. Any backup would be in the parking lot. The loading dock would be far away from the
sidewalk and street. Drivers visibility would be greatly enhanced. Moving along I come to a small



narrow street.,

I stop in amazement noticing that just east of the loading dock area is the entrance and exit to
the parking lot. What were they thinking, the traffic is. backed up on 23™ and the traffic trying to enter
23rd from Steam Whistle is backed up because 23" traffic can't enter Marine drive, Then I see the
traffic leaving the parking lot trying to go west on Steam Whistle Way is being stopped by someone
backing out of their garage. Did someone really think this was going to work. Also it looks like a
garage door is open and someone probably located in this traffic mess wants to get in their garage. Bet
this was a quiet narrow alley before all this a happened. I guess they will never figure it out, the fraffic
report says at least the 2 cars more per minute, might even be worse. It is also obvious the
development of the vacant land to east will only have an egress and exit onto Steam Whistle way, more
traffic added. Glad no delivery trucks are here today. OR, traffic is controlled on the Co-op property
parking area and not public streets (23" Street and Steam Whistle Way) and blocking pedestrian use of

public sidewalk.

Finally I get the traffic in and out on Steam Whistle to stop so I can safely cross the ally into the
residential area.. Life threatening . Pleasant walk along 23™ with a house to my right nicely built and
~ painted to enhance the character of the other houses I can see. How does a large dark metal building

" against the sidewalk fit into the theme of the ,Mill Pond area, I ponder.

I get to the corner where across the street is the park. The 23™ and Mill Pond Lane intersection
and the park should not look like this, Traffic from the Co-op and elsewhere is trying to get to the Co-
op or leave the Co-op, not able to use southbound 23rd,, the cars are turning left or right down

- Commercial and Millpond Lane and then off to the other connecting street. This is also a mess,
. vonder what it was like before this. Bet this was a quit unique residential area with just local traffic and
~ a few “looky-loos” moving about. Lots of people walking with or without pets enjoying the pond and
the scenery around the homes, not a busy street resembling a downtown traffic day.

Wow again. finally after waiting I get across the street on a painted crosswalk, Cars stop, in a
hurry to join the traffic backup ahead. This was worth the walk and the trip through time ,
- present and future (Co-op location along 23rd or an alternate location at the east of the property).

Now what is the vision of the City Council and the Design Review Committee for this area , a
complete change to the livability of Mill Pond or will it be a decision to mitigate the direct impacts by
no zoning change or relocating the Co-op to the west and try to salvage the pristine community in
Astoria as much as possible (with no zoning change no Co-op impacts).

r'/ }é&w
oty
495 Mill P Lane

Astoria, Oregon 97103
(I am the one trying to get out of the garage)



oty OF ASTORIA /A6 /8

JAN 31 2018

o -
Ci1 Ty oF Arezori A ) pwaeaness ot

REES A1T-002-

< dure o /<2y /éuéézﬁuf; Yo ALIOT
Core 0/75 Use oF STEAM Whisrie  BoT FOH
ARE NOT AWREE oF 724 /265x75w7‘5 Use
OF DAME. SeUeRpL oF 0D USE oAl
LARRGE APEBUS FoR [LAR conss/Nb, ere
flso ysep B SERveE gRrovILsES .
~WhEN PARS Ahe on The A/@us & CALs

CA+/ /0/9’5*5 Ok, — BuT poT 25&1 5 DL éws/mf?
IF Yo muiE {’rﬁ/z}///wﬁxs?u ey DER,

Con g_:wﬂ‘f FRvin Tthe —=zore -—7- 25 gl puw
ME WAY wWEST, £47T OF co-ep, +toTI  OF

DReps will, Commie wesT Jovuw o7 DO,

Preop Powd 294N 1z poess Szepw whisos,
Th1s, w1l 720 EWSTIE TPAFFIC Py

7he R 1 pf@oms p) 7=, ¥ e A %9@5/6’/2’5&45”
/M/y“’éé S/Zo‘/l///@é[ Wﬁu/&p Ae//ﬂ -

- MM%?A Vh ///Q//wﬁ fAne , 2 @/9/&5 4/94/7’
/p I ANY ARE JHRRKES ot S0, So0L ol

m /! /ﬂ/v ;
_ PAEASE Pors.02. Y WY BE YO

/Jﬁ BRNER il ST Lol FHI=E A’///’:E%é Z
2 Mr. Dick Dar Lo
’W\) 2_555%51?%% Ln = /Z A D /ﬂ/)




(~7.7-(8
CITY OF ASTCRIA

N oeN DUM L0 = PCLDTEMBETRTEC
BUILDING CODES

e Tl T TEmk Shoolef be spressEs

,QCf The CrTy:

A7 The £EAST END OF S TEAN (yh) ST LL
Are L AT Arpes ol T @eiTe A Few
(%ﬁrmk‘)/&«x/x,fp Faka) coho WSE STEAM whisTLE
LU,'H\ Ther WALLELS ‘{wheg[_ ebhAmks .

A There RRE Ao S/7< whrks Thacy o
Dok The mipfL =, '

T rve reasecl Tearrce. wll be mu 1750E af
§”4 Eﬁ:ﬂg As—=zoea ocd! prT vy Slonvdss e

MD‘Q&C—-*’? These Fol.,ks 7o /‘ﬁ,///g/f,ﬁ L A
Top sareTy., Or, NOTUR( The BLDC MAUfIERS

To AU S€ SAmec.

L2
=— Db y

@/



.J.a.ﬂ..r.r.. A 2% > A3 o T T T A T T T T T T T AT T sy y o
2 H 2 ek 3 SRR Ry R AL 5 ; Y3 %
AR : ‘ : (SR hvﬂw.,.m.w.vww...“w R ‘m»u_«m_%hiﬁw» B, : ; : : ST s
52 % A A R RS T R ORI
: .mﬂﬂ.vﬂm&..&u;m w_.mmw%:fe& G »mqfwsﬂm s ¢ L) Sl bt
Iisirmshits HiciEe i 3 Rt

,xﬂaﬂmﬂ.lcmw.i Ty

B
S
% ¥ Sk BT
5 (o k 3 ! Rt i R U A e Y
S ZEE Nl
) SN
2

b Er T
LSRRI,

o

a J DL
.,mm@.._u..\r.a\.é..%
TR
T
3 Ko 34
5

3as
T

e
25t

TR

3z

S 3 3
: A T
b AR

ST
e T,
X A FIR T A
SRSy > SR
R BETEIS G 555
$ ke T e
B O 3 3 ]
i, LT E 3
T S i 3 z A
LMD FUEN e X g St
R TS S 3 ; SRR
Qi % : RN,

LR
Xl

£
&

2
B
AT

AN
PR
e e ; ;
.,..H&.w,: e ) 3 s i
Gl I 3 NN i T
A ; : ; R
ey ¥ AR e {
% el GCRE]
: Trgls
& X A
Y X loh#-\b.».f.l
LA, e 3

DR
& ety > : ; : & 25 :
X HEOH L 38 3 ¥ A, XA
3 S SR K ; g AR LR : ot
% ; ? 4 3 3 .w.hwmﬂ : zmv.,w.- .m. 53
7 A 3 ’ rv.\o..,.»
: LR

ﬂ‘wvim) i e L
A T el 5&‘% X cdw g
2% g . % 2 7ad S o e 1
5 5 e : :
ot " > 3 Lt Yl x e X
Sy B 2 : DR 3 g R S d 3
e _ A et Sl e
e B 238 R A ; DA
3 P ! 3 ....,n..‘w..,”.mm..
R T
AT
1 :

e
ety
i
S
S NLL 3
4 ; ; d
s : LD
SRR,
R

) v n..ﬁ.
it 3 a3 S TS
Tt SRR i e RO ; ; ¥
T A R : ; 5
: ﬁ.wﬁ..\,,e%....i%ﬁ%% R . EERaT e SRR PRy
et S ] ; : SR e O ER N
P G : S S
e s

Y

G

0y SR

AR AL :
1R SRR Sy i 0
e e e

s

2, 09,
eI
R
PARE R el T I

SR,
A ol
S S
S SR O TR

I

AN LY

a
Sjiranc




CITY oF ASTOmiA

JAN 24 2018
BUILDING copee

January 24, 2018

City of Astoria
Planning and Staff
1095 Duane St.
Astoria, Oregon 87103

Staff Report and Findings of Fact: City Staff and Interim City Planner have not done a full review nor thoroughly researched the
facts with regards to the application. The Report and Findings are seemingly biased. The interim planner should have recused
himself from reviewing the application for a rezone. Why wasn’t the review and subsequent recommendation made by the
City’s “Acting Planner” rather than the “Interim Planner”? The Acting Planner has little or no past affifiation with the Coop, but
the Interim Planner has more than 25 years(?) of Coop connections and affiliation. The Interim Planner and his wife are strong
advocates of the Coop as members and as board members(?} IF a fully extensive research of All the Facts has heen completed
than the entire “supporting documents” should be made available for public review,

WHY is consideration being given to Add another 2 acres of land to the surrounding LS zone? There’s already a block of LS
zoned land immediately west and adjacent to the Mill Pond property. it seems like that property has been for sale for a long
time. The block contains 2 acres of land of which 1 acre is vacant- the same size as the applicant’s site. Why remove perfect
Multi-Family land from downtown Astoria’s last remaining Multi-Family inventory of lands? The applicant’s site is bordered by
Multi-Family and Residential properties and should continue as so. The City Planner ran a 9,000 sq. ft. retail user out of town.
The developer wanted to build an Acceptable retail use in the current LS zone but was denied. Now the City Planners want to

- add another 2 acres to LS Zoning? WHY? When Napa Auto Parts moves to their new location in the old Astoria Ford building

there will be another big empty retail space in the adjacent LS zone. That property will compete directly with downtown core
for tenants, depriving those retail building owners of tenants and rents.

Backeround: The property is and was zoned AH-MP after extensive area research and detailed thought. The primary goal -
Attached Housing within Mill Pond. The main reason for the commercial component of the Zone, as clearly stated in the City of

Astoria’s Development Code: AH-MP; PURPOSE - LIMITED COMMERCIAL USES

Permitted uses outright are Multi-Family and Residential development. The other two uses are Personal Services and
Professional Services, including Banking and Medical uses, having Low Impact to the Residential Neighborhaod.

Conditional Uses Permitted: These uses are Only to be considered if they are predicated on Limiting the Mill Pond Residential
area to nominal traffic. A 12,000 sq. ft. retail user generating 1,000 or more cars per day was Never a consideratiof: for the site,
and Never should be. There are several reasons that 6,000 sq. ft. of area was established as the maximum size building forany
Retail Store. There are no compelling reasons to change zoning to allow a Doubling of the existing size to 12,000 sq. ft.

History: Twenty vears ago Astoria’s Mayor, Mill Pond’s Developer, and Safeway agreed on a plan to keep Safeway from shutting
down and moving out of Astoria. That agreement entailed moving Safeway tao the east'end of Astoria. In exchange Mill Pond

zoning allowed for a Small Retail Building. Why? To keep other large grocers from directly competing within the same area.
Now the City wants to renege on their promise to Safeway by changing the Milf Pond zoning to allow for a competing 12,000 sf

grocery store, only 8 blocks away.

Finding: To Amend the map and text of the Astona Development Code to Facmtate construction of the Coop is simply Wrong.

" Processing as a guas:dudxc&a action based on a Small Rezone area - Is srmpfy Untrue. The map area is large compared to

Astoria’s small boundaries. More so, the rezone’s Traffic Impacts brought about by the grocery store’s traffic generation will
add greatly to the Traffic Nightmare already in this section of town. The non-lighted intersection has several streets and
driveways feeding into a very confusing intersection. Heading east on Hwy 30 there’s no left-turn lane at 23" st. Much traffic
comes from Duane St. to head east on Hwy 30. But traffic from Hwy 30 heading west has a turn lane onto Duane St., without
allowing the east-bound vehicles to make a left turn from Hwy 30. Be careful what you ask for, you may get it!



Finding: This area is one of the last opportunities for a retail use in Mill Pond that provides “Goods and Services” for the
surrounding community in the heart of town. Again, simply Untrue. There’s a 60,000 square foot Safeway 8 blocks away. | wish
we could all have a 60,000 sq ft Safeway within a 5 minute walk from home along the riverfront. Safeway offers all the
necessary “goods and services” plus much more for Mill Pond residents and Hospital employees. Safeway has a very large
organic foods department. Their amount of space dedicated to selling organic natural whole foods and supplies is probably the
same as Coop plans to build. There is simply no need for another grocery store in East Astoria. It is clearly short sighted to think
the peagple of Mill Pond and the hospital employees must have an 38 Million Dotlar Coop to walk ta. The 200 people living in the
Mill Pond apartments cannot afford to buy Coop’s high priced organic foods and supplies. Those who can will go to Safeway or
a downtown Coop or the New, Lower Priced Natural Grocers store opening in Warrenton. For Mill Pond residents and hospital
émployees that must have closer convenience there’s a good selection of foods and necessities next door at Mini-mart, Home

Bakery and Hondos Brewpub.

The Finding should state this site is the Last Opportunity for Multi-Family Housing that provides Affordable Living for the
surrounding community in the Heart of Town. Daily Astorian front page articles covering “Astoria’s Housing Crisis” over the past
3 years state there are Few [F Any apartment sites in Astoria, and None Near Dowatown. [t's nonsensical to add more LS zoned
retail land to Mill Pond when there’s many other properties available. Certainly the ones located in the downtown core orin
West Astoria where a far greater number of Coop members come from makes much more sense.

Finding: A traffic study was prepared and concluded there will be no negative impact as a result of the development. The City
clearly has Not done their homework. The amendment clearly Does Not meet Transportation Demands. Who paid for the traffic

study? The Developer or the City? .

Did the Planner or City staff talk with local residents, or business owners, or their employees who must drive through this highly
congested area on a daily basis? From May to September this area is possibly as bad as my hometown of Portland at rush hour.
Most summer days, always on weekends, it already is. Every Portland beer-guzzling Hipster, girlfriend and her dog will happily
pull into the Coop. Every R.V., Pickup-pulling boat, Semi-truck driver who can’t navigate turning into and out of the Coop .
parking lot will be swearing at whoever let this in happen...blame the City & ODOT. The smart phone app WAZE will lead
hundreds of Frustrated Drivers to take the Alternate Side Roads “Through Mill Pond Housing” - between the Astoria Police and
Fire Station's lighted intersection at 30" St. & Commercial St. at City Lumber. {F Coop is allowed to build, there should be a light

at the intersection — the same as Safeway installed.

ODOT: They should be very concerned with this Major Traffic Impact. If Coop will have 6,000 memhbers and each member
making 2 trips per week that equals 1,700 trips per day. If Coop is open to all shoppers, not just members, that will be 200 more
trips per day. Coop must capture as many tourists and out of area shoppers as possible to pay for their new $8 Million Dollar
Store. Add another 200 trips per day every summer weekend. The majority of people will Drive to the Coop to shop. People
don't carry bags of groceries walking all over town. At the time when the majority of people shop from 4pm to 6pm, traffic will
become much more congested, if not immediately than in the near future as Coop strives to expand membership. Now imagine
the traffic problems. Who's going to pay for the traffic light that will be needed? The taxpayers? Has City Staff, the Planner, the
Consultant, or the Developer tried to navigate through this area at peak traffic volumes “Befare” a 12,000 sq foot Grocery Store
is built? On a Friday evening or a Sunday afternoon during summer? On a dark, rainy night at Spm on any given winter day? Try

it, then imagine another 2,000 cars daily and watch it come to a crawl.

The City wants to change the zone to appease the Coop. What about all the East end residents that Don’t shop at the Caop but
need to drive through this area of town, every day, at S5pm? Add all those residents to the hundreds of shoppers going to
Safeway at this same time of day. Add hundreds of nearby medical workers and downtown Astoria employees trying to exit

" through the area. How does that impact residents of Knappa, Svenson, AlderBrook and Safeway neighborhoods? Evenifyou
don’t live on that side of town you should care about those residents.

Finding; The Buildable Lands Inventory is laughable. City Staff, Planner and Wickiup Consultant- where are all these portions of
land identified as “Other” located? IF there were so many acres of buildable lands why has nobody built Multi-Family Housing
on them? The “Other” lands referred to in the study are mostly non-buildable or cost prohibitive to ever build on - that’s why.




SN

There’s only 1 flat, ready to build site in the middle of town, nearly 2 acres, zoned for Multi-Family Housing- and that's sitting in
Mill Pond zoned AH-MP.

Fact: There is No Deficit of land zoned for commercial use- more particularly Retail Use, in Astaria. Each time the retail shopping
district expands out of the downtown core those building owners suffer the consequences of vacancies and low rents, Qver the
past 25 years there's been empty retail stores throughout downtown. What about the current vacant buildings: IC Penney,
Charter, YMCA, Van Dusen, Flavels, Port of Call Event Center, Arc Arcade, Fisher Brothers. Does this suggest there’s a need to
add more retail land? The only new retail building in many years sits empty right next to the Armory.

Fact: There are several suitable, buildable properties available in both the downtown core and areas in West Astoria. The
Coop's decision to move east beyond the downtown core blocks seems ill-advised. There are no financially responsible reasons
to do so, nor are there any obvious reasons. Remaining downtown became much more important once Safeway expanded east.
A downtown Coop is easily accessible for their customers, whereas a move out of downtown walking distance will become

problematic for many.

Did City Staff, Planner, and Consultant research all the other possibilities for Coop expansion? Lands that Don’t need a major
zoning change which dramatically reduce the City’s Inventory of Multi-Family Land? What about the following locations?

1) The Coop could help relocate the tenant in their existing building and expand into that space, then add anotherwmg
to the building. The adjacent empty property could be bought and used for more parking.

2) Lum's old Auto site. Large property. No impact to Multi-Family Housing lands.

3} Half block of land at 8™ st. and Duane St. with lower level parking lot.

4}  Large empty site with lots of parking below at 11" St. and Marine Dr.

S} Video Horizon Building on Marine Dr. Looks like a grocery store. Lots of parking, or, Build parking fot at bowling alley.

6) Warehouse building next to Video Horizon. Remodel with Coop on ground floor, apartments above. Lots of parking.

7} Columbia Produce building and adjacent land. Large property with lots of parking.

8} Land nextto KFC. Large site at lighted intersection with lots of parking.

9} Old grocery store building next to old Astoria Ford building. Large site with lots of parking. Could tear down and build
new or remodel old store. No traffic problems and better location in West Astoria- opposite end from Safeway store.

10} IF the Coop is blind in their pursuit to expand eastward, the already LS Zoned Property adjacent to the Mill Pond site
locks like it's still for sale. Lots of parking. However, it would still add far too much congestion to the area, with
limited options to head east on Hwy 30 without winding through the Mill Pond housing areas to get to the traffic
signal located at Astoria Police and Fire Station’s lighted intersection at 30"st. & Hwy 30.

All of the above properties look like they're in commercial zones where a retail store could go to “Without” the need to Rezone

Land, or more importantly, Remove Multi-Family Housing Opportunities froma Very Low Inventory of Buildable Lands.

Baottom Line: (F Coap Cannaot Pay their monthly lease on a new 88 Million Dollar Stere {500,000 per vear?) the store will Close.
But, after the LS zoning is changed, Can the City Stop a BIG Chain Store from Leasing or Subleasing or Buying the building? Can
Mill Pond Housing do anything to stop an unwanted new 12,000 Tenant? Why didn’t the Astor Ventures Developer apply fora

Conditional Use Permit and NOT a Rezone of the property? Would a CUP be for Only the Coop Store and Not a future Tenant??

Conclusion / Recommendation: Astoria’s Engineering Department and ODOT should step up and do their job by demanding a

“Real and Impartial” Traffic Impact Study, The entire “Findings of Fact” should be dismissed and thrown out . City Staff should

immediately reverse its “Biased” decision to recommend adoption of the zoning change amendment.
Thank you for Listening, and most importantly for Considering.
H. Peters

402 Alameda Ave.
Astoria, Oregon 97103



Anna Stamper

From: Mike Morgan

Sent: Wednesday, January 24, 2018 10:25 AM.
To: Anna Stamper

Subject: Fw: Mill Pond / Co-Op

Please copy for tonight’s meeting.

From: Paul Benoit [mailto:pbenoit@piedmont.ca.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, January 24, 2018 10:18 AM

To: Mike Morgan <mmorgan@astoria.or.us>
Subject: Miil Pond / Co-Op

Mike,

| am aware that the Planning Commission is considering a zone amendment to the AH-
MP Zone in response to a proposal by the Astoria CO-op Grocery. First let me say
that, in my opinion, it is a perfect use in the right location.

Back in the 1990’s | was involved in cleaning up the mill site and working with the
community to envision options for redevelopment. It fook a very long time for Astorians
to come around to the realization that the mill was not coming back and thatthe
prospect for some new industrial development at the site was near zero. With that’
realization, we were free to imagine options. Given the proximity to the river and the
existence of the pond, the site had attributes ideal for a riverfront residential
neighborhood. The vision for re-use at the time was reflective of the only
redevelopment that seemed viable, that would prevent “big-box” retail, and that would
generally resonate with the community. That said, there was no new residential
development to speak of in Astoria — for years. So, the vision of a hew neighborhood
was bold, experimental and hopeful -- at best. There was also no new commercial
development to speak of — though Bi-Mart was actively looking for sites, as was
Safeway and those were the last thing that the community wanted for the site.

Nith the vision for Mill Pond in place, we sought out a developer and, to our great good
‘ortune, we found Art DeMuro and his company Venerable Properties. He proved a
rerfect partner, understood Astoria, and shared our vision. He was “all in” and what |
rou see-today-is a product of, what at the time, was very creative thinking and =~
significant risk-taking. The zoning was developed and the site platted in partnership
vith Venerable Properties and the Astoria community. The desire and vision for the

site at the corner of 23« and Marine Drive was for a commercial type use that would
serve Astorians and the adjacent communities - a more scaled down retail or
yrofessional use that would be advantaged by the adjacency to Highway 30 and that
sould be accessed from 23« Street — negating the need for driveway access from the

1



highway (which ODOT would likely have denied). Art DeMuro very intentionally did not
divide the site to promote housing and he, in fact, held on to the lot in hope that when
t.  Mill Pond site was largely built out with housing that this corner lot would finally
attract a beneficial use. Unfortunately, that did not happen in Art's lifetime and the site
remains vacant.

There is land in Astoria on the fringes of our urban forest, and land in the broader
-egion, that is in close proximity to established neighborhoods and quiet streets that
wvould well support residential development. There are, however, very few sites in
Astoria that have all the attributes needed to support commercial development. The
site at the corner of 23« and Marine Drive has all of the key attributes needed to
support a retail establishment and [ can think of no better use than the Co-op to finally
ealize the long-held vision that Venerable Properties and the City had for the site. In
he 1990’s we had a vision and the zoning was honestly an experiment. It largely
vorked, but please do not view that early zoning as something that was etched in
tone. Realizing an opportunity to accommodate such a community benefitting use as
1e Astoria Co-op is worth making appropriate adjustments to a near 20 year old
Xperiment.. '

au Benoit

ity Administrator, City of Piedmont
yrmer Community Development Director and City Manager, City of Astoria



;L/Mg /“/j ROTS
(odoeis &7 o Lo -

%JM%MA&gM%
Bt /%MMM@ L D
A W%L ar Ahs Aia . T

Doris Larremore
1108 Irving Ave.

Astoria, OR 97103




-

R ECEIVE '
. : .. JAN 3 2018
Astoria Planning Commissioners 24 Jan 2018

* Amendment Request (A17-02) COMMUNITY DEVELOPHENT |

My name is John Ryan residing at 2495 Mill Pond Lane, located adjacent to the subject property to the
north, garage on Steam Whistle Way

As I understand this property has gone through several development proposal in the past. Today, the
Mill Pond lots to the north adjoining this property are either built-out or have proposed residences in
design stages. The concern over the impacts of a development now directly effect the residential

community.

The present zoning calls for a 6000 sf maximum retail space on the property known as the Wauna Lot
144. Now, a new zoning (LS) allows a 12,000 sfretail grocery on % the lot. For starters, if approved,
how can I be assured that a different retail establishment, not a grocery store, will be built on the
property? If approved, why not leave the AH Mill Pond zoning and add a 12,000 sf grocery store as a
conditional use? How can I be assured I will not have a more objectionable tenant to the south?

Mill Pond is a residential area/no commercial uses as of today—we have zoning and Homeowners
Guidelines for development on this property. The present zoning has conditions that limit the effect of
a development on the Mill Pond community. ( Residential and pedestrian orientated) It is obvious to
me as an adjacent land owner that the impact of doubling the size of a retail building will at least
-double the impact my life, i.e. traffic, noise of business and deliveries and more, all doubled). Isee no
mitigation measures for the noise or the traffic that will be created by this development. At the present
" with no development we are subjected to an impossible traffic situation at 23™ Street and Marine Drive
- (Hwy 30) and also increased traffic on Mill Pond Way and its connecting roads. Where is the traffic
light at Hwy 30 and 23" Street to mitigate twice the traffic being generated. The “traffic report”, I have
reviewed, says no impact- what world of engineering statistics do the writers live in. The real world
sees a mess, an impact to Mill Pond streets and the community as a whole.

When considering this change I would like the commission to consider the changes that are anticipated
in this area and the impact on the livability in this community. The Maritime Museum is developing
the North Coast Auto property, the Freight Line land is going to be developed, the Napa Auto store site
will change its use and now adding the LS zoning to half the Wauna Lot 144 will change the entrance
to the city forever. A comprehensive plan to mitigate the impact on my property is needed. This
zoning change is only part of a larger impact. This approval should not stand alone.

I live in a unique community within the city that should be protected and remain a viable living
community withstanding the pressures of time and unchecked development.

John Ryan

\\W 2y 2 G

N




lMaii i

]
e Ufr 6’:'/0 JOM
Web 7%%9%75?;‘5 ¢ 5:0 Pn-

/ 7
CiTY OF ASTORIA
Founded 1811 o Incorporated 1856
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
January 23, 2018
TO: ASTORIA PLANNING COMMISSIONERS AND INTERESTED PARTIES

FROM:  MIKE MORGAN, INTERIM CITY PLANNE@{//.
"y

SUBJECT: SUPPLEMENTAL STAFF REPORT FOR AMENDMENT REQUEST A17-02

This supplemental staff report contains additional materials or public comments received after
the mailing of Planning Commission Agenda packets on January 18, 2018. This will be the final
supplemental report prior to the Astoria Planning Commission meeting on Wednesday, January

24,2018.

Any comments or materials received after the date of this memorandum will provided to the
Astoria Planning Commissioners on the day of the meeting.

Mike Morgan
Interim City Planner




Anna Stamper

From: Mike Morgan

Sent: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 9:30 AM

To: Anna Stamper

Subject: FW: Astoria Co-op Expansion Rezoning

From: Jay Rasmussen [mailto:Jay.Rasmussen@welchallyn.com]
Sent: Monday, January 22, 2018 1:11 PM

To: Mike Morgan <mmorgan@astoria.or.us>

Subject: Astoria Co-op Expansion Rezoning

Dear Mr. Morgan,

I am writing to encourage you and the City of Astoria to allow the re-zoning changes requested
to accommodate an expanded Astoria-Co-op store at the new Mill Pond site. The Co-op is a
beneficial provider to the community and supports many local consumers and providers. [t
deserves the support of City governance to allow their expansion plans to proceed with all due
haste.

Thank youl

lay Rasmussen
31899 George Hill Road
Astoria, OR 97103-8274

"ONFIDENTIAL NOTICE: If you are not the intended recipient of this message, you are not authorized to
atercept, read, print, retain, copy, forward, or disseminate this communication. This communication may
ontain information that is proprietary, attorney/client privileged, attorney work product, confidential or
therwise legally exempt firom disclosure. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender
nmediately either by phone or by return e-mail, and destroy all copies of this message, electronic, paper, or
therwise. : :



Anna Stamper

N ¢ Mike Morgan

Sent: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 9:30 AM

To: Anna Stamper

Subject: FW: Amendment A17-02 Recommendation for approval

From: Mclaren innes [mailto:macmailg@gmail.com]

Sent: Monday, January 22, 2018 10:10 AM

To: Mike Morgan <mmorgan@astoria.or.us>

Subject: Amendment A17-02 Recommendation for approval

Date: January 22,2018

To: Mike Morgan mmotgan{@astoria.or.us.
From: WMcLaren Innes macmailg@gmail.com
Re: Amendment Request (A17-02) T

This is to recommend approval for the above Amendment Request. This request will amend the zoning map and
development code to allow construction by the Astoria Coop.

T* map amendment will support the relocating and expansion of a retail grocery, which includes increased parking
i ~ /isibility and will allow additional service and convenience to the citizens of Astoria.

This retail use, Astoria Coop grocery, will be developed in a way not to distract from the neighborhood atmosphere

>f the Mill Pond.
>rior to construction the development will be subject to City of Astoria Design Review and applicable development

standards. This process will ensure compatibility of the use with the adjacent Mill Pond area.
Chank you for recommending approval of this Amendment request.

VIicLaren Innes

{cLaren Innes macmaile@gmail.com 503-325-0645




Anna Stamper

Fo_.a: Mike Morgan

Sent: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 9:30 AM
To: Anna Stamper

Subject: FW: Astoria Coop

From: Ned Heavenrich [mailto:nedniulu@yahoo.com]
Sent: Monday, January 22, 2018 11:34 AM

To: Mike Morgan <mmorgan@astoria.or.us>
Subject: Astoria Coop

Mike, my wife and I are very excited about having the coop at the Mill Pond site and | am writing to ask that the planning
commission see that it is a good fit for that area and indeed for all of Astoria. We are not talking Walmart here and a
zone change to accommodate the new store is a win-win for everyone in Astoria and Clatsop county. Thanks, Ned and

Lulu Heavenrich.

sent from Mail for Windows 10

o



Anna Stamper

From: George Hague <gbhague@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, January 19, 2018 4:15 PM

To: Anna Stamper

Cc: Jennifer Benoit

Subject: Letter for each Planning Commissioner

Dear Planning Commissioners,

The Astoria Co-op's new store design is missing an opportunity that the City would be remiss if allowed. We
read that Astoria needs more affordable housing for our workforce and the necessary land correctly zoned to
provide such. “dstoria’s growth rate was hampered by the lack of buildable land according fo a recent state
report.” (page 3A Daily Astorian Jan 17, 2018) There are those in the City Government who favor selling our
parks to provide places for more housing stock. In fact the City recently hired our past wonderful planner
Rosemary Johnson to evaluate the sale of four of our parks. Selling parks is totally opposite of what the 2016
park survey of the public revealed as part of the City’s Park Master Plan. The new Astoria Co-op should be
required to place a few apartment units above their proposed store. At their June 8th meeting their general
manager agreed it wasn’t yet designed and the units would help their employees.

The store uses most of a parcel that is currently zoned for multifamily units and where tow story height would
a0t be a problem. The Co-op’s blog tries to convince us that “height limitations” is a main reason for not adding
affordable units. The permitted uses (#8) in your staff report reads that apartments above the Co-op is
“permitted outright”.

sverything I’ve heard about the owner/architect of the proposed Co-op building is very positive. Iam surprised
1e convinced the Co-op board to agree to a single story building simply to save money. I will find it very sad if
wur City pushes to sell one of our parks to use the land for affordable housing, because our Co-op store was
wuilt on one of our City’s few parcels zoned multifamily. Your approval of this project as proposed on
Vednesday will make this possibility very likely.

will not be able to attend your meeting, but i am sure there will be many good people who support the new
tore. As a Co-op member/owner I am in favor of a new store, but believe we must provide more for our
ommunity than what is being shown to you. Even if we must partner with groups like Oregon Housing
JIliance or Oregon Affordable Housing Management Assoc or even Innovative Housing Inc we need to display
1e will to make this type of housing happen — without selling our parks.

incerely,
,edlngé (Mick) Hague '. - .'. e hew . P _“. ____._ — e - PR - ‘. . . . . ..A . v. :-. . .. . s N ..;_..~:;A . . ‘.‘ -
3rd Street #201
storia, Oregon 97103
S.

Selling underutilized parkland was the main draft recommendation that did NOT rate favorably. Respondents
‘ongly preferred reducing maintengnce and converting underutilized parks into natural areas, or developing

1




underutilized parks with new amenities to satisfy unmet communily needs.” (page 43 Astoria Parks & Recreation
Comprehensive Master Plan) If the public would have been told that the money from selling parks would
gr“nto the General Fund and not back to parks, the results would have been even more against selling our

L s




Department of Transportation

Uregon -

‘Kate Brown, Governor 350 West Merine Drive
‘ e Astoria, Oregon 97103
Phone: (503) 325-7222
1/9/2018 Fax: (503) 325-1314
TO: Mike Morgan, City of Astoria
FROM: Ken Shonkwiler, ODOT Senior Transportation Planner

SUBJECT:  Comprehensive Plan Amendment A17-02 Vallaster and Astoria Co-op

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this zone change and map amendment.

The Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) routinely comments on planning proposals that may have
an impact on state highways. If a plan amendment is involved (including zone changes), ODOT makes itself
available to assist local governments in complying with the requirements of OAR 660-012-0060 (known as the
Transportation Planning Rule). This requires that local governments amending adopted plans and regulations
demonstrate that the amendment will not significantly affect existing or planned transportation facilities (both
state and local) or that such amendments are concurrent with local and state plans. :

The applicant submitted a joint TPR Analysis for the zone change and Traffic Impact analysis to ODOT on the

site to be rezoned from AH-MP to Local Service (LS). After reviewing the proposed development and TPR
,~~alysis, the zone change would not significantly affect the surrounding transportation system.

During the Summer of 2017, I reviewed the site plan for the Astoria Co-Op as well. Frontage improvements

were originally identified along the property, and I would like to reiterate that frontage improvements and other

infrastructure related to active transportation (along with ADA components) would be essential to align with the

goals identified within the City of Astoria Transportation System Plan.

ODOT is in agreement with the proposed zone change as the Transportation Planning Rule OAR 660-012-0060
(9) has been satisfied through this concurrence.



Department of Transportation
Region 2 Tech Center

455 Airport Road SE, Building A

Salem, Oregon 97301-5397

Telephone (503) 986-2990

Fax (503) 986-2839

DATE: January 8, 2018

TO: Ken Shonkwiler
Region 2 Senior Planner

A
FROM: Keith P. Blair, PE
Region 2 Senior Transportation Analyst

SUBJECT: Co-op Grocery Store (Astoria) — Transportation Planning Rule
TIA Review Comments

ODOT Region 2 Traffic has completed our review of the submitted traffic impact
analysis (dated December 11, 2017) to address traffic impacts due to a proposed zone
change from AH-MP to LS and development of a co-op grocery store on the northeast
quadrant of US 30 and 23" Street in the city of Astoria, with respect to consistency and
compliance with current versions of ODOT's Analysis Procedures Manual (APM). Both
versions of the APM were most recently updated in December 2017. Current versions
are consistently published online at:
hitp://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/TD/TP/Pages/APM.aspx. As a result, we submit the

following comments for the City's consideration:

Analysis items to note:
o Region Traffic assumes all land uses and densities offered under both the current

and proposed zones are consistent with the City's code as cited in the report.

e This study does not contain a simulation-based queuing analysis. Such analysis
would have been scoped if this study had been required under ODOT’s authority.

e Typically, ODOT will not run analyses with zero vehicles making available permitted
movements. Rather, if count data does not identify any vehicles within the peak
hour making a movement, we recommend assuming a low volume (1 or 2) rather
than zero. The algorithms within Synchro utilize different formulas if there are zero

conflicting vehicles.

10f2



Proposed mitigation comments:
1. -ODOT maintains jurisdiction of the Lower Columbia River Highway No. 92 (US 30)

and ODOT approval shall be required for all proposed mitigation measures to this
facility. No mitigation measures have been proposed. This conclusion appears
reasonable for this proposed development.

2. Trip Generation Cap Proposal — Under the existing zoning (AH-MP), the reasonable
worst-case buildout will generate 57 total PM peak hour site trips (20 of which will be
diverted from US 30 via the local road network). Under the proposed zoning (LS),
the proposed development will generate 114 total PM peak hour site trips (41 of
which will be diverted from US 30 via the local road network).

Thank you for the opportunity to review this traffic impact analysis. As the analysis files
were not provided, Region 2 Traffic has only reviewed the submitted report. This traffic
impact study has been, for the most part, prepared in accordance with ODOT analysis
procedures and methodologies. No further analysis work should be required. If there
are any questions.regarding these comments, please contact me at (503) 986-2857 or

Keith.P.Blair@odot.state.or.us.

20f2



2-9-18

2-9-18

1-17-18

12-29-17

12-29-17

PUBLIC NOTICES
Notice of Public Hearing published in Daily Astorian on 2-26-18 for
3-5-18 City Council Meeting
Notice of Public Hearing mailed property owners within 200 feet of
proposed zone change and people on record for 3-5-18 City Council

Meeting

Notice of Public Hearing published in Daily Astorian on 1-17-18 for
1-24-18 Planning Commission Meeting

Notice of Public Hearing mailed to property owners within 200 feet of
proposed zone change for 1-24-18 Planning Commission Meeting

Ballot Measure 56 Notice sent to Applicant for the proposed zone change.



Mail A
Email .
February 27, 2018 x,»\???@ﬂ,‘

E-MAILED TO: LEGAL ADS, DAILY ASTORIAN,
VIA E-MAIL legals@dailyastorian.com

FROM: ANNA STAMPER, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, 338-5183
SUBJECT: PLEASE PUBLISH THE FOLLOWING PUBLIC NOTICE
CITY OF ASTORIA

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Astoria City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, March 5, 2018 at 7:00 p.m., in
the City Hall Councii Chambers, 2% Floor,1095 Duane Sireet, Astoria. The purpose of the
hearing is to consider the following:

1. Amendment A17-02 by Garry Vallaster, Astor Venture, LLC, represented by Jennifer
Bunch, dba Wickiup Consuiting, LLC, for a map amendment to the Development Code to
change zoning from Attached Housing-Mill Pond (AH-MP) to Local Service (LS) on
approximately 1.04 acres (45,452 sq. ft.) of land, and also a text amendment to remove
certain uses from the LS Zone between 23™ and 29t Streets north of Marine Drive. The
intent is to construct a retail grocery that will accommedate the expansion of the Astoria
Co-op Grocery.

The Planning Commission has recommended approval of the request. A copy of the application
is available for inspection at no cost and will be provided at reasonable cost. All documents and
information are available for review at the office of the Community Development Director at
1095 Duane Street, Astoria. Contact the Community Development Department, at 503-338-
5183 for additional information.

The location of the hearing is accessibie to the handicapped. An interpreter for the hearing
impaired may be requested under the terms of ORS 192.630 by contacting the Community
Development Depariment at 503-338-5183 48 hours prior to the meeting.

All interested persons are inviied to submit cornments at the hearing or by letier addressed to
the City Council, 1095 Duane St., Astoria OR 97103. The Astoria City Council reserves the right
to modify the proposal or to continue the hearing to another date and time. If the hearing is
continued, no further public notice will be provided.

THE CITY OF ASTORIA

W i\/d)m%é rative Assistant PUBLISH: February 26, 2018



YOU ARE RECEIVING THIS NOTICE BECAUSE THERE IS A
PROPOSED LAND USE APPLICATION NEAR YOUR PROPERTY IN ASTORIA

&
CITY OF ASTORIA Mail_ 2L L1

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  |web ‘

e

The Astoria City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, March 5, 2018 at 7:00 p.m., in
the City Council Chambers at City Hall, 1095 Duane Street, Astoria. The purpose of the hearing

is to consider the following:

1. Amendment A17-02 by Garry Vallaster, Astor Venture, LLC, represented by Jennifer
Bunch, dba Wickiup Consulting, LLC, for a map amendment to the Development
Code to change zoning from Attached Housing-Mill Pond (AH-MP) to Local Service
(LS) on approximately 1.04 acres (45,452 sq. ft.) of land, and also a text
amendment to remove certain uses from the LS Zone between 23 and 29" Streets
north of Marine Drive. The intent is to construct a retail grocery that will accommodate
the expansion of the Astoria Co-op Grocery. Development Code Articles 1, 2, 3, 9, 10
and 14 and Comprehensive Plan Sections CP.010-CP.028, CP.057-CP.058, CP.190-

CP.210 are applicable to the request.

The Planning Commission has recommended approval of the request. A copy of the application
is available for inspection at no cost and will be provided at reasonable cost. All documents and
information are available for review at the office of the Community Development Director at
1095 Duane Street, Astoria. Contact the Community Development Department, at 503-338-

5183 for additional information.

The location of the hearing is accessible to the handicapped. An interpreter for the hearing
impaired may be requested under the terms of ORS 192.630 by contacting the Community

Development Department at 503-338-5183 48 hours prior to the meeting.

All interested persons are invited to submit comments on the draft application at the hearing or
by letter addressed to the City Council, 1095 Duane St., Astoria OR 97103. The Astoria City
Council reserves the right to modify the proposal or to continue the hearing to another date and
time. If the hearing is continued, no further public notice will be provided.

THE CITY OF ASTORIA

Shhaa fampo

Anna Stamper
Administrative Assistant MAIL: February 9, 2018



{—:«1 plY ®
FYERY. 5160

80909CB06832

Aspmo Beverly J

Aspmo Gary S

371 W Grand Ave

Astoria, OR 97103-6413

80908CB04600
Blackstock Delane E
Blackstock Justin G
2947 NE 60th Ave
Portland, OR 97213

80908CB02800

Chen Rong Wo

Ma Xian Xiu

2813 Marine Dr

Astoria, OR 97103-2819

80909CB06834
Fransen Toivo J
2795 Mill Pond Ln
Astoria, OR 97103

80909CB06841

Hankins Ronald Ben Rev Liv Trst
Hankins Lois J Rev Liv Trust
1720 SE Hawthorne Bivd
Portland, OR 97214-3723

80809CB06810

lverson Trust

285 23rd St

Astoria, OR 97103-2228

80809CC00100

Kalander Sandra K
Kalander John R

4975 Cedar St

Astoria, OR 97103-2115

80908CB04300

Kiepke R J

91779 George Hill Rd
Astoria, OR 97103-8274

80909CB04200
Mossman Alan R
230 8th St

Astoria, OR 97103

80908DA00500

NWH Properties LLC

5937 N Cutter Cir
Portland, OR 97217-3940

avans mem fmntanta

Easy Peel® Address Labels

Bend along line to expose Pop-up Edge®

80909CB06803
Astor Venture LLC
Garry Don Vallaster
711 SW Alder St PH

Portland, OR 97205-3429

80808CB04401
Blackstock Delane £
Blackstock Justin G
2742 Grand Ave #A
Astoria, OR 97103

80908DD06800

Columbia Lutheran Charities
Columbia Memorial Hospital dba
2111 Exchange St

Astoria, OR 97103-3329

803909CB04900

Hageman Kenneth D/Beverly J
2770 Grand Ave

Astoria, OR 97103-2906

80908DAC1402
Heestand Family LLC
PO Box 669

Scappoose, OR 97056-0668

80909CB06846

Jarvis Ben L

Jarvis Sally A

5756 SW Cupola Dr
South Beach, OR 97366

80909CB06812

Keown Riley M

2231 Saybrook Ln

Costa Mesa, CA 92627-1677

80809CC00500

Leino George E

88338 Youngs River Rd
Astoria, OR 97103-8127

80909CC01300

Navarro Rachel

Navarro Jane

8655 SE Silver Creek Rd
Happy Valley, OR 97086

80909CC01100

O Shay Betty

2652 Grand Ave

Astoria, OR 97103-2916

Etiquettes d'adresse Fasv Peel®

t

Gotoavery.com/templates |
Use Avery Template 5160 1

80908CB06561

Astoria Gateway Associates ||
Cascade Management Inc
13221 SW 68th Pkwy Ste #310
Portland, OR 97223

80909CB06847

Bower Barbara A

2410 N Aurora Ave Apt #108
Seatile, WA 98108-2268

80909CB06843

Darby Richard

Darby Sandra

2555 Mill Pond Ln
Astoria, OR 97103-3303

80909CB06809

Hall David L

275 23rd St

Astoria, OR 97103-2229

80808DA01401

Heestand Family LLC

T P Freightlines Accounts Payable
PO Box 580

Tillamook, OR 97141-0580

80809CC00800
Johnson Eva M

12321 Highway 99 #125
Everett, WA 98204-5511

80909CRB04100

Kiepke R J

2703 Marine Dr

Astoria, OR 97103-2900

80909CC00601

Moore Ernest R Sr/Delores J
503 N 1st St Spc#57C

El Cajon, CA 92021

80909CC01600

Neikes Thomas R 1/2
Neikes James J 1/2
34755 Hwy 101 Business
Astoria, OR 97103-6664

80909CB06835
Oliver Jerry G
Oliver Annie E
2775 Mill Pond Ln
Astoria, OR 97103

Allez 3 avensca fnaharite |



BVERY. 5160

80808DA01500

Pacific Coast Pharmacies LLC
Steve M Choate

124 Westview Pl

Kalama, WA 98625-9640

80809CC01400
Ranta Simo J

511 Harison Ave
Astoria, OR 97103

80908CB04700

Ridout LLC

860 Beach Dr

Seaside, OR 97138-5504

80909CB06850
Saar William A
Jensen-Saar Arlee J
37751 Highway 30
Astoria, OR 97103

80909CB06842

Storey Family Trust
Storey Cheryl A Trustee
5770 SW 163rd Ave
Beaverton, OR 97007

80809CC00800
Walkowski Allison Kaye
Smith Grady A M

2624 Grand Ave
Astoria, OR 97103

Easy Peel® Address Labels

Bend along line to expose Pop-up Edge®

80908CB06838
Parfitt Dennis P
Parfitt Mary Helen
2715 Mill Pond
Astoria, OR 97103

80909CB06836
Redwine Jeffrey Mark
Redwine Tommie Jo
PO Box 447

" Astoria, OR 97103-0447

80909CC00300

Rutherford Stanley W/Sharon M
91122 Fort Clatsop Rd

Astoria, OR 97103-8563

80909CB06849

Saar William A/ Arlee J
736 8th Ave NE #219
Issaquah, WA 98029

80809CB06808

Thompson Russell E/Donna Lee
265 23rd St

Astoria, OR 97103-2229

80909CB06837

Wolcott James A

Wolcott Lorraine E

2735 Mill Pond Ln
Astoria, OR 97103-3305

Etirmetiac A'adreces Facy Pasl®

Go to avery.com/templates |
Use Avery Template 5160 |

80809CC00400

Reyes Timothy

Ecoff Elizabeth

26589 Marine Dr

Astoria, OR 97103-2927

80909CB06845
Ryan John O

Ryan Melanie Rae
2495 Mill Pond Lane
Astoria, OR 97103

80809CC00701
Spence Barbara
Neikes James J
34755 Hwy 101
Astoria, OR 97103

80909CB05000

Treber Gordon A/Nicole
2778 Grand Ave
Astoria, OR 97103-2906

Allaw A avans ra /rsharite L



e 0
ﬁ%@% | 5160 |
Jennifer Bunch, Wickiup
Consulting LLC

PO Box 1455
Astoria, OR 97103

Don Vallaster
>0 Box 3933
dortland, OR 97103

Viatt Star‘tlyey’
64 Kensington Ave
\storia, OR 97103

tewart Bell
'40 Lincoln St
\storia, OR 97103

Zathy Cruikshank
025 Franklin Ave
storia, OR 97103

m Wi!kin"sm o
01 W. Grand Ave
storia, OR 97103

anny Rasmussen
2076 Svensen Market Road
storia, OR 97103

licha Cameroh— Lattek
320 SE 3" St
storia, OR 97103

lisa Evans
38 Exchange St
storia, OR 97103

1ne Robben Dott
'35 Grand Ave
itoria, OR 97103

Easy Peel® Address Labels
Bend alongline to expose Pop-up Edge®

\/enus Fré‘mwiﬂer
239 Kensington Ave

- Astoria, OR 97103

Ahgefa Sidlo
516 Summit Ave
Gearheart, OR 97138

’Tom Oweﬁ o
714 Kensington Ave
Astoria, OR 97103

Don Pattersbn
1635 SW 14t St
Warrenton, OR 97103

Pamela Wev
1566 Irving Ave #6
Astoria, OR 97103

Joﬁn Ryan
2495 Mill Pond Lane
Astoria, OR 97103

Ron SWeet
2879 Mill Pond Lane
Astoria, OR 97103

Patricia Long
280 Maritime Lane
Astoria, OR 97103

Tom Churchill, MAIS, RPA
SHPO Archaeologist

725 Summer St, NE, Ste C
Salem, OR 97301

George Hague
13" St #201
Astoria, OR 97103

Go to avery.com/templates |
Use Avery Template 5160 1

Mcharen Innes
4807 Birch

- Astoria OR 97103

Ned Heavénrich
44218 Anderson Ln
Astoria, OR 97103

Jay Rasmussen

91899 George Hill Road

Astoria, OR 97103

John Ryavh
2495 Mill Pond Lane
Astoria, OR 97103

Ken S‘hoyn'k‘wi!erv -
350 West Marine Dr
Astoria, OR 97103

Dorris Larremore
1108 Irving Ave
Astoria, OR 97103

Paul Benoit
3859 Enos Ave
Oakland, CA 94619

H. Petérs
402 Alameda Ave
Astoria, OR 97103

Delane 8léckstock.

2742 Grand Ave
Astoria, OR 97103



Division of State Lands
775 Summer St NE #100
8" m OR 97301-1279

JIM STOFFER
ALDERBROOK GROUP

istoffer@charter.net E-MAIL

Planning & Development Manager
Oregon Department of Transportation
Region 2 Headquarters

455 Airport Road SE Building B
Salem OR 97301-5395

E-MAIL
ADHDA
office/@astoriadowntowin.com
E-MAIL
Greg Kenney E-MAIL
Cannery Lofts HOA
Gregkenney2@msn.com
be
Arline LalMear E-MAIL
alamear@astoria.or.us
Sirpa Duoos E-FMAIL

sduoos@co.clatsop.or.us

Port of Astoria

admin@portofastoria.com
E-MAIL

Floral Alameda Ngbhd Assoc
¢/o Bruce Conner

P.O. Box 543

Astoria OR 97103

EMERALD HEIGHTS GRP
1 EMERALD DRIVE
ASTORIA OR 97103

emeraldheights(@charter.net E-MAIL

BLAIR HENNINGSGAARD
1482 JEROME
ASTORIA OR 97103

blair@astorialaw.com E-MAIL

Patrick Wingard

Coastal Services Representative
DLCD

4301 Third Streef, Room 206
Tillamook, OR 97141 E-MAIL

Dulcye Taylor E-MAIL

ADHDA
dulcye@astoriadowntown.com

Jennifer Holen E-MAIL

ADHDA :
Jennifer@bakedak.com

Eagle Ridge Home Owner Association
Mark Hedeen E-MAIL
Mark.hedeen@raymondjames.com

Leroy Aldolphson

Uniontown Neighborhood Assoc
¢/o 165 W. Bond

Astoria OR 87103

ATTN: HOUSING OFFICER
COMMANDING OFFICER
USCG AIRSTAASTORIA

2185 SE 12TH PLACE
WARRENTON OR 97146-9693

Jim Wolcott
Milf Pond Village Home Owners' Assoc
2735 Mill Pond Lane
Astoria OR 87103 E-MAIL
RUSS WARR

415 MARINE DRIVE

ASTORIA OR 87103

E-MAll

Karen Mellin E-MAIL
kmellin5382@charter.net

Tryan Hartill E-MAIL

editor@northcoastoregon.com

Columbia House Condominiums
1 3rd Street # 510
Astoria OR 97103



State Of Oregon Copy Of Advertisement
County Of Clatsop } ss.

Affidavit of
PUBLICATION

I, Danielle Fisher, being duly
sworn, depose and say that [ am the
principal clerk of the manager of
the DAILY ASTORIAN, a
newspaper of general circulation, : .
as defined by section ORS 193.010 comn ; id a public
and 193.020 Oregon Compiled hearin
Laws, Annotated, printed and
published daily at Astoria in the
aforesaid county and state; the
Legal Notice: AB6592 Public
Hearing a printed copy of which is
hereto attached, was published in
the entire issue of said newspaper
for three successive and
consecutive time(s) in the
following issues: January 17th,
2018.

K// ﬂﬁ/%y%@/

Signed and attested before me on
the 17th day of January, 2018 The !’ocVat‘l‘o:n‘ of the hearing
by: is. accessible to the  handi-

capped. An’ mterpreter “for

//// ; % the heanng lmpa;red may be
2l e ORS'92164076Y ‘contactin
( 7 ?\ 000 ntactin

Department at 503-338-5183
OFFICIAL SEAL 48 hours prior to the meetmg

HOLLY NOELLE LARKINE )
; The. Astona Plannmg Com-

y : ‘mo |yt eproposa ‘or o con-
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES DECEMBER 01. 2020 tinue the hearing to another
date ‘and time. :[f the hearing
is continued, no further public

1095 Duane
The purpcse

Notary Public for the State of notice will be pfOVidedS_TdeA
idi ; T CITY OF A

Oregon, Residing at Astoria, THE. S?; e

Oregon, Clatsop County. Administrative'Ass:stant

Pubhshed January17th
2018.




3}

YOU ARE RECEIVING THIS NOTICE BECAUSE THERE IS A
PROPOSED LAND USE APPLICATION NEAR YOUR PROPERTY IN ASTORIA

CITY OF ASTORIA
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The City of Astoria Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, January 24, 2018 at
6:30 p.m., at the Astoria City Hall, Council Chambers, 1095 Duane Street, Astoria. The purpose of the

hearing is to consider the following request(s):

1. Amendment A17-02 by Garry Vallaster, Astor Venture, LLC, represented by Jennifer Bunch,
dba Wickiup Consulting, LLC, for a map amendment to the Development Code to change
zoning from Attached Housing-Mill Pond (AH-MP) to Local Service (LS) on approximately
1.04 acres (45,452 sq. ft.) of land, and also a text amendment to remove certain uses from
the LS Zone between 23 and 29" Streets north of Marine Drive. The intent is to construct a
retail grocery that will accommodate the expansion of the Astoria Co-op Grocery.
Development Code Articles 1, 2, 3, 9, 10 and 14 and Comprehensive Plan Sections CP.010-
CP.028, CP.057-CP.058, CP.190- CP.210 are applicable to the request.

A copy of the application, all documents and evidence relied upon by the applicant, the staff report, and
applicable criteria are available for inspection at no cost and will be provided at reasonable cost. A copy
of the staff report will be available at least seven days prior to the hearing and are available for inspection
at no cost and will be provided at reasonable cost. All such documents and information are available at -
the Community Development Department at 1095 Duane Street, Astoria. If additional documents or
evidence are provided in support of the application, any party shall be entitled to a continuance of the
hearing. Contact the Planner at 503-338-5183 for additional information.

The location of the hearing is accessible to the handicapped. An interpreter for the hearing impaired may
be requested under the terms of ORS 192.630 by contacting the Community Development Department

at 503-338-5183 48 hours prior to the meeting.

All interested persons are invited to express their opinion for or against the request(s) at the hearing or
by letter addressed to the Planning Commission, 1095 Duane St., Astoria OR 97103. Testimony and
evidence must be directed toward the applicable criteria identified above or other criteria of the
Comprehensive Plan or land use regulation which you believe apply to the decision. Failure to raise an
issue with sufficient specificity to afford the Planning Commission and the parties an opportunity to
respond to the issue precludes an appeal based on that issue.

The Planning Commission’s ruling may be appealed to the City Council by the applicant, a party to the
hearing, or by a party who responded in writing, by filing a Notice of Appeal within 15 days after the
Planning Commission’s decision is mailed. Appellants should contact the Community Development
Department concerning specific procedures for filing an appeal with the City. If an appeal is not filed with
the City within the 15 day period, the recommendation of the Planning Commission shall be forwarded to

the City Council for consideration.

The public-hearing, as conducted by the Planning Commission, will include a review of the application
- and presentation of the staff report, opportunity for presentations by the applicant and-those in favor of
the request, those in opposition to the request, and deliberation and decision by the Planning
Commission. The Planning Commission reserves the right to modify the proposal or to continue the
hearing to another date and time. If the hearing is continued, no further public notice will be provided.

THE CITY OF ASTORIA

Anna Stamper
Administrative Assistant MAIL: December 29, 2017



80809CB06839

Aspmo Beverly J

Aspmo Gary S

377 I Grand Ave

A. .a, OR 971036413

80909@&;3

Hackstock Delane E KQ/(
Blackstock Justin G
2947 NE 680th Ave
ortland, OR 97213

80808CB02800

Chen Rong Wo

Ma Xian Xiu

2813 Marine Dr

Astoria, OR 97103-2818

80909CB06834
Fransen Toivo J
2795 Mill Pond L.n
Astoria, OR 97103

80909CB06841

Hankins Ronald Ben Rev Liv Trst
Hankins Lois J Rev Liv Trust
1720 SE Hawthorne Blvd
Portland, OR 97214-3723

80909CB06810

lverson Trust

285 23rd St

Astoria, OR 97103-2229

80909CC00100

Kalander Sandra K
Kalander John R

4975 Cedar St

Astoria, OR 97103-2115

30809CB04300

Kiepke R J

31779 George Hill Rd
Astoria, OR 97103-8274

10808CB04200
Aossman AlanR
'30 8th St

\storia, OR 97103

( DA00500
IVl Properties LLC

937 N Cutter Cir
ortland, OR 97217-3940- .-

803808CB06803

Astor Venture LLC

Garry Don Vallaster

711 SW Alder St PH
Portland, OR 97205-3429

80909CB04401
Blackstock Delane E
Blackstock Justin G
2742 Grand Ave #A
Astoria, OR 97103

80908DD08800

Columbia Lutheran Charities
Columbia Memorial Hospital dba
2111 Exchange St

Astoria, OR 97103-3329

80908CB04900

Hageman Kenneth D/Beverly J
2770 Grand Ave

Astoria, OR 97103-2906

80908DA01402

Heestand Family LLC

PO Box 669

Scappoose, OR 97056-0669

80909CB06846

Jarvis Ben L

Jarvis Sally A

5756 SW Cupola Dr
South Beach, OR 97366

80808CB06812

Keown Riley M

2231 Saybrook Ln

Costa Mesa, CA 92627-1677

80809CC00500

Leino George E

88338 Youngs River Rd
Astoria, OR 97103-8127

©80909CC01300°

Navarro Rachel

Navarro Jane

8655 SE Silver Creek Rd
Happy Valley, OR 97086

80909CC01100

O Shay Betty

2652 Grand Ave

Astoria, OR 97103-2916

' 780909CCOT600

80809CB06861

Astoria Gateway Associates [l
Cascade Management Inc
13221 SW 68th Pkwy Ste #310
Portland,” OR 97223

80808CB06847

Bower Barbara A

2410 N Aurora Ave Apt #108
Seattle, WA 98109-2268

80909CB06843

Darby Richard

Darby Sandra

2555 Mill Pond Ln
Astoria, OR 97103-3303

80909CB06809

Hall David L

275 23rd St

Astoria, OR 97103-2229

80908DA01401

Heestand Family LLC

T P Freightlines Accounts Payable
PO Box 580

Tillamook, OR 97141-0580

86909CC00600 (&ﬂd
Johnson Eva M
12321 Highway 99 #125

511

Everett, WA 982

80909CB04100

Kiepke R J

2703 Marine Dr

Astoria, OR 97103-2900

80809CC00601
Moore Ernest R Sr/Delores J

503 N 1st St Spc #57C
El Cajon, CA 920

Neikes Thomas R 1/2
Neikes James J 1/2
34755 Hwy 101 Business
Astoria, OR 97103-6664

80909CB06835
Cliver Jerry G
Oliver Annie E
2775 Mill Pond Ln
Astoria, OR 97103



80908DA015
Pacific Coagt Pharmacies
Steve M Choate
177 Mesjview Pl
Ko aa,

80909CC01400
Ranta Simo J

511 Harison Ave
Astoria, OR 87103

80908CB04700

Ridout LLC

860 Beach Dr

Seaside, OR 97138-5504

80909CB06850
Saar William A
Jensen-Saar Arlee J
37751 Highway 30
Astoria, OR 97103

80909CB06842

Storey Family Trust
Storey Cheryl A Trustee
5770 SW 163rd Ave
B;enverton, OR 97007

80909CC00800
Walkowski Allison Kaye
Smith Grady A M

2624 Grand Ave
Astoria, OR 97103

80909CB06838
Parfitt Dennis P
Parfitt Mary Helen
2715 Mill Pond
Astoria, OR 97103

80809CB06836

Redwine Jeffrey Mark
Redwine Tommie Jo

PO Box 447

Astoria, OR 97103-0447

80809CC00300

Rutherford Stanley W/Sharon M
91122 Fort Clatsop Rd

Astoria, OR 97103-8563

80909CB06849
Saar William A/ Arlee J
736 8th Ave NE #219

Issaquah, WA 98029

o
el

80809CB06803

Thompson Russell E/Donna Lee
265 23rd St

Astoria, OR 97103-2229

80909CB06837

Wolcott James A

Wolcott Lorraine E

2735 Mill Pond Ln
Astoria, OR 97103-3305

80908CC00400

Reyes Timothy

Ecoff Elizabeth

2659 Marine Dr

Astoria, OR 97103-2827

80909CB06845
Ryan John O

Ryan Melanie Rae
2495 Mill Pond Lane
Astoria, OR 97103

80909CC00701
Spence Barbara
Neikes James J
34755 Hwy 101
Astoria, OR 97103

80809CB0S5000

Treber Gordon A/Nicole
2778 Grand Ave

Astoria, OR 97103-2906



Division of State Lands
775 Summer St NE #100
Sf"" m OR 87301-1279

i

JIM STOFFER
ALDERBROOK GROUP

jstoffer@charter.net E-MAIL

Planning & Development Manager
Oregon Department of Transportation
Region 2 Headquarters

455 Airport Road SE Building B
Salemn OR 97301-5395

E-MAIL
ADHDA
office/@astoriadowntown.com
E-MAIL
Sreg Kenney E-MAIL
Cannery Lofts HOA
sregkenney2@msn.com
\rline LaMear E-MAIL
famear@astoria.or.us
Sirpa Duoos E-MAIL

sduoos@co.clatsop.or.us

ort of Astoria

imin@portofastoria.com
E-MAIL

Floral Alameda Ngbhd Assoc
¢/o Bruce Conner

P.O. Box 543

Astoria OR 97103

EMERALD HEIGHTS GRP
1 EMERALD DRIVE
ASTORIA OR 97103

emeraldheights@charter.net E-MAIL

BLAIR HENNINGSGAARD
1482 JEROME
ASTORIA OR 97103

blair@astorialaw.com E-MAIL

Patrick Wingard

Coastal Services Representative
DLCD

4301 Third Streetl, Room 206
Tilfamook, OR 97141 E-MAIL

Dulcye Taylor E-MAIL
ADHDA

dulcye@astoriadowntown.com

Jennifer Holen E-MAIL
ADHDA :

Jjennifer@bakedak.com

Eagle Ridge Home Owner Association
Mark Hedeen
Mark.hedeen@raymondjames.com

E-MAIL

Leroy Aldolphson

Uniontown Neighborhood Assoc
¢/o 165 W. Bond

Astoria OR 87103

ATTN: HOUSING OFFICER
COMMANDING OFFICER
USCG AIRSTA ASTORIA

2185 SE 12TH PLACE
WARRENTON OR 97146-9693

Jim Wolcoit
Mill Pond Village Home Owners' Assoc
2735 Mill Pond Lane
Astoria OR 97103 E-MAIL

RUSS WARR

415 MARINE DRIVE

ASTORIA OR 897103

E-MAll

Karen Mellin E-MAIL
kmellin5382@charter.net

Tryan Hartill E-MAIL

editor@northcoastoregon.com

Columbia House Condominiums
1 3rd Street # 510
Astoria OR 97103



YOU ARE RECEIVING THIS NOTICE BECAUSE THERE IS A
PROPOSED LAND USE APPLICATION NEAR YOUR PROPERTY IN

CITY OF ASTORIA
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

This is to notify you that the City of Astoria has proposed a land use regulation that
may affect the permissible uses of your property and other properties.

On January 24, at 6:30 p.m., the City of Astoria Planning Commission will hold a public
hearing regarding the adoption of Amendment Number A17-02 to amend the Astoria
Development Code text of the LS (Local Service) zone, and amends the zoning map to
change a portion of the AH-MP (Affordable Housing-Mill Pond) zone to LS. The City has
determined that adoption of these ordinances may affect the permissible uses of your
property, and other properties in the affected zone, and may change the value of your

property.

Amendment Number A17-02 is available for inspection at the Community Development
Department, City Hall, located at 1095 Duane Street, Astoria, or on the City’s website at
www.astoria.or.us, under Community Development Department, Projects, Amendment

Number A17-02. A copy of Amendment Number A17-02 also is available at no cost.

For additional information concerning Amendment Number A17-02, you may call the Astoria
Planning Division at 503-338-5183 or contact the Planner at mmorgan@astoria.or.us.

THE CITY OF ASTORIA

sufJngen.
nna Stamper

Administrative Assistant MAIL: December 29, 2017



Astor Venture, LLC
Attn: Garry Vallaster
P.O. Box 3933
Portland, OR 97208

Wickiup Consulting, LLC
Atin: Jennifer Bunch
P.O. Box 1455

Astoria, OR 87103



11-15-17

APPLICATION

Application for Amendment Request (A17-02) by Garry Don Vallaster,
Astor Venture LLC, Garry Vallaster, Astor Venture, LLC, represented by
Jennifer Bunch, dba Wickiup Consulting, LLC, for a map amendment to the
Development Code to change zoning from Attached Housing-Mill Pond (AH-
MP) to Local Service (LS) on approximately 1.04 acres (45,452 sq. ft.) of land,
and also a text amendment to remove certain uses from the LS Zone between
23" and 29" Streets north of Marine Drive, Astoria, Oregon 97103.



(ITY OF 45TORIA
1085 Duaire Streer
Astorie QR 371403
S(EF-338-5183

MF% Paid Date /8 11 8y Mo
Fee: S750.00

CAMENDMENT
pf@{}{.ﬂ\f‘ Address: 2350 Steam Whistle Way
Lok Various Block 144 &145 Subdsasion Shivelys Astoria
Pap T8N ROSW Sec09CB  Tax Lot 06803 Zone __AH-MP

Code or Map o be Amendeadt: Zoning Map Amendment: AH-MP to LS. LS zone text Amendment.

Applicant Name: Jennifer Bunch, Wickiup Consulting LLC

Mailing Address: PO Box 1455, Astoria, OR 97103 iennifer@wickiupconsultinglic.com

Phone: 503-298-8698 Business Phone: 503-298-8698

Property Owners Name: £ =700 8 = e o e [~ Don Vallaster 503-228-0311

ol

hiaifing Address: "{:’ Cie Bhemx 243 et lu e ,,..fj:ng“’ )7 Zangs, donv@vcarch.com

<y
Business Name (if applicable): Astona Co-op Grocery — Matt Stanley, General Manager  matt@astoria.coop
Signature of Applicant: ,,,m /QL@L F))sfmgé .
Sighature of Property UM@%U = ¥ {, h, f ‘(:“‘-
‘I" =T ‘_,,.- j l« [

]
i‘

Proposed Amendment

A zoning map amendment to change the zoning from Attached Housing-Mill Pond (AH-MP) to Local Service (LS) on

approximately 1.04 acres (45,452 sq. ft.) of land. In addition, a text amendment to remove certain uses from the LS

zone between 23" and 29" streets north of Marine Drive. The intent is to construct a retail grocery that will

accommodate the expansion of the Astoria Co-op Grocery. @@ e —

D e e ety

Far affice use iy

zpplication Complete: | AV /S Lo(7 Permit Info bnto D-Base:
Labels Prepared: d Tentative APC Measting Date!
120 Bays:




ORDINANCE NO. 18-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ASTORIA LAND USE AND ZONING MAP BY
REZONING A PARCEL AT 2350 MARINE DRIVE AT 23RP STREET FROM AH-MP
(AFFORDABLE HOUSING-MILL POND) TO LS (LOCAL SERVICE)

THE CITY OF ASTORIA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The 1992 Astoria Land Use and Zoning Map is amended to rezone the following
area from AH-MP (Affordable Housing-Mill Pond) to LS (Local Service) as indicated on the
map:

Map T8N-ROW Section
9CB Tax Lot

| =S
e
: Y

Section 2.  Section 2.976.6 pertaining to Uses Permitted Outright in the LS Zone (Local
Service) is amended to read as follows:

‘6. Retail sales establishment. (Retail sales establishment greater than 14,000 gross
square feet shall include a minimum of 50% of gross floor area devoted to multi-family
dwellings located above the first floor.)”

Section 3. Section 2.976.8 pertaining to Uses Permitted Outright in the LS Zone (Local
Service) is amended to read as follows:

“8. Two-family, and multi-family dwelling, located above or below the first floor, with
permitted commercial facilities on the first floor of the structure.”

C:\Users\astamper\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content. Outlook\OW3ME7OW\A17-02 Draft
Ordinance_Tracked Changes.doc



Section 4. Section 2.977.1 pertaining to Conditional Uses Permitted in the LS Zone (Local
Service) is amended to read as follows:

“1. Business service establishment. (Not allowed on properties between 23rd and 29th
Street north of Marine Drive.)”

Section 5. Section 2.977.5 pertaining to Conditional Uses Permitted in the LS Zone (Local
Service) is amended to read as follows:

“5. Gasoline service station. (Not allowed on properties between 23rd and 29th Street
north of Marine Drive.)”

Section 8. Section 2.977.9 pertaining to Conditional Uses Permitted in the LS Zone (Local
Service) is amended to read as follows:

“9. Transportation service establishment. (Not allowed on properties between 23rd and
29th Street north of Marine Drive.)”

Section 7. Section 2.980 pertaining to Height of Structures in the LS Zone (Local Service) is
amended to read as follows:

“No structure will exceed a height of 35 feet above grade, with exception of structures on lots
with frontage on Marine Drive between 23rd and 29th Street which are limited to a maximum
height of 45 feet above grade.”

Section 8. Effective Date. This ordinance and its amendment will be effective 30 days
following its adoption and enactment by the City Council.

ADOPTED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL THIS DAY OF , 2018.
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS DAY OF , 2018.
ATTEST: Mayor

Brett Estes, City Manager

ROLL CALL ON ADOPTION: YEA NAY ABSENT
Commissioner Nemlowill

Price

Brownson

Jones
Mayor LaMear

C:\Users\astampenAppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content. Outlook\OW3ME7OW\A17-02 Draft
Ordinance_Tracked Changes.doc



ORDINANCE NO. 18-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ASTORIA LAND USE AND ZONING MAP BY
REZONING A PARCEL AT 2350 MARINE DRIVE AT 23RP STREET FROM AH-MP
(AFFORDABLE HOUSING-MILL POND) TO LS (LOCAL SERVICE)

THE CITY OF ASTORIA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:
Section 1. The 1992 Astoria Land Use and Zoning Map is amended to rezone the following

area from AH-MP (Affordable Housing-Mill Pond) to LS (Local Service) as indicated on the
map:

Map T8N-ROW Section
9CB Tax Lot 6803

Section 2.  Section 2.976.6 pertaining to Uses Permitted Outright in the LS Zone (Local
Service) is amended to read as follows:

“6. Retail sales establishment. (Retail sales establishment greater than 14,000 gross
square feet shall include a minimum of 50% of agross floor area devoted to multi-family
dwellings located above the first floor.)”

Section 3. Section 2.976.8 pertaining to Uses Permitted Outright in the LS Zone (Local
Service) is amended to read as follows:

“8. Single-family; tTwo-family; and multi-family dwelling, located above or below the first
floor, with permitted commercial facilities on the first floor of the structure.”

€: \Users\astam,c_)er\AQQData\Loca/\Mlcrosoft\W/ndows\lNetCache\Content Outlook\OW3ME7OW\A17-02 Draft
Ordinance Tracked Changes.doc



Section 4. Section 2.977.1 pertaining to Conditional Uses Permitted in the LS Zone (Local
Service) is amended to read as follows:

_“1. Business service establishment. (Not allowed on properties between 23rd and 29th
Street north of Marine Drive.)” :

Section 5. Section 2.977.5 pertaining to Conditional Uses Permitted in the LS Zone (Local
Service) is amended to read as follows:

_"5. Gasoline service station. (Not allowed on properties between 23rd and 29th Street
north of Marine Drive.)”

Section 6. Section 2.977.9 pertaining to Conditional Uses Permitted in the LS Zone (Local
Service) is amended to read as follows:

“9. Transportation service establishment. (Not allowed on properties between 23rd and
29th Street north of Marine Drive.)”

Section 7. Section 2.980 pertaining to Height of Structures in the LS Zone (Local Service) is
amended to read as follows:

“No structure will exceed a height of 35 feet above grade, with exception of structures on lots
with frontage on Marine Drive between 23rd and 29th Street which are limited to a maximum
height of 45 feet above grade.”

Section 8. Effective Date. This ordinance and its amendment will be effective 30 days
following its adoption and enactment by the City Council.

ADOPTED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL THIS DAY OF , 2018.
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS DAY OF , 2018.
ATTEST: Mayor

Brett Estes, City Manager

ROLL CALL ON ADOPTION: YEA NAY ABSENT
Commissioner Nemlowill

Price

Brownson

Jones
Mayor LaMear

C:\Users\astampen\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\OW3ME7OW\A17-02 Draft
Ordinance Tracked Changes.doc




5 AXONOMETRIC

BLILDIN

1




B S N >
/,.. N\ //,\ 3 9\\/ /4 /V\\/\\\ \\\%j
\ 2 < g _v.w.

A ’
N\ /\\ e = 35 ob
\~ Sulien

15 |@eouidd e
> 1

¢ AN fllE (|
N—AR T LR

23rd 5t

Juswpuawy

de|A\ Suluoyz




Text

Amendment

Local Service Zone (LS)
2.976. USES PERMITTED OUTRIGHT.

6. Retail sales establishment. (East of 23" Street, retail
sales establishment greater than 14,000 gross square feet shall
include a minimum of 50% of gross floor area devoted to multi-
family dwellings located above the first floor.)

2.977. CONDITIONAL USES PERMITTED.
y Business service establishment. (Not allowed on
properties between 23rd and 29th Street north of Marine

Drive.)

5. Gasoline service station. (Not allowed on properties
between 23rd and 29th Street north of Marine Drive.)

9. Transportation service establishment. (Not allowed
on properties between 23rd and 29th Street north of Marine

Drive.)




Zoning Comparison ~~ CurrentZone Proposed Zone Adjacent Zone
Uses . AHMP | LS (Amended) | c3
Arts/Crafts Studio Outright
Family Day Care Center Outright Conditional Qutright
Home Occupation Outright Qutright Outright
SFD Outright Outright w/ commercial use
Two Family Dwelling Outright  Outright w/ commercial use Outright w/ commercial use
Multi Family Dwelling Outright  Outright w/ commercial use Outright
Personal Services Outright Outright Outright
Professional Services Qutright Outright
Residential Home Outright Outright
Residential Facility Outright Outright Outright
Transportation Facilities Qutright QOutright Outright
b Bed and Breakfast or Inn Conditional Outright
Z O n I n Day Care Center Conditional Conditional Conditional
Eating/Drinking Establishment Conditional Conditional
Pubic or Semi-Public Use Conditional Conditional
) Restaurant associated w/ Inn Conditional Conditional
r T ] Retail Sales <6000 sq ft Conditional Outright Outright
O p a r | S O n Retail Sales >6000 sq ft Outright Outright
Repair Services <3000 sq ft Outright Outright
Business Services Establishment Outright
Gasoline Service Station Conditional
Transportation Service Estab. Outright
Commercial Laundry/Dry Clean Outright
Off street Parking Qutright
Communcation Services Estab Outright
Construction Services Estab Outright
Educational Services Estab Outright
Hotel, Motel, Tourist Lodging Outright
Conference Center Outright
Indoor Family Entertainment Outright
Animal Hospital/kennel Conditional
Auto sales/service Conditional
Hospital Conditional
Light Manufacturing Conditional
Recycling Estab Conditional
Wholesale Warehouse Conditional




Traffic Impact

Analysis

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS AND
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING RULE
ASSESSMENT FOR PROPOSED ASTORIA
CO-OP GROCERY STORE

Astoria, Oregoli

Frepared For
Don Vallaster, Vallaster Corl Architects

Frepared By:

DKS Associales

720 SW Washington Streat, Suite 500
Porland, OR 87205

(502) 242-3500

Project Manager: Reah Flisakowski, P.E.

PRO,
o

GINER
SE° E‘?P’q%

DKS et
o VA

e fg’gl:

December 11,2017 &n. 15,255

EXPIRES: 12 =3~ 11




Existing Conditions
Transportation Infrastructure
Traffic Volumes
Safety

Impact Analysis
Site Access
Trip Generation
Trip Distribution
Background Traffic

Transportation Planning Rule Assessment
Future Transportation Conditions (2029)



Study Area

Marine Drive (US 30)/
Commercial Street / 21%
Street

Marine Drive (US 30)/
Exchange Street

Marine Drive (US 30)/
23" Street

Marine Drive (US 30)/
29" Street

X

AR
{ \
‘.H/‘

No Scale

o - Study Intersestion

Figure 1: Study Area



o Y |
L £y B~
=5 A | |
— ¢ 5 |
,\.\ - -
= < saoves
i , 1 SHNYYY WLOL 55
g n d_ | i
4 & &) | | ..m
3 | Lo §
= - - H.,
| 1
o _ L& i
g % ,, | . o :
i : R i { 4 £
ot g . il 450851 2 g :
m A , : _ W |
[ : | i
7 M " 1“
% B
> “9 .
4

PECOUMNENIED

I

R

Lt S99
<

oA AMITYT A
— | 3 gy 3 s 4 e N e TR
- s : : ; i
" e T £z ] : = =
\..\M\\.‘\\.R . e i gl g3 .

AVM TULSIHM Wv3lLs

S$920Y 911§



Trip Generation

Table 5: PM Peak Trip Generation for Proposed Astoria Grocery Store

Land Use (ITE Code) Size Daily Trips In Out Total
1,227 58 56 114
12,000 - :
Supermarket (850) Diverted Trips 21 20 41

square feet

Net New Trips 37 36 73




»

punoqu) a0
pUNOGINO %"
sebeluadiaq uonngusiq dif

VIS ON

AV NIDINVYS

20TH ST

g

uonnguasiq diig

75 JONVHOXA

=

1S INVAG

AMH YIAN

vIiawniod 4




Transportation Planning Rule Analysis

2039 with Zone Change Intersection Operations

The 2039 with Zone Change scenario includes 12,000 square feet of retail on the project site (6,000 more
than the TSP Baseline Scenario). The added traffic associated with the proposed zone change is expected
to have little impact on traffic operations when compared to the 2039 TSP Baseline operations. Most

study intersections are expected to operate with a volume to-capacity of 0.86 or better and meet mobility
standards. [[he exce T ,

jovement ’/’a"
sy( C//f PIVI PEUK

1 to degrade

It should be noted that the Astoria TSP recommends a traffic signal or roundabout at the US 30 /

Exchange Street intersection. This updated system analysis re-affirms the need for an improvement at this
location.

- Astoria Co-op Grocery Store TIA and TPR Assessment
Page 23



.

* No transportation facilities are significantly impacted.

e The proposed plan amendments do not degrade the performance of
an existing or planned transportation facility such that it would not
meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or
comprehensive plan.



ODOT

Comments

O Department of Transportation
regon Distzict 1/Azea 1

350 Wast Marine Drive

atr Yrnvery Gossnnie X A
Astoris; Oregon 97103

Phone: (303 X2

1/0/2018 Faoc (503) 3251313
TO: Mike Morgan, City of Astoria
FROM: Ken Shonkwiler, ODOT Seunior Transpertation Planner

SUBJECT: Comprehensive Plan Amendment A17-02 Vallaster and Astoria Co-op

Thank you for the oppormity to comment on this zone change and map amendment.

The Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) routinely comments on planning preposals that may have
an impact on state highways. If a plan amendment 1s involved (inciuding zone changes), ODOT makes itself
available to assist local governments in complying with the requirements of OAR 660-012-0060 (knovwn as the
Transportation Pianning Rule), This requires that local governments amending adopted plaas and regulations
demonstrate that the amendment will not s:gnificantly affect existing or planned transportation facilities (both
state and local) or that such amendments are concurrent with local and sfate plans.

The applicant submitied a joint TPR Analysis for the zone change and Traffie Impact analysis to ODOT on the
stte io be rezoned from AH-MP to Local Service (LS). After reviewing the proposed developnent and TPR
analysis, the zone change wonld not significantly affect the sumounding transporiation system

During the Sununer of 2017, Iseviewed the site plan for the Astoria Co-Op as well. Frontage unproveents
were originally identified along the property. and [ would like fo reiferaie that frontage unprovements and other
infrastructure related to active transportation (along with ADA compenents) would be essential to align with the
goals identified within the City of Astoria Transpertation System Pian

ODOT is in agreement with the proposed zone change as the Transporiation Planmng Rule QAR 660-012-0060
(9) has been sansfied through this concurrence.




* Selling Parks.

* Multi-family/Workforce housing
will suffer.

P U b | iC * What if the Co-op isn’t built?

Comments

* Larger retail development =
larger impact.







Proposed

Condition of
Approval

If the proposed project by the
Astoria Co-op does not begun
substantial construction within
two years of the enactment of the
amendment, the City shall initiate
a rezoning process to rezone the
property or site to its original AH-
MP (Attached Housing-Mill Pond)
Zone designation or other
appropriate zone.



CITY OF ASTORIA
Foundad 1811 » Incomporatod 1856

MEMORANDUM - FINANCE DEPARTMENT

DATE: FEBRUARY 13, 2018

TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

FROM w ‘ SRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER

SUBJECTY "ADDITION OF JOB TITLE FOR SCHEDULE F-1 SALARY

RESOLUTION NO 18-01

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS

This memo proposes the creation of a temporary, on-call, position of Parks Special Projects
Manager in order to implement recommendations of the Parks and Recreation Comprehensive
Master Plan.

The position would be a temporary, non-benefited position under City personnel policies (no
medical; sick leave earned per State Statute); would not exceed 29 hours per work week (7 day
period Monday through Sunday) or accumulative more than 1,499 hours in a fiscal year. If the
requirement of a particular work week exceed 30 hours it will be offset on a flex basis in other
weeks within a month but at no time will the hours in a month exceed 129 hours.

This position would assist with but not be limited to the following tasks:

e Conducts research, analyzes, interprets, and packages data for presentations, and develops
written reports on assignhed projects.

e Develops and refines Park Maintenance Plans.

e Assists in the preparation, implementation, updating of the Comprehensive Parks
and Recreation Master Plan.

¢ Coordinates with staff and stakeholders to enhance services offered by the Parks
Department.

Before a position is posted, the creation of a job description is required to identify the essential
duties, expectations, required experience and education as well as to review the current
marketplace and establish appropriate salary range in order to fulfill the current requirements of
the City. It is proposed Schedule F-1, Range 3 be utilized and a step determined based on the
experience and education of the successful candidate. Due to inability to fill all vacancies early
in Fiscal Year 2017-18, funds are available in Parks Operations — Maintenance {o accommodate
the addition of this temporary on-call position. Job recruitment and offer would commence
should Council approve the description and salary schedule and range, as noted above.



RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that City Council approve the addition of the Job/Title/Duties and use of
Schedule F-1, Range 3 as contained in Salary Resolution No. 18-01.

By: W

Susan Brooks, Director of Finance and
Administrative Services




Synopsis

Parks and Recreation Department proposes the creation of a temporary, on-call, position of
Parks Special Projects Manager in order to implement recommendations of the Parks and
Recreation Comprehensive Master Plan.

This position would assist with but not be limited to the following tasks:

- Conducts research, analyzes, interprets, and packages data for presentations, and
develops written reports on assigned projects.

« Develops and refines Park Maintenance Plans.

* Assists in the preparation, implementation, updating of the Comprehensive Parks
and Recreation Master Plan.

« Coordinates with staff and stakeholders to enhance services offered by the Parks
Department.

It is recommended that City Council approve the addition of the Job/Title/Duties and use of
Schedule F-1, Range 3 as contained in Salary Resolution No. 18-01.



escri

Job Title: Parks Special Projects Manager Prepared By:  Xenium
Department: Parks Prepared Date: February 2018
Reports To:  Parks and Recreation Director Approved By: ‘

FLSA Status: Non-Exempt Approved Date:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES other duties as assigned. ..

This description covers the most significant essential and auxiliary duties performed by this position for
illustration purposes, but does not include other occasional work, which may be similar, related to, or a
logical assignment for the position. The job description does NOT constitute an employment agreement
between the employer and employee, and is subject to change by the employer as the organizational
needs and requirements of the job change.

1.

4.

Conducts research, analyzes, interprets, and packages data for presentations, and develops
written reports on assigned projects.

Develops and refines Park Maintenance Plans.

Assists in the preparation, implementation, updating of the Comprehensive Parks and
Recreation Master Plan.

Coordinates with staff and stakeholders to enhance services offered by the Parks Department.

JOB DUTIES

L]

Coordinates with Parks and Recreation Director and her/his designees to accomplish
assigned tasks.

Interprets and applies basic policies and regulations related to general plans, zoning and
land divisions, as they pertain to Parks operations.

Independently develops recommendations pertaining to Parks development requests
and projects.

Responds to public inquiries and public agency requests to relate or interpret Parks use
ordinances, policies and procedures.

Delivers excellent customer service in person, over the phone, and other venues where
city business is conducted and customer interface is expected.

Conducts research, gathers and analyzes data and develops written reports on assigned
projects.

May assist in preparation of grant applications and management of grant funded projects.

May develop or deliver public presentations on assigned projecits.

Page 1 of 3



» Conducts investigations on land use and land division ordinances and analyzes and
interprets their potential effects on Park activities.

e Prepares routine charts, maps, graphic displays, and other infographics as well as
develops and executes public involvement strategies for specific projects and program
areas.

e Assists Parks Director to develop Park planning documents, review and create Park
policy and procedural materials related to operations, outreach, and enhancement
projects.

w

e Maintains punctual, regular and predictable attendance.

e Demonstrates abilities to work collaboratively in a team environment with a spirit of

cooperation.

o Displays excellent communication skills including presentation, persuasion, and
negotiation skills required in working with coworkers/public, including the ability to
communicate effectively and remain calm and courteous under pressure.

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES
This position does not have any supervisory responsibilities.

QUALIFICATIONS

Ability to perform essential job duties with or without reasonable accommodation and without
posing a direct threat to safety or health of employee or others. To perform this job successfully,
an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed
below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential
functions.

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE

Bachelor's degree in planning or related field and three years’ experience of increasing
responsibility in park or land use planning at a city, county, or regional level. A Master’s degree
in planning, architecture, historic preservation, or related field can substitute for one year of
experience. Familiarity with the Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Master Plan and ability
to interpret and execute the recommendations from the plan.

LANGUAGE SKILLS

Ability to read, analyze, and interpret general business periodicals, professional journals,
technical procedures, or governmental regulations. Ability to write reports, business
correspondence, and procedure manuals. Ability to effectively present information and respond
to questions from groups of managers, clients, customers, and the general public.

MATHEMATICAL SKILLS

Ability to add, subtract, multiply, and divide in all units of measure, using whole numbers, common
fractions, and decimals. Ability to compute rate, ratio, and percent and to draw and interpret bar
graphs.

COMPUTER SKILLS

Page 2 of 3



Job requires specialized computer skills. Must be adept at using various applications including
database, spreadsheet, report writing, project management, graphics, word processing,
presentation creation/editing, communicate by e-mail and use scheduling software.

REASONING ABILITY

Ability to define problems, collect data, establish facts, and draw valid conclusions. Ability to
interpret an extensive variety of technical instructions in mathematical or diagram form and deal
with several abstract and concrete variables.

CERTIFICATES, LICENSES, REGISTRATIONS
This position requires a valid insurable Driver's License or ability to obtain license within three
months of hire.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to use hands to finger,
handle, or feel; talk or hear; and sit. The employee is frequently required to stand and walk. The
employee must occasionally lift and/or move materials up to 10 pounds.

WORK ENVIRONMENT

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essentialfunctions.

Employee could be outdoors in all types of weather; moderate noises (examples: business office

with computers and printers, light traffic). Some work may be carried out at Park sites in
inclement weather.

Employee Signature:

Employer Representative:

Date:

Page 3 of 3



CITY OF ASTORIA

Founded 1811 » Incomarated 1856

VIORANDUE

* PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

FEBRUARY 26, 2018
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER

ADDITION OF JOB TITLE FOR SCHEDULE E-1 OF THE SALARY
RESOLUTION NO. 18-01

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS

With the recent staff transitions in the Public Works Department as a result of Ken Cook’s
retirement, the part-time Support Engineer position in the Engineering Division has been left
vacant. The Support Engineer position has been primarily responsible for special projects such
as the CSO (Combined Sewer Overflow Program), wastewater improvements and ODOT bridge
projects. This part-time position is limited to 1,500 hours per year.

After an evaluation of tasks, projects and workflow, Staff determined that creation of a
permanent full-time Engineering Designer position will best meet the current and future needs of
the Engineering Division. This position would take the place of the Support Engineer and be
primarily responsible for project management, infrastructure design and development review
(full job description attached). This will allow Cindy Moore, previous Support Engineer, to
continue to manage a variety of special projects in her Assistant City Engineer role.

Before a position can be posted, the creation of a job description is required to identify the
essential duties, expectations, required experience and education as well as to review the
current marketplace establishing appropriate salary range to fulfill the current requirements of
the City. It is proposed that Schedule E-1, Range 39, be utilized and step determined based on
the experience and education of the candidate. Funds currently budgeted for the Support
Engineer position can be utilized for the Engineering Designer in this fiscal year. Funds are also
included in the proposed budget for FY2018-19 to accommodate the addition of this permanent
position. Compared to the Support Engineer position, the addition of a permanent Engineering
Designer is anticipated to be cost neutral at this point and converts a part-time position to full
time.

The job recruitment would commence immediately upon City Council approval.



RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that City Council approve the addition of the Engineering Designer job title and
duties, and use of Schedule E-1, Range 39 in Salary Resolution 18-01.

oy Ll obrn

Jeff Harringt‘o%’ublic Works Director

Prepared by: % % '

Nathan Crater, City Engineer




Job
Description

Job Title: Engineering Designer Prepared By: Xenium

Department: Engineering Prepared Date: December 2017

Reports To: City Engineer Approved By: Susan Brooks

FLSA Status: Exempt Approved Date: February 2018
SUMMARY

This position is responsible for performing professional municipal related engineering services
including design, project and construction management duties under the direction of the City
Engineer by performing the following duties.

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES other duties as assigned...

This description covers the most significant essential and auxiliary duties performed by this position
for illustration purposes, but does not include other occasional work, which may be similar, related to,
or a logical assignment for the position. The job description does NOT constitute an employment
agreement between the employer and employee, and is subject to change by the employer as the
organizational needs and requirements of the job change.

1. Oversees projects involving storm water, water, wastewater, street improvement and
maintenance, marine structures, and other Public Works projects and programs including
landfill operations.

2. Performs the necessary engineering analysis to prepare preliminary and final engineering
plans and specifications for construction contract bidding.

3. Provides review comments on behalf of the Public Works Department on private development
submittals.

JOB DUTIES

e Other work assignments may be required which would be typical of a technical support role to
the Public Works Director, Operations Division, City Engineer and Assistant City Engineer as
required.

e Supports the City Engineer and Assistant City Engineer in the planning, oversight, program
management, monitoring and preparing reports and studies in development and management
of capital and special repair projects in the Engineering Division.

e Maintains responsible charge of projects to insure they meet appropriate compliance with
Federal and State environmental regulations, engineering codes and standards.

e Coordinates design team activities for in-house design projects.

e Prepares engineering cost estimates for construction and rehabilitation projects consistent
with engineering plans and specifications.

e Coordinates required advertising for bids, reviews construction bids and makes necessary
recommendations based on lowest and best bids, competency of vendors and consultants,
and the selection criteria.




Job
Description

e Prepares and manages construction related administrative and construction engineering
documents to prepare contract change orders consistent with professional engineering duties
and to insure project contract documents are adhered to and project is completed in
accordance with stipulated plans and specifications.

e Conducts project related field engineering reviews as a representative of the City Public Works
Department.

e Assists in the maintenance of engineering project records including general, utility, and road
and subdivision maps.

e Assists in coordination of project as-built mapping for future implementation into the City’s GIS
data collection and recordation system.

e Provides review comments and recommendations on behalf of the Public Works Department
on City owned real estate related matters; and reviews plats and deeds for easements and
rights-of-way.

e Provides information and assistance to developers, engineers and the general public;
investigates and responds to citizen complaints and concerns.

e Maintains punctual, regular and predictable attendance.
o Works collaboratively in a team environment with a spirit of cooperation.

e Displays excellent communication skills including presentation, persuasion, and negotiation
skills required in working with coworkers and the public and including the ability to
communicate effectively and remain calm and courteous under pressure.

e Respectfully takes direction from the City Engineer and Assistant City Engineer.

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES
This position does not have any supervisory responsibilities.

QUALIFICATIONS

Ability to perform essential job duties with or without reasonable accommodation and without posing
a direct threat to safety or health of employee or others. To perform this job successfully, an individual
must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are
representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE
Bachelor's Degree in Civil Engineering; and three to eight years of experience in the engineering field,
preferably in a municipal setting, including at least two years in a project management capacity.

Preferably has experience with project design engineering, project construction management, or team
leader skills, and strong project management skills.

Thorough knowledge of civil engineering theory, practice and standards; methods, materials and
equipment used in public works construction/maintenance; engineering record keeping systems;
engineering computer applications and general survey procedures.




Job
Description

LANGUAGE SKILLS

Ability to read, analyze, and interpret common scientific and technical journals, financial reports, and
legal documents. Ability to respond to common inquiries or complaints from customers, regulatory
agencies, or members of the business community. Ability to write clear, concise reports, speeches
and articles for publication which conform to prescribed style and format. Ability to effectively present,
in verbal and written manner, information to top management, public groups, and/or boards of
directors.

MATHEMATICAL SKILLS

Ability to work with mathematical concepts such as probability and statistical inference, and
fundamentals of plane and solid geometry and trigonometry. Ability to apply concepts such as
fractions, percentages, ratios, and proportions to practical situations.

COMPUTER SKILLS

Most required work is almost exclusively on the computer, but the computer is not itself the focus of
the position. Has an advanced understanding and capabilities in using applicable programs and
knowledge of networks. Must be a strong reference for other users for performing different functions
with the computer. Computer-aided-design software such as AutoCAD Civil 3D preferred.

REASONING ABILITY

Ability to plan, establish priority, assign and review the work of engineering and field personnel; make
independent investigation of engineering problems and determine adherence to engineering
standards and specifications; write clear, concise reports; communicate effectively both verbally and
in writing; maintain effective working relationships with employees, engineers, developers, and the
general public.

CERTIFICATES, LICENSES, REGISTRATIONS
Registration as an Engineering Intern in Oregon or registration (license) as a Civil Engineer in Oregon
preferred.

Possession of or ability to obtain a valid driver's license with a safe driving record.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The physical demands and work environment characteristics described here are representative of
those an employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

Mostly in an office setting but work is sometimes performed outdoors in adverse weather conditions.
Must be able to occasionally lift up to 25 pounds, walk on uneven surfaces, work in confined spaces,
climb ladders, be able to inspect and perform work in positions such as standing, bending, squatting,
and sitting; able to utilize the senses of sight, hearing, and touch to recognize and to accurately
evaluate equipment and process conditions. Frequently required to sit; talk or hear; walk; use hands
to finger, handle, or feel objects, tools, or controls; bend; twist; reach with hands and arms. Must be
able to sit and work on a computer for extended periods of time.

Employee Signature:

Employer Representative:

Date:




CITY OF ASTORIA

Founded 1811 ¢ Incormporated 1856

MEMORANDUM ¢ PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

DATE: JANUARY 28, 2018
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
FROM: RETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER

SUBJECT: SPUR 18 COMBO HARVEST 2018
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS

A commercial thinning and variable retention treatment is proposed on approximately 50 acres of the Bear
Creek Watershed property for the summer of 2018. The harvest is located near the north-eastern boundary of
the property, on a flat ridge between Cedar Creek and Fat Buck Creek. All treatments have been designed for
long-term water quality and forest health goals, increasing diversity, structural complexity, and resilience of the
forest on the Bear Creek Watershed.

The commercial thinning is proposed in a Spruce-dominated stand that has stagnated due to very tight
spacing. The goal of the thinning is to increase species diversity in the stand and allow the remaining trees to
optimally utilize the available growing space.

An area of variable retention harvest is proposed adjacent to the thinning unit. The Douglas Fir in these stands
is impacted by Swiss Needle Cast, a fungus that attacks the crowns of the trees and inhibits growth, stunting
the trees and decreasing canopy cover. By removing the Douglas Fir, the treatment leaves large and wind-firm
Hemlock and Spruce both dispersed throughout the stand and in a few small clumps. The treatment has the
operational benefits of a patch cut while improving seed sources for natural regeneration and leaving large
legacy trees throughout the stand.

The harvest unit is bisected by the Spur 1 Road, which may require minor repairs. In addition, two other small
spurs will be restored, providing greater fire access towards the edge of the property. Map showing the
treatment area as well as the location within the watershed are attached. Our City Forester will be in
attendance at the meeting to answer any questions.

The net proceeds to the Capital Improvement Fund from this forest treatment are estimated to be $200,000
after harvest and reforestation costs.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that City Council authorize staff to solicit bids for the Spur 18 Combo Harvest 2018.

By: I fone

J&ff Harrjagton, Public Works Director

Prepared by: Len aves @R
Ben Hayes, City Forester




Spur 1 Combo Layout

CNES/Alous DS, USDA,; USES, AroGRID, 1SN, £el five GIS
YSedCommunity;

-




Spur 1 Combo Layout

Waterworks Creek

Sources: Esri, HERE, DeLorme, Intermap, increment P Corp.,
GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster
NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong),
swisstopo, MapmylIndia, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the
GI$ User Community -




Bear Creek Spur 1 Combo Location

&mm@g‘; @ﬁ; E-)|g|talt|@b @@d%m E@ﬁﬁm GEogiap
CNES/AIBUSDS, USDA, USES, A U@Maﬁﬁﬁh@@i@
User Gommuintly :




CITY OF ASTORIA

Founded 1817 « Incomorated 1856

EMORANDUM  FINANCE DEPARTMENT

DATE: FEBRUARY 24, 2018
TO: /MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
FROM: | | BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER

SUBJECT: ~DOWNTOWN PARKING AND VISITOR INFORMATION AGREEMENT
WITH ASTORIA DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT ASSOCIATION
(ADHDA)

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS

During fiscal year ending 6/30/2017, staff presented a concept of providing contracted
downtown parking enforcement services to Astoria Downtown Historic District Association
(ADHDA). As a part of the duties, the ADHDA parking officer would also provide information
services to visitors. Encouraging turnover in downtown parking spaces and providing visitor
information promotes tourism in the downtown district of Astoria which may be funded from the
Promote Astoria Fund.

Staff negotiated an agreement with the ADHDA and a budget was adopted to provide $ 22,000
for the contracted services in Fiscal Year 2016-17. Administration of the program is the
responsibility of the ADHDA. Parking violations written are to be filed in Astoria Municipal Court
with fine proceeds retained by the City. The City provides citations and uniforms to the ADHDA
for use by their employee. ADHDA will be required to submit annual reports.

The initial agreement was approved by Council on September 6, 2016 and ADHDA began
recruitment for a parking enforcement officer which ADHDA has designated as the Community
Outreach Officer (COO). At about the same time of the recruitment for the COO position was
culminating, the ADHDA Executive Director resigned and the COO position was delayed until
the new Executive Director, Sarah Lu Heath, was in place. In early spring of 2017 the COO
position was filled and training provided. City of Astoria provided $ 8,500 to the ADHDA in
compliance with their request and the approved agreement. Due to unforeseen circumstances
the new employee did not complete the probationary period. Further recruitment efforts have
been underway since summer of 2017 with candidates being offered the position and
subsequently declining, necessitated renewing the search for candidates. The ADHDA had
$ 7,484.89 available at June 30, 2017 to recruit for and establish the new employee in the
current fiscal year.

Effective January, 2018 the ADHDA hired and the City Manager has appointed (per City code)
Ms. Ronni Harris as the Community Outreach Officer. An agreement for fiscal year ending June
30, 2018 has been pending the successful recruitment by the ADHDA for this position.

During the January 10, 2018 City Council work session ADHDA made a request to Council to
utilize a portion of Promote Astoria Funds allocated for a parking officer to work with a
contractor conducting a downtown parking study to better utilize existing parking on private lots.



Council requested ADHDA determine the economic impact of parking spaces and to consider
how parking in downtown might impact other areas of town. In response to Council direction
from this work session ADHDA prepared a scope of work for the downtown parking study which
has been incorporated in the scope of work for the attached agreement for Downtown Parking
and Tourist Information Services Agreement. The Parking Study is budgeted for $ 11,000. It
should be noted that work from the parking study will be presented to Council along with some
analysis of on-street parking configurations being prepared by the Public Works Depariment.
This will be done to address the City Council goal on this topic.

City Attorney Henningsgaard has approved the agreement to form.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that Council approve the agreement with ADHDA.

By: Bl

Susan Brooks, Director of Finance
and Administrative Services




AGREEMENT FOR PARKING AND TOURIST INFORMATION SERVICES

This Agreement is made this day of , 2018, between City of Astoria,

hereinafter "CITY" and Astoria Downtown Historic District Association, an Oregon Not-for-Profit
Corporation and independent contractor in good standing, hereinafter called “ADHDA”.

WITNESSETH

Whereas, the CITY requires services which ADHDA is capable of providing, under terms and

conditions hereinafter described; and

Whereas, ADHDA is able and prepared to provide such services as CITY does hereinafter require,

under those terms and conditions set forth; now, therefore,

In consideration of those mutual promises and the terms and conditions set forth hereafter, the parties

agree as follows:

1.

Term. The term of this agreement shall commence on January 1, 2018 and terminate on June 30,

2018 Agreement may be terminated with a 60 day written notice by either party.

Services. = ADHDA agrees to provide services to CITY in accordance with the Scope of Work

incorporated by reference as Exhibit “A”.

Compensation. The amount the CITY shall pay the ADHDA is not to exceed $ 22,000. These amounts

are dependent upon motel tax collections.

a. ADHDA shall furnish the CITY with updated W-9 information, as designated by the Internal
Revenue Service.

b. CITY shall make payments to ADHDA on a semi-annual basis, after full execution of agreement.

CITY Contacts. For purposes hereof, the CITY contacts are the City Manager and Director of Finance

and Administrative Services, 1095 Duane Street, Astoria, OR 97103.

ADHDA Contacts. For purposes hereof, the ADHDA contact is the Executive Director, PO Box 261,

Astoria, OR 97103.

CITY’s Business License. Before permitting a sub consultant to begin work, ADHDA shall verify a

current business license is on file for the sub consultant.

Insurance. Prior to provision of services under this contract, ADHDA shall procure professional and

comprehensive general liability insurance with limits that, at a minimum, comply with the limits of local

public body liability described in ORS 30.272-273 and shall provide original certificates of insurance to

the City Director of Finance and Administrative Services, evidencing proof of ADHDA insurance

policies in effect for the type of coverage set forth below and within the stated limits.

At all times during the term of this agreement, ADHDA shall keep such insurance policies in full force
and effect and shall provide the CITY with original certificates of insurance. The CITY shall be named
as an additional insured and no cancellation, material change, exhaustion of aggregate limits or intent not
to renew insurance coverage shall occur without 30-days written notice to City of Astoria Finance
Department. Any failure to comply with this provision will not affect the insurance coverage provided to
the City. The 30-day notice of cancellation provision shall be physically endorsed on to the policy.
Worker’s Compensation. ADHDA, its subcontractors, if any, and all employers working under this
Agreement are either subject employers under the Oregon Workers’ Compensation Law and shall comply
with ORS 656.017, which requires them to provide workers’ compensation coverage for all their subject
workers, or are employers that are exempt under ORS 656.126.

Page 1of3



10.

1.

12.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Laborers and Materialmen. Contributions to Industrial Accident Fund. Liens and Withholding Taxes.
ADHDA shall make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying contractor labor or material
necessary to execute the work provided for in this Agreement. ADHDA shall pay all contributions or
amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund from ADHDA or any sub consultant incurred in the
performance of the Agreement. ADHDA shall not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted
against the state, county, school district, municipality, Municipal Corporation or subdivision thereof, on
account of any labor or material furnished. ADHDA shall pay to the Department of Revenue all sums
withheld from Employees pursuant to ORS 316.167.

Books and Records. ADHDA shall keep all invoices, vouchers and other documentation for review by
CITY’s Finance Department, as needed, for the purposes of audit, examination, excepts and transcripts.
Assignment. The responsibility for performing ADHDA services under the terms of this agreement shall
not be assigned, transferred, delegated or otherwise referred by ADHDA to a third person without prior
consent of City agent.

Indemnity. ADHDA agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City of Astoria, its Officers and
Employees against and from any and all loss, claims, actions, suits, reasonable defense costs, attorney
fees and expenses for or on account of injury, bodily or otherwise to, or death of persons, damage to or
destruction of property belonging to CITY, ADHDA, or others resulting from or arising out of
ADHDA’S negligent acts, errors or omission in service pursuant to this Agreement. This agreement to
indemnify applies whether such claims are meritorious or not; provided, however, that if any such
liability, settlements, loss, defense costs or expenses result from the concurrent negligence of ADHDA
and CITY this indemnification and agreement to assume defense costs applies only to the extent of the
negligence or alleged negligence of the ADHDA.

. Accounting and Reporting. Per city Code 8.045.18 Non-Profit shall provide City, semi-annual financial

reports by August 1 and February 1, covering the six months ended June 30 and December 31,
respectively, of each year. These reports shall provide a verified listing of the expenditures with adequate
narrative, so the City can be satisfied as to the appropriateness of the expenditures. In addition a report of
services performed shall be presented in a format acceptable to City, and will, at City's discretion, include
a presentation at a meeting of the Budget Committee of the City. The Budget committee of the City shall
review reports during the budget process and recommend to the City Council the continuance,
discontinuance, or changes to a contract each year.

Complete Agreement. This Agreement and its referenced attachments constitute the complete agreement
between CITY and ADHDA and supersedes all prior written or oral discussions or agreements.
ADHDA’s services are defined solely by this Agreement and its attachments and not by any other
contract or agreement that may be associated with this Agreement.

No Religious Activities: No City funds may be used to promote institutions of religion or religious
activities, symbols or presentations.

Equal Opportunity and Non Discrimination. It is the policy of the City of Astoria that no person shall be
denied the benefits of or be subjected to discrimination in any City program, service, or activity on the
grounds of age, disability, race, religion, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity
and expression. The City of Astoria also requires its contractors and grantees to comply with this policy.
Applicable Law. The law of the State of Oregon shall govern the validity of this Agreement, its
interpretation and performance and any other claims related to it.

City: Astoria Downtown Historic District
Association (ADHDA):
Arline LaMear, Date Sarah Lu Heath, Date



Mayor Executive Director

Brett Estes, Date Duleye Taylor, Date
City Manager ADHDA President

Page 30f3



Exhibit A
Scope of Work

Parking and Tourist Information Services

The Astoria Downtown Historic District Association "ADHDA" shall at a minimum provide the
following efforts to proactively manage parking enforcement in the Downtown District of the City of Astoria:

ADHDA shall be responsible for enforcement of parking regulations within the Astoria Downtown
Parking District defined in Code Section 6.355(7). The ADHDA shall cite violators into Astoria
Municipal Court using the standard form of citation employed by the City.

ADHDA shall be responsible for all aspects of the program for the provision of tourist
assistance/information services and management of parking enforcement. Its responsibilities shall
include, but are not limited to, paying all expenses incurred in connection with management of these
programs and promoting the use of the appropriate parking areas by tourists, shoppers and patrons
of service establishments and all other necessary and reasonably related incidental activities.

ADHDA shall to hire a consultant to conduct a downtown parking survey to include:
Phase One

e Gather input:
o Survey, online and in-person
o Audiences: Business Owners, Residents, Visitors (Locals and out of area)
o Gather and review documents and studies previously undertaken regarding parking and pedestrian
safety
e QGather data:
o Complete a private parking inventory including
= Jocation
= ownership
= number of stalls
o Complete an occupancy study of both private off-street parking and public on-street and off-street
parking
= Multiple ‘snap shots’ of parking will be taken to ensure we account for typical weekdays at
different times of day, weekends, events days, and both fair and inclement weather.
o Identify goals for improving parking and pedestrian safety
o Create a ‘heat-map’ of parking stall occupancy rates
o Hold a stake-holders meeting to discuss feasible options

Phase Two

e Create leasing options to connect owners of private parking to businesses and employees that would
like reliable parking options within the downtown parking district

e Work with owners and lessors to make necessary connections, garnering more parking available for
business owners and employees

Proposed Downtown Parking Project Budget
Independent Contractor 180 hrs @ $30/hr $5,400
ADHDA Fee for Service 90 hrs @ $30/hr $2,600
Signage for Improved Wayfinding $3,000
Total: $11,000

Page 4of3



e ADHDA will fully account for any funds that are advanced to the ADHDA by the City pursuant to
this Agreement. Any funds received will be expended only for the activities identified in this Scope

of Work.

= City of Astoria is responsible to provide ADHDA with two (2) uniform shirts and a rain jacket
which will appropriately identify the ADHDA agent as a tourist information and parking control
officer. All enforcement activities pursuant to the agreement will be performed only by individuals
wearing such uniforms.

= ADHDA shall acknowledge City of Astoria, Promote Astoria Fund participation in all documents
or publications prepared (not inclusive of print advertising) or equipment and software purchased in
the performance of this agreement

Page 5of3



	CC Agenda 3-5-2018 EDITS
	CC Agenda MEMO 3-5-2018
	ACC Feb 5 2018 Final
	ALB Ocotber 24, 2017 Final
	ALB  November 28, 2017 Final
	6a Coop Public Hearing
	6b f-1 Salary Res
	6c E-1 Salary Res 2
	6c1 Engineering Designer 2-18
	6d Bid Spur 18 
	6e ADHDA Parking



